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CORPORATE INFORMATION AND KEY DATES
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RESULTS HIGHLIGHTS
E ¥ Tt

The board of directors (the “Board” or “Directors”) of Emperor Watch & Jewellery Limited (the “Company”)
announces the audited consolidated results of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2021 (the “Year”).

HREEFREARAA([ARAAND2EFS ([EFS I X EX)EMARAREMBEAR (5 [ RNEE])#
E2021F12A31BLEFE ([AFEE]) ZBERZEARE

For the year
ended 31 December

HK$ million BZE12A31BLLEE Changes
H &8 T 2020 2021 25
Revenue 2,627 3,927 + 49.5%
WA

Gross profit 840 1,230 + 46.4%
£

Adjusted EBITD* 160 365 +128.1%

& EEBITD”

Net profit 34 205 + 502.9%
5
Basic earnings per share HKO0.50 cent HK3.02 cents + 504.0%
BREREAN A Al
Final dividend per share HKO0.15 cent HKO0.35 cent + 133.3%
BRARERE AL A4l

* Adjusted EBITD represents earnings before interest, tax and depreciation charge on the self-owned flagship store, which

reflects the Group’s core operating performance. The Group has fully adopted the HKFRS 16, which amortisation of right-
of-use assets associated with rental lease agreements were included.

* EAEEBITDRAME BEAKAREEEEENNEERN 2B URBAEEZ ZOEEXRR -AEBE 2 HRME B
BIELERE16 EREREESNAMNEREEERH-

4 EERGESEFRE A PR W] EMPEROR WATCH & JEWELLERY LIMITED
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

RESULTS

With the improved business performance in the mainland
China and Hong Kong markets, the Group’s total revenue
increased by 49.5% to HK$3,926.6 million (2020: HK$2,626.6
million) during the Year. Regarding results by geographical
segment, the mainland China market showed a strong
rebound during the Year, with revenue from this market
increasing by 56.7% to HK$1,227.8 million (2020: HK$783.3
million), accounting for 31.3% (2020: 29.8%) of the total
revenue. In Hong Kong, the relatively stabilised pandemic
situation provided support to domestic consumption, hence
the revenue from the Hong Kong market increased by 38.4%
to HK$1,739.3 million (2020: HK$1,256.6 million), accounting
for 44.3% (2020: 47.8%) of the total revenue. In terms of
revenue by product segment, the sales revenue from watch
and jewellery segments increased to HK$3,268.9 million
(2020: HK$2,056.2 million) and HK$657.7 million (2020:
HK$570.4 million), respectively, accounting for 83.3% (2020:
78.3%) and 16.7% (2020: 21.7%) of the total revenue.

Gross profit increased to HK$1,229.5 million (2020: HK$840.1
million), while the gross profit margin was 31.3% (2020:
32.0%). As a result of the increase in revenue and better
operating leverage, the Group’s net profit surged 502.9% to
HK$204.7 million (2020: HK$34.0 million) during the Year.
Basic earnings per share was HK3.02 cents (2020: HKO0.5
cent). The Group has recommended the payment of a final
dividend of HK0.35 cent (2020. HKO0.15 cent) per share.
Together with the interim dividend of HK0.55 cent (2020: Nil)
per share, the total dividends for the Year are HKO0.9 cent
(2020: HKO.15 cent) per share.

B PR i M g B

: = ‘\'l"‘_\\ -

%l\

BEFTRABLEETSEMEBRRRN
E AEBERAFEMNALN AL IN49.5%F
3,926,600,0005% 7T (20204 : 2,626,600,000

w’ﬁ

BIL) oM OEE N EEMS  HFEH
NETERAFELRBEYRE - ZTHHN

g A AN56.7% % 1,227,800,000% 7T (2020
% :783,300,0008 ) (E R AM31.3%
(2020%F :29.8% ) R BB HYEBENEZE
ERAAHBEREIHF ALBFEMSEHOK
A 5138.4%%1,739,300,000/% 7T (2020
F :1,256,600,000/8 70)  (H B U A #44.3%
(2020¢ 47.8% ) IR Em D & 5 BB A

T EHRERKESHTNEERADREMNE
3,268,900,000/% 7T (20204 : 2,056,200,0005%
7L ) X&657,700,000/% 7T (2020 : 570,400,000
HBIT) 15 U A #983.3% (20204 1 78.3% ) &
16.7% (20204 : 21.7% ) °

£ R 1 Z=1,229,500,000% 7T (20204 :
840,100,000 7t ) » i & F X £31.3% (2020
F:32.0%) HRABRABEREEERK
Z AEERAFENFFNBEAA502.9%
204,700,000 7T (20204F : 34,000,000/
TC) e R EREF A3.028 1l (20204 : 0.5
W) - NEE B #E R RER S &820.358 1
(20204 : 0.15/8 1) - E R+ HA I B & Jr0.55
7Bl (2020F : &) - AFER BB EATR0.9
Bl (20205 : 0.157811l) °
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B PR i M g3 BT

' EMEPEROR 3% 51 54 3 DR

MARKET REVIEW

During the first half of the Year, the Covid-19 pandemic
stabilised around the world, and the global economy was
on track towards recovery. The public's daily activities
broadly returned to normal and consumption sentiment
further revived, hence there was a significant recovery in the
retail industry. Domestic purchasing power stayed strong
in mainland China, contributing to an upward trend in its
consumption market. Relaxation of the travel restrictions
within the Greater Bay Area by the Chinese government
has also benefited the Greater Bay Area cities. In Hong
Kong, although it was still affected by the closure of the
major borders, local consumption was stable and business
performance continued to improve.

Nevertheless, in the second half of the Year, various policies
announced by the Chinese Government plus credit crises
of the mainland China property industry have adversely
impacted the China economy. With a high base in the second
half of the previous year, the growth rate of the mainland
China consumption market began slowing in the second half
of the Year. Closer to the end of the Year, the Omicron variant
of Covid-19 started to invade various countries and drove the
numbers of cases to new highs. The first mainland China and
Hong Kong Omicron cases were discovered in December
2021, prompting the governments to immediately tighten
measures, inevitably affecting consumption sentiment.

6 JEEFEEERE AR W EMPEROR WATCH & JEWELLERY LIMITED
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is a leading retailer of European-made
internationally renowned watches, together with self-designed
fine jewellery products under its own brand, “Emperor
Jewellery”. The Company has been listed on the Main Board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited since July
2008.

The Group has established a retail network of approximately
100 stores across Hong Kong, Macau, mainland China,
Singapore and Malaysia, as well as several online shopping
platforms. With a history of nearly 80 years, the Company
carries a balanced and comprehensive watch dealership
list. The target customers range from middle to high income
groups worldwide. The Group’s core strategy focuses on
maintaining its position as a leading watch and jewellery
retailing group in Greater China, coupled with an eye on
expansion beyond the region.

Presence in Prime Retail Locations

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had 99 stores in Hong
Kong, Macau, mainland China, Singapore and Malaysia. The
distribution was as follows:

T BHLEG wt w K o3 B

3£ 7% Al
REBFEHEZTEHR I BUNRERRET
(HEHKE | R AR ERKE G
ATEFmZBRE - ARAN2008F7AEERB
BAERXSHMARARER M-

AEEzZEPKREMNI00EEH B LE
B CRPT B A RN R B R R
BEREGR BT A - AN F %G II80H 2 F
SoRESEMEmMERRE - B RERTE
RBRERZFHHNPESWAAL AEED
2O REE BIRFT R K E b R F ARk Ek
NIRETEEE AL [ 8RR KA 2 LASh
o5 LA SR R S 7%

BEESTEHR

R2021F12A31B - AEEREE B A
I Hb 37 03 % 55 2R 76 o8 BB 5 09f JE A
DT

Number of stores

EHEE
Hong Kong BB 30
Macau | 5
Mainland China R A 55
Singapore N3 8
Malaysia BRI 1
Total B 99

These stores include self-branded “Emperor Jewellery”
stores, dedicated watch boutiques and multi-brand watch
stores (with or without jewellery counters).

Over the years, the Group has built a strategic sales network
in prime shopping areas as well as popular residential
districts, particularly in Hong Kong and mainland China.
Within mainland China, more than 70% of its stores are
located in first tier and new first tier cities, which fits the
Group’s customer targeting and market positioning. The
Group also successfully expanded its presence in Singapore
and Malaysia, to enhance its footprint and brand exposure
beyond Greater China.

W B B PR B0A B 4 W) EMPEROR WATCH & JEWELLERY LIMITED 7

ZEEHERE MG [ REFE] 5 BERE
BENRS mEEEE (MRIATRIAEEE) -
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BB MIEO 7 FERET AR
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B PHLIG wt wm Se o3 B

During the Year, the Group opened one jewellery store in
Hong Kong, and one dedicated watch boutique and five
jewellery stores in mainland China, to further expand market
coverage.

Solidifying Leading Position

With its long-standing history, the Group is a trusted partner
of and maintains solid relationships with major high end luxury
Swiss watch brand suppliers, thereby continuing to hold a
comprehensive portfolio of watch dealerships and maintaining
its leading position, especially in Hong Kong. The Group
actively participates in co-marketing campaigns and events
with brands, highlighting new products and connecting the
customers in a personalised way.

Enhancing the Jewellery Business

The Group offers premium quality “Emperor Jewellery”
products with a dedication to design excellence and
craftsmanship. The spectacular “Emperor Jewellery” range
features a variety of precious gem stones with a key focus on
diamonds and jadeites. “Emperor Jewellery” unveils unique
collections of exquisite designs that embrace and nurture
different clusters of customers.

During the Year, the Group highlighted the Nuo by Cindy
Yeung “Sautoir’ High Jewellery Collection — a tribute to the
contemporary women. The “Sautoir’ is inspired by an iconic
design of 20th century women’s fashion, the Sautoir necklace,
which evokes the image of the modern women in a new era.
A mix of classic beauty and contemporary chic, the collection
reveals the unique grace of women. In order to enhance
engagements with local consumers, the Group launched
many promotional and VIP events during the Year.

RAFE AEEBRBERR —MKEE AL
R BEAFHR —MEREEE N ERKEE -
E—TRAMSEES -

BEEAEE M

BHEECAERSL AEERIZSARERL
BmEHERNEENAERH LRZFH
FRAEFRENBEER KMESEE2EAS
ZEEAER UHFEAEHU LEREE
B AKBEB2MERKNMIEE M2 HI5HE
By BEHSEMERYBETETEAL
R

hniRERE R

AEBEBRRFUNEFRARITE SETRERHE
EREFE En-SBEEN (RHEKE]
ZINZBEREEER ETNEBELORERE
ARE- [REFKE|HD 2IKE RINDHRHB
BB RIPARETRETEE-

RAREE KNEBEHHETNUO by Cindy
Yeung [Sautoir (R % TE)] 2 RHKBE R
M 38 R 22 14 B o [ Sautoir ] DA -t 42204 (X
ZMERE L FH B R R SautoirRIARAE
B SBHAURR  URHERAORE - ZER
AR HERHAE EEEEE FEL
MBENEBEBR - RINRERNMEEENE
B AEERAFEHEERSEEREEREP
EE o
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

PROSPECTS

The luxury market has been picking up during the Year,
Nevertheless, with local Omicron cases detected in mainland
China and Hong Kong, the governments have again tightened
social distancing measures after stability of the pandemic
for almost a year, aiming to bring the strain under control as
soon as possible. This has led to delays in reopening borders
among mainland China, Hong Kong and Macau, which in turn
undoubtedly dampened market sentiment and impeded full
market recovery.

On the other hand, against the backdrop of volatile stock and
property markets, some luxury items with value retention and
appreciation potential are alternatives for certain investors.
Besides, cooped-up consumers may tend to pamper
themselves with high-ticket consumption amid the pandemic.
Coupled with the expansion of the middle-income group in
mainland China, the Group believes that the mainland China
market will be an important driver of the Group’s business
growth in the near future. The Group will therefore continue to
enhance its retail network in mainland China through cautious
expansion.

With both opportunities and challenges ahead, the Group
will closely monitor the changes in market trends as well
as consumer behaviour, so that it can promptly adjust its
strategy as appropriate. The Group will also strive to maintain
healthy inventory levels by meticulously adjusting the product
portfolio and replenishment. Given the importance of social
media in product promotions, the Group will continue to
showcase and promote its products on mobile apps and
social media platforms. Although a full recovery is yet to
come, the Group will be prepared in order to reap the benefits
when opportunities arise.

B 5L G SRR 87 A IR A W] EMPEROR WATCH & JEWELLERY LIMITED 9
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B PR i M g3 BT

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Capital Structure, Liquidity and Financial Resources

Bank balances and cash on hand of the Group as at 31
December 2021 increased to HK$556.3 million (2020:
HK$405.1 million), which were mainly denominated in Hong
Kong dollars and Renminbi. As at 31 December 2021, the
Group had total bank borrowings of approximately HK$165.5
million (2020: HK$638.7 million) and was in a net cash
position, hence its net gearing ratio (calculated on the basis
of bank borrowings less cash and cash equivalents over
net asset value) was zero (2020: 5.1%). The Group also
had available un-utilised banking facilities of approximately
HK$942.7 million.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s current assets and
current liabilities were approximately HK$3,435.6 million
(2020: HK$3,585.3 million) and HK$535.4 million (2020:
HK$1,027.3 million), respectively. Current ratio and quick
ratio of the Group were 6.4 (2020: 3.5) and 1.4 (2020: 0.5),
respectively.

In view of the Group’s financial position as at 31 December
2021, the Directors considered that the Group has sufficient
working capital for its operations and future development
plans.

= gy
MPEROR # & 7 X
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BB B o

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY i B B 357 T B ok

As at 31 December 2021, the Group has 678 salespersons F2021F 128318 - A& E B 5678 (20204 :
(2020: 706) and 179 office staff (2020: 159). Total staff 706)& & A8 K179 (20204 : 159) & H A
costs (including Directors’ remuneration) were HK$288.5 ZEBE WAFE “LETIXA (BREEEHE)
million (2020: HK$192.2 million) for the Year. Employees’ /4288,500,000/% Jt (20204 : 192,200,000/
remuneration was determined in accordance with individual's  7T) {8 B 3Bl J3 iR 35 (8 A B & ~ 55 1 S sl
responsibility, competence and skills, experience and &KHBREXRBUNTSHFHKFEFEFE -8 TEF
performance as well as market pay level. Staff benefits BEBERASRER EREALREMARS
include medical and life insurance, retirement benefits and |4 1&F{Fi8 °

other competitive fringe benefits.

To provide incentive or rewards to staff, the Company ZARQBBERM—AEESIUSEIER S
adopted a share option scheme, particulars of which are set T - ﬁ%’ﬂ NeR & IR 5130 (Bt
out in the section headed “Share Option Scheme” in note 30 &l ] — &% &

to the consolidated financial statements.

B 5L G BE R 87 A R A W] EMPEROR WATCH & JEWELLERY LIMITED 1
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES

EHRAFBBTBEANBZEE

CINDY YEUNG, aged 57, an Executive Director of the Company
and the Chairperson of the Board as well as the Chairperson
of the Executive Committee of the Company and a director of
certain subsidiaries of the Company. She joined the Group in
September 1990 and became a director of Emperor Watch &
Jewellery (HK) Company Limited, an operating arm of the retail
outlets of the Group in Hong Kong, in April 1999. Ms. Yeung
has over 30 years of experience in watch and jewellery industry.
She has obtained the qualification of the Graduate Gemologist
of Gemological Institute of America (GIA) and subsequently
graduated from University of San Francisco with a Bachelor’s
Degree of Science in Business Administration majoring in
Management, with emphasis on International Business.

Ms. Yeung is a member of the 13th Chinese People Political
Consultative Conference Guangzhou Committee and an
executive committee member of Hong Kong Federation of
Guangzhou Associations Limited. She is also a member of the
Supervisory Committee of Hong Kong Jewellers’ & Goldsmiths'
Association Limited and the honorary ambassador of “Because
| am a Girl” organized by a charity body, PLAN International
Hong Kong.

I B S 8k Bk B0 B 2 W] EMPEROR WATCH & JEWELLERY LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 202 14E
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES
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NG KOON KEUNG, RICKY, aged 53, an Executive Director
of the Company and the Chief Executive Officer of the
Group, as well as a member of the Executive Committee of
the Company and a director of certain subsidiaries of the
Company. Mr. Ng joined the Group since July 2021. He is
responsible for the Group’s strategic planning, business
growth and development and overseeing different business
operations within the Group. Mr. Ng possesses over 25
years of extensive corporate management experience in
retail, product planning, operations, marketing and business
development. He was an executive director and chief
executive officer of Ulferts International Limited (Stock Code:
1711) (“Ulferts”), a listed member of Emperor Group, from
1 May 2014 to 30 June 2021. Mr. Ng holds a Bachelor of
Business Administration awarded by Hong Kong Baptist
College (now Hong Kong Baptist University). He also holds a
Degree of Master of Management in Marketing Management
and a Degree of Master of Business Administration awarded
by Macquaire University, Sydney, Australia.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

WONG CHI FAI, aged 66, an Executive Director of the
Company. Mr. Wong has been involved in the management
of the Group since November 1998. He is a member of the
Executive Committee and Remuneration Committee of the
Company as well as a director of certain subsidiaries of the
Company. Currently, Mr. Wong is also a director of Emperor
International Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 163) (“Emperor
International”), Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited (Stock
Code: 296) (“Emperor E Hotel”), Emperor Culture Group
Limited (Stock Code: 491) (“Emperor Culture”) and Ulferts,
all being listed members of Emperor Group. Having over 30
years of finance and management experience, Mr. Wong has
diversified experience in different businesses ranging from
retailing of watch and jewellery, property investment and
development, hotel and hospitality, financial and securities
services, cinema development and operation to entertainment
production and investment, artiste management, wholesaling
and retailing of furniture as well as media and publication. He
is a Certified Public Accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and a fellow of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants.

FAN MAN SEUNG, VANESSA (Former Name. Fan Man
Seung), aged 59, an Executive Director of the Company.
Ms. Fan has been involved in the management of the
Group since November 1998. She is also the Chairperson
of the Corporate Governance Committee, a member of the
Executive Committee and Nomination Committee of the
Company as well as a director of certain subsidiaries of the
Company. Currently, Ms. Fan is also a director of Emperor
International, Emperor E Hotel, Emperor Culture and Ulferts.
Having over 33 years of corporate management experience,
Ms. Fan possesses diversified experience in different
businesses ranging from retailing of watch and jewellery,
property investment and development, hotel and hospitality,
financial and securities services, cinema development and
operation to entertainment production and investment, artiste
management, wholesaling and retailing of furniture as well
as media and publication. She is a lawyer by profession in
Hong Kong and a qualified accountant, and holds a Master’s
Degree in Business Administration.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

CHAN SIM LING, IRENE, aged 59, was appointed as
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company in
May 2016. She is also the Chairperson of the Nomination
Committee as well as a member of the Audit Committee
and Corporate Governance Committee of the Company. Ms.
Chan is a retired solicitor with over 20 years of experience
as independent non-executive director of various listed
companies. Currently, She is also an independent non-
executive director of Chinlink International Holdings Limited
(Stock Code: 997) and Emperor Culture. Ms. Chan graduated
from The University of Hong Kong with Bachelor's Degree in
Laws.

LIU HING HUNG, aged 58, was appointed as Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company-in May 2017. He
is also the Chairman of the Audit Committee as well as a
member of the Remuneration Committee and Corporate
Governance Committee of the Company. Mr. Liu runs a
professional accountancy firm in Hong Kong and has over
20 years of experience in accounting, taxation, auditing and
corporate finance. Currently, he is also an independent non-
executive director of SIM Technology Group Limited (Stock
Code: 2000). Mr. Liu holds a Master's Degree in Business
Administration. He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Taxation
Institute of Hong Kong and also a member of the Society of
Chinese Accountants and Auditors.

CHAN WILING, YVONNE, aged 57, was appointed as
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company in May
2017. She is the Chairperson of the Remuneration Committee
as well as a member of the Audit Committee and Nomination
Committee of the Company. Ms. Chan previously worked
in two international accounting firms, Touche Ross & Co.
and Ernst & Young and engaged in accounting, auditing
and information security fields for 20 years. She graduated
from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University majoring in
accountancy and obtained a Master's Degree in Business
Administration from Heriot-Watt University in Scotland. Ms.
Chan is an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.
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Bk 2R

Elite Brand Elite Watch & Jewellery Award
Awards 2021 AR BRI E A8

ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁj{ﬁ 2021 %rji;rélt%;Daily News

The Outstanding
Brand Awards 2021

B mhE A% 2021

Luxury Watch Retailer and

The 7th Investor Relations Awards 2021 T —

20V FFLEREEBEANE

HEBIERITR
ENN-LI N
Best Investor Relations Company (Small Cap) Economic Digest
REREEBERR] /DK e
Best Investor Relations Material (Small Cap)
REREEBEREM /MK

Best Investor Relations Officer (Small Cap) . —— ja— - ».

EREEREEE /AR
Best Investor Relations Team (Small Cap)

REREEBEER /K

Hong Kong Investor Relations Association

BERREEREHS

10 Years+
Caring Company 0
105+ m TR S

coring = .
Hong Kong Service Luxury Watch Retailer
B R /\\vards 2021 HEEBERAT

RETI

- = el 00215 & B RIS A 12 Fast Week

16 Y28 A PR 2 7 EMPEROR WATCH & JEWELLERY LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 202 14E #t



The Board is pleased to present this annual report and the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 35 to
the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page 67.

An interim dividend of HK0.55 cent (2020: Nil) per share for
the Year amounting to approximately HK$37.3 million was
paid to the Shareholders during the Year.

The Directors recommended the payment of a final dividend
of HK0.35 cent per share for the Year (2020: HKO.15 cent per
share) to those Shareholders whose names appear on the
register of members on 2 June 2022 (Thursday), subject to
the approval of the Shareholders at the forthcoming annual
general meeting to be held on 26 May 2022 (Thursday) (“2022
AGM™).

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PERFORMANCE

A fair review of the Group’s business, a discussion and
analysis of the Group’s performance during the Year and
an analysis of the likely future development of the Group’s
business are set out in the Management Discussion and
Analysis from pages 5 to 11. Description of the principal
risks and uncertainties facing the Group are set out in the
Corporate Governance Report from pages 51 to 55 and note
28B to the consolidated financial statements respectively.

There is no important event affecting the Group that had
occurred since the end of the Year up to the date of this
report.

In addition, discussion on the Group’s environmental policies
and performance, key relationships with the Company’s key
stakeholders as well as compliance with relevant laws and
regulations which have significant impact on the Company
are set out in the 2021 Environmental, Social and Governance
Report of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
£ -8 8

EFEMAREAEEARAFE 2 ERLERE
AR B MR o

B F ¥
ARTA—MRAZRAF HEEMBAR
2 EHHNG S BB REM IS -

Zl

SR8,
AEERAFEZEEHNFOTAZHEA R
KEMEEBRARE -

RAFEARRBRARREKNAEEZ$
Hi B B 8 BX0.5578 il (20204 « &) - K 4
37,300,000/% 7T °

BEEHMMN2022F6 828 (EHM) &5 %
RELM 2z BREIRMNSER.35E 2 REF K
HARS B (20204F - " A%0. 155 1l) - HEBFIRE
R2022F5 8268 (EHM) &7 7 EEKRERE
FREG ([2022 8 FBAFKRE]|) EHERE A
EE -

7 Il g J 2R Bl
RAFERNAEEEB 2 AFLEZ AEERX
MZAmBEIMEANEEBER 2 ATRERKER
AWM BRESEMEZERENRED T
AEBEBRZEIEZRBATERERZFHB D
RIPIS R ES1ESSHE Z D EEAREREASH
% & ft 52288 ©

RAFEREEABRESHRMERLEZELRE
BOEEEM-

AN BERAREREBEMKRE 25w &
ARREBHMEZERZBENMNETEHARR]
BEAZENHBEAR AR E N AR F2021

RE HE@REARERN-

B 5L G 8K R B0 A PR A W] EMPEROR WATCH & JEWELLERY LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 202 14E #}

17




18

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
-8 o

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the
Year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity on page 70.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to
Shareholders as at 31 December 2021, calculated in
accordance with the Companies Ordinance, amounted to
HK$1,175,756,000 (2020: HK$1,059,066,000).

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 168
of this annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company
during the Year are set out in note 25 to the consolidated
financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the changes in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the Year are set out in note 13 to the
consolidated financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the Year, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s listed securities.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Year, the aggregate sales to the Group’s five
largest customers accounted for approximately 2.4% (2020:
3.6%) of the total turnover of the Group. The Group’s five
largest suppliers contributed to approximately 96.3% (2020:
95.9%) of the purchases of the Group during the Year.

None of the Directors, their close associates or any
Shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors,
owns more than 5% of the number of issued Shares) had
any beneficial interest in the above major customers and
suppliers of the Group.
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DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this report
were:

Executive Directors

Ms. Cindy Yeung (Chairperson)

Mr. Ng Koon Keung, Ricky (Chief Executive Officer)
(Appointed on 1 July 2021)

Mr. Wong Chi Fai

Ms. Fan Man Seung, Vanessa

Independent Non-executive Directors

Ms. Chan Sim Ling, Irene
Mr. Liu Hing Hung
Ms. Chan Wiling, Yvonne

Biographical details of the Directors as at the date of this
report are set out from pages 12 to 15 of this report. Details
of Directors’ remuneration are set out in note 9 to the
consolidated financial statements.

In accordance with Article 79 of the Company's Articles
of Association (“Articles”), Mr. Ng Koon Keung, Ricky who
was appointed by the Board during the Year shall hold
office only until the next following annual general meeting of
the Company to be held on 26 May 2022 (i.e. 2022 AGM);
whereas pursuant to Articles 80(1) and 80(3) of the Articles,
Mr. Wong Chi Fai and Mr. Liu Hing Hung shall retire by
rotation at the AGM. All of them, being eligible, shall offer
themselves for re-election thereat.

None of the Directors offering themselves for re-election
at the 2022 AGM has an unexpired service contract
with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment
of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts, other than employment contracts, concerning
the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of the Group’s business were entered into or
existed during the Year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

During the Year and up to the date of this report, the
Company has in force the permitted indemnity provisions
which are provided for in the Company’s Articles and in the
directors and officers liability insurance maintained for the
Group in respect of potential liability and costs associated
with legal proceedings that may be brought against the
directors of the Group.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ HHEAEEITBANBZ BHER
INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2021, the interests and short positions H2021F12A831H EERARAIZ &= TH
of the Directors and chief executives of the Company in the BRARNAIREBEEZE (ERALE %*&HE
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company 1§ ([EHF M EEH]]) EXVEL) Z B %D

and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part #8 E@Hxﬁ&ﬁ%?ﬁ¢%ﬁﬁ$ 77@?)?@%&3}1
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)) as & & J%3521I5<2/\%1%T213uﬂﬂﬁﬁﬁpﬂﬁ‘ZﬁE

recorded in the register maintained by the Company pursuant @I MAR B BEA R G IRMN 2 EFHEITE

to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the X5 ZZ%# #E'J(r++1$ﬁ$§f$EE§%¢E'JJ)
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model ZBRITHIEARAN T2 R AR ¢
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors adopted by the

Company (“EWJ Securities Code”) were as follows:

(a) Long position interests in the Company (a) RAEQRFAZHERER
Ordinary shares of the Company (“Shares”) AREZEBR ([KRF])
Number of % of issued
Name of Director Capacity/Nature of interests Shares Interested Voting Shares
HE BT
= BB EREE BEERZROAHEE BEREERHD%
Ms. Cindy Yeung Eligible beneficiary of 4,298,610,000 63.41%
5 il B 2L a private discretionary trust
MWARBERZEERI @A
Note: These Shares were held by Emperor Watch & Jewellery Wit WERGDAREEHHREEEIERE
Group Holdings Limited (“Emperor W&J Holdings”), RAR([REEFKBEZER]EF E
a wholly-owned subsidiary of Albert Yeung Watch & RGEXRERKREERBER AR ([5X
Jewellery Holdings Limited (“AY W&J Holdings”). AY W&J RERKEER] ) 22ENBRATR 15
Holdings was held by First Family Advisors Trust reg. SZREGFKEERBAGZNE L ([1H1E
(“First Family”) in trust for a private discretionary trust set 1 ]) B BIFirst Family Advisors Trust
up by Dr. Yeung Sau Shing, Albert (“Dr. Albert Yeung”) reg. ([First Family ]) LAFL A BB E 5T
under which Ms. Cindy Yeung had deemed interest by EARFE mMEwBXTAE éTuxﬁn

virtue of being one of the eligible beneficiaries. AZ ==
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(b) Long position interests in associated (b) RAEQATHEBIEZIFE#R
corporations of the Company -
(i)  Ordinary Shares (i) BBER .

Capacity/Nature of Number of % of issued S—
Name of Director Name of associated corporation interests shares interested Voting shares
HERT
EEfg RBEEER 9/ BEEE REREZROUE  BREERD%
Ms. Cindy Yeung Emperor International Holdings Limited ~ Eligible beneficiary 2,747,610,489 74.71%
BHENT (“Emperor International”) of a private (Notg)
H2%E (ER)BRAR discretionary trust (W)
([REER]) RABBRETLZ
CR-LEEIN
Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited -ditto- 851,352,845 7111%
(“Emperor E Hotel”) -fL- (Note)
AEREBERRA (Hit)
([ESREEE J)
Emperor Culture Group Limited -ditto- 2,371,313,094 73.80%
(“Emperor Culture Group”) —RE- (Note)
REVCEREEFRAT (Hit)
([REXILEE])
Ulferts International Limited (“Ulferts”) -ditto- 600,000,000 75.00%
BItERBRAR ([BL]) —Rt- (Note)
(Hiit)
Ms. Fan Man Seung, ~ Emperor International Beneficial Owner 10,500,000 0.29%
Vanessa HEER ERERA
BEELT
(ii)  Debentures (i) EEF
Amount of
Name of Director Name of associated corporation  Capacity/Nature of interests debentures held
BEns REEEER 56/ EEME At EokR
Mr. Wong Chi Fai Emperor International Interest of a controlled corporation HK$2,000,000
BEREE HEER RREHEE 2 ER 2,000,000 7T
Note: Emperor International, Emperor E Hotel, Emperor Bid: REFEE RBRE[E K2
Culture Group and Ulferts are companies with AL EE 2 R B AR D PABE X
their shares listed on the Stock Exchange. These FrEmzRal -ZERNDTIEAE
Shares were ultimately owned by the respective BAFARBEIEREER -ER
private discretionary trusts. Ms. Cindy Yeung had GHEZTARBRALATIBES
deemed interests in the same shares by virtue BERZEAZ — BMEHER
of being one of the eligible beneficiaries of such REMROPHEEEZR-
private discretionary trusts.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, none of
the Directors nor chief executives of the Company had any
interests or short positions in any Shares, underlying Shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO).

SHARE OPTIONS

The Company has adopted a share option scheme (“Share
Option Scheme”) on 23 May 2018. Particulars of the Share
Option Scheme are summarized and set out in note 30 to the
consolidated financial statements. No option was granted,
exercised, cancelled or lapsed under the Share Option
Schemes since its adoption.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than the Share Option Scheme as disclosed in note
30 to the consolidated financial statements, no equity-linked
agreements were entered into by the Company during the
Year or subsisted at the end of the Year.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than as stated above, at the end of the Year and at
no time during the Year was the Company, any of its holding
companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries, a party to any
arrangements to enable the Directors or chief executives of
the Company or their spouses or children under 18 years
of age to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
Shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

As at 31 December 2021, none of the Directors or their
respective close associates was interested in any business
which was considered to compete or was likely to compete,
either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group as
required to be disclosed pursuant to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”).
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OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES

So far as is known to any Directors or chief executives of
the Company, as at 31 December 2021, the persons or
corporations (other than a Director or chief executive of
the Company) who had, or were deemed or taken to have
interests and short positions in the Shares or underlying
Shares as recorded in the register required to be kept under
Section 336 of the SFO (“DI Register”) were as follows:

Long Position in the Shares

Name Capacity/Nature of interests
BB KA B RERtE

Emperor W&J Holdings Beneficial owner
EEFEERKREIER EnEA A

AY W&J Holdings

15X RSBERINE 2 REEHEE 2 s

First Family
trust

AABBEEZZEA

Dr. Albert Yeung
HEL

trust

FABIBEFEZEISIA

Ms. Luk Siu Man, Semon
(ZHN=F

Interest of spouse
Bt

Brandes Investment
Partners, L.P.

Investment Manager
KREKIE

These Shares were the same Shares as those set out under
Section (a) of “Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests in
Securities” above.

Note:

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, the
Directors or chief executives of the Company were not aware
of any person or corporation (other than the Directors and
chief executives of the Company) who had, or were deemed
or taken to have, any interests or short positions in any
Shares or underlying Shares as recorded in the DI Register.
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DIRECTORS” MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS IN SIGNIFICANCE AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Continuing Connected Transactions

During the Year, the Group had the following transactions
with connected persons (as defined in the Listing Rules) of
the Company and certain Director(s) had material interests,
directly or indirectly, in such transactions:

1 Master Leasing Agreements

(a) 2018 Master Leasing Agreements (“2018 MLAs")

Date: 24 May 2018

Parties: (1)  EIHL Agreement: The Company
and Emperor International

(2) EEH Agreement: The Company
and Emperor E Hotel

(Emperor International, Emperor
E Hotel and their subsidiaries are
collectively referred to as “Emperor
International Group”)

Term: From 24 May 2018 to 31 March 2021

Each of 2018 MLAs sets out the
framework of the terms governing
all existing and future tenancy/
licensing transaction(s) (“Tenancy
Transactions”) regarding leasing
of certain office properties or other
properties (including retail shop,
signage or signboard space) from
Emperor International Group with
aggregate tenancy annual caps being
set at HK$54,000,000 (for Emperor
International) and HK$1,500,000 (for
Emperor E Hotel) for the 3 months
ended 31 March 2021 (“Aggregate
Tenancy Annual Caps”).

Nature:
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Announcements:

Circular:

Aggregate
Amounts:

Pursuant to the 2018 MLAs, relevant
member(s) of the Group and Emperor
International Group may from time to
time enter into any definitive leasing
agreement in relation to any Tenancy
Transaction (“Definitive Leasing
Agreement(s)”). The terms of each
Definitive Leasing Agreement shall
be on normal commercial terms or on
terms which are no less favourable
to the Group than terms offered
by independent third parties. The
terms and rental shall be subject
to arm’s length negotiation and
determined based on the condition
of the properties and with reference
to the then prevailing market rents on
property(ies) comparable in location,
area and permitted use.

24 May 2018 and 9 August 2018

17 July 2018

For the period from 1 January 2021
to 31 March 2021, the aggregate
amounts paid to the following parties
in respect of the Tenancy Transactions
(which did not exceed the Aggregate
Tenancy Annual Caps for the said
period) were as follows:

Emperor International HK$17,416,000

Emperor E Hotel HK$1,181,000
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(b) 2020 Master Leasing Agreements (“2020 MLAs")

Date:

Parties:

Term:

Nature:

Announcements:

Circular:

Aggregate

Amounts:

ANNUAL REPORT 202 14E #t

3 December 2020

(1) EIHL Agreement: The Company
and Emperor International

(2) EEH Agreement: The Company
and Emperor E Hotel

From 1 April 2021 to 31 March 2024

With the expiration of the 2018
MLAs, the Company entered into
new master leasing agreements,
i.e. 2020 MLAs, with Emperor
International and Emperor E Hotel to
recite the parties’ agreement for the
Tenancy Transactions between them
with new aggregate tenancy annual
caps for each of the 9 months ended
31 December 2021, the years ending
31 December 2022 and 2023 and
the 3 months ending 31 March 2024

3 December 2020 and 2 February
2021

24 December 2020

For the period from 1 April 2021 to
31 December 2021, the aggregate
right-of-use amount and rental
expense amount paid in respect
of the Tenancy Transactions with
Emperor International Group (which
did not exceed the approved
right-of-use annual cap of
HK$100,000,000 and rental expense
annual cap of HK$4,000,000
respectively for the said period)
were as follows:
Right-of-use HK$31,037,000

Rental expense HK$1,705,000
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)

(c)  Connected Relationship and Directors’ Interest
under (a) and (b)

As Emperor International and Emperor E Hotel
were both indirectly controlled by a private
discretionary trust set up by Dr. Albert Yeung
who is a deemed substantial shareholder
of the Company, Emperor International and
Emperor E Hotel were deemed connected
persons of the Company under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules. Ms. Cindy Yeung, a Director
of the Company, has deemed interest in the
transactions by virtue of being one of the eligible
beneficiaries of such private discretionary trust
controlling Emperor International and Emperor E
Hotel.

Consignment Agreement with Dr. Albert Yeung

The Group may at its discretion make consignment
arrangements with Dr. Albert Yeung and his associates
and sell the consigned items at is retail shops as the
Directors may think fit and beneficial to the Group.

Date: 15 November 2019
Parties: (1)  The Company

(2) Dr. Albert Yeung, the father of
Ms. Cindy Yeung (a Director of
the Company)

Term: 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2022

Consignment Annual  HK$50,000,000
Cap for the Year:

Consignment During the Year, certain watch and
for the Year: jewellery items with an aggregate
consignment value of HK$15,235,000
from Dr. Albert Yeung and his
associate were recorded. The Group
had applied the same purchasing and
retail pricing policy and mechanism to
these items as those normally adopted
in the ordinary and usual course of
business of the Group. No sale of
these items were made during the
Year.
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Compliance with Disclosure Requirements

Among the related party transactions as set out in note 32
to the consolidated financial statements, the transactions
as shown in item (7) are non-exempt continuing connected
transactions (“Disclosed CCTs") and that the Company had
complied with the disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules.

Auditor’s Letter on Disclosed CCTs

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the
Group's Disclosed CCTs in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised)
“Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews
of Historical Financial Information” and with reference to
Practice Note 740 (Revised) “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules”
(“Auditor’'s Letter”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants.

The auditor has issued an unqualified letter containing its
findings and conclusions in respect of the Disclosed CCTs
of the Group as set out from pages 24 to 27 of this Annual
Report in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules.
A copy of the Auditor's Letter had been provided by the
Company to the Stock Exchange.

Confirmation of Independent Non-executive Directors
on Disclosed CCTs

Pursuant to Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the independent
non-executive directors of the Company (“INEDs”) had
reviewed the Disclosed CCTs and the Auditor's Letter and
confirmed that these transactions had been entered into by
the Group:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group;

(i) on normal commercial terms or better (as the case may
be); and

(iii)  according to the agreements governing them on terms
that were fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Shareholders as a whole.
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Save as disclosed above, there was no transaction,
arrangement or contract which was significant in relation to
the Group’s business to which the Company or any of its
holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a
party and in which a Director or his/her connected entity had
a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the Year or at any time during the Year,

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company had received from each of the INEDs an annual
confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. The Company considered all of the INEDs are
independent.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument of the Directors shall be decided by the
Board as recommended by the Remuneration Committee
having regard to a written remuneration policy (which ensures
a clear link of business strategy and a close alignment
with the Shareholders’ interest and current market best
practice). Remuneration should be paid with reference to the
Board's corporate goals and objectives, the salaries paid by
comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities
of the Executive and Non-executive Directors, internal equity
of employment conditions across the Group and applicability
of performance based remuneration. The Director’s fees are
paid fees in line with market practice. No individual should
determine his or her own remuneration.

Employees’ remuneration was determined in accordance
with individual's responsibility, competence and skills,
experience and performances as well as market pay level.
Remuneration package includes, as the case may be, basic
salaries, Directors’ fees, contribution to pension schemes,
discretionary bonus relating to financial performance of the
Group and individual performance, ad-hoc rewards, share
options and other competitive fringe benefits such as medical
and life insurances. Details of the emoluments of the Directors
and the five highest paid individuals in the Group are set out
in note 9 to the consolidated financial statements.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company are set out in the Corporate Governance Report
from pages 31 to 59.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the latest
practicable date prior to the issue of this annual report, there
was sufficient public float of at least 25% of the Company
issued Shares as required under the Listing Rules.

AUDITOR

Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu will retire and, being
eligible, offer itself for re-appointment at the 2022 AGM. A
resolution for its re-appointment as auditor of the Company
will be proposed thereat.

On behalf of the Board

Cindy Yeung
Chairperson

Hong Kong, 23 March 2022
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Board is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance for the Company so as to ensure
“Accountability, Responsibility and Transparency” towards
shareholders, stakeholders, investors as well as employees of
the Company.

The Board of the Company has adopted various policies to
ensure compliance with the code provisions of the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) under Appendix 14 of the
Listing Rules.

The Company had fully complied with all code provisions of
the CG Code under Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules (see
further elaboration under section headed “Chairperson and
CEO” below).

THE BOARD
Board Composition

As at 31 December 2021, the Board comprised seven
Directors (four Executive Directors and three INEDs) who
possess the skills, experience and expertise either in the
same industry or relevant to the management of the business
of the Group. The biographies of the Directors are set out
on pages 12 to 15 of this report under the “Biographies of
Directors and Senior Executives” section.

Chairperson and CEO

Code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the
roles of chairman and chief executive should be separate.
Following the appointment of Mr. Ng Koon Keung, Ricky
(“Mr. Ng”) as Executive Director of the Company on 1 July
2021, Ms. Cindy Yeung continues her role as Chairperson of
the Board while Mr. Ng takes up the role of Chief Executive
Officer of the Group. Since then, the Company had fully
complied will all the CG Code during the Year.

Independent Non-executive Directors

The INEDs are all professionals with well recognized
experience and expertise in legal, accounting or auditing
fields who contribute impartial view and make independent
judgment on issues to be discussed at Board meetings. The
terms of the INEDs are subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election provisions under the Articles of Association of the
Company and the Listing Rules.

The Company had received confirmation of independence
from each of the INEDs. Based on the annual review
conducted by the Nomination Committee, the Board
considered each of them to be independent with reference
to the factors as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
INEDs had been expressly identified as such in all corporate
communications of the Company that disclose the names of
Directors.
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Delegation to the Management

The management is led by the Executive Committee of the
Company (comprising all the Executive Directors of the
Board) who has been delegated to carry out the day-to-day
management and operation of the Group, formulate business
policies and make decision on key business issues. The
Executive Committee shall have all powers and authorities
of the Board except the following major matters as set out in
a “Formal Schedule on matters specifically reserved for and
delegated by the Board”:

° determining the Group’s objectives and strategies;

° approving annual and interim results and financial
reporting;

o declaring or recommending payment of dividends or

other distributions;

° approving major changes that require notification by
announcement under the Listing Rules;

o approving publication of the announcement for
notifiable transactions (except for discloseable
transactions in relation to lease transactions recognizing
the right-of-use asset according to HKFRS 16 “Leases”)
under the Listing Rules;

o approving non-exempt connected transactions; and

° approving major capital restructuring and issue of new
securities of the Company.

Induction, Support and Professional Development of
Directors

All Directors have been given relevant guideline materials
regarding the duties and responsibilities of being a
Director, the relevant laws and regulations applicable to
the Directors, duty of disclosure of equity and business
interest in the Group and such induction materials will also
be provided to newly appointed Directors shortly upon
their appointment as Directors. All Directors have been
updated on the latest developments regarding the Listing
Rules and other applicable regulatory requirement to ensure
compliance and enhance their awareness of good corporate
governance practices. There is a procedure agreed by
the Board to enable Directors, upon reasonable request,
to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expenses in order to assist
them to perform their duties to the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Directors confirmed that they had complied with the
Code provision C.1.4 of the CG Code on Directors’ training.
During the Year, each Director had participated in continuous
professional development by attending seminars/workshops/
reading materials on the following topics to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills and provided a record of
training to the Company.

Name of Directors
EEnE

Ms. Cindy Yeung (1)
BBt

Mr. Ng Koon Keung, Ricky (2)
RE 98 % &

Mr. Wong Chi Fai (3)
mEELE

Ms. Fan Man Seung, Vanessa (4)
SeHE

Ms. Chan Sim Ling, Irene

PRIE IS 2+

Mr. Liu Hing Hung

BB R E

Ms. Chan Wiling, Yvonne

PRER X+

Relationship between the Board Members

None of the members of the Board has any relationship
(including financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relations) among each other.

Directors’ insurance

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in
respect of any legal action against the directors of the Group.
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Directors’ attendance and time commitment EECHEBAEREBEBERA

The attendance of the Directors at the meetings during the AFEZEEHFENIEZZ2BRWOT :
Year is set out below:

-
— Number of meetings attended/held
HEEE ETEERY
Corporate
Audit Remuneration Nomination Governance  Executive General
Board Committee Committee  Committee  Committee = Committee Meetings
JJ:¥ B /l:l
Name of Directors EE# % EZe ERZEE ¥FMEEE REZEE ZEBg #HTZEE REXE
Executive Directors
TES
Ms. Cindy Yeung (Note 1)
BHER T (H#1) 6/6 - - - - 5/5 2/2
Mr. Ng Koon Keung, Ricky
(appointed on 1 July 2021)

REBEE (R2021F7F1HEZF) 2/2 - - - - 2/2 -
Mr. Wong Chi Fai
BEEELE 6/6 - 2/2 - - 5/5 2/2
Ms. Fan Man Seung, Vanessa (Note 2)
BRER L (M2 6/6 - - 2/2 11 5/5 2/2
Independent Non-executive Directors
BUKBITES
Ms. Chan Sim Ling, Irene (Note 3)

BER Lt (W3 6/6 3/3 - 2/2 11 - 2/2
Mr. Liu Hing Hung (Note 4)

BEMEE (Hit4) 6/6 3/3 2/2 - 11 - 2/2
Ms. Chan Wiling, Yvonne (Note 5)

BER LT (W) 6/6 3/3 2/2 2/2 - - 2/2

Total number of meetings held:
BTedzAy: 6 3 2 2 1 5 2

Notes: Hiat -
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During the Year, the Chairperson held a meeting with INEDs RAFERN  fEREHRITE
without the presence of Executive Directors in compliance 1RIE{MEE AT BISFAIIEX
with code provision C.2.7 of the CG Code. FREBIENITEFTRT

EHEMNBAT
FC2THEMNIBEE
T //’Z@n%"

The Board has reviewed the contribution required from each %%"\E*ﬁi‘fxﬁiﬁ/\ﬁﬁﬁ‘ﬁ$’&ﬂ2%€§
Director to perform his/her responsibilities to the Company KEELNEE WTEMNZIEZTENAFER
and is satisfied that each Director has been spending ARHAEHE EBITERE-

sufficient time in performing his/her responsibilities during the

Year.
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Board Meetings and Proceedings

Regular Board meetings were held at approximately quarterly
intervals. The Directors have access to the advice and
services of the Company Secretary and key officers of
the company secretarial team for ensuring that the Board
procedures, all applicable rules and regulations are followed.

With the assistance of the Company Secretary, the meeting
agenda is set by the Chairperson of the Board in consultation
with other Board members. Board meeting notice was
sent to the Directors at least 14 days prior to each regular
Board meeting. For all other board meetings, reasonable
notice was given. Board papers and related materials which
provide appropriate, accurate, clear, complete and reliable
information are generally sent to all Directors and relevant
committee members at least 3 days before each Board
meeting and Board Committee meeting (or other agreed
period) to enable the Directors to make informed decisions.

Minutes of Board meetings and Board committee meetings
are drafted by the secretary of the meetings and recorded
in sufficient details the matters considered and decisions
reached, with draft and final versions being circulated to the
Directors for their comment and records respectively, within
reasonable time after the meetings are held. Originals of such
minutes, being kept by the Company Secretary, are open for
inspection at any reasonable time on reasonable notice by
any Director.

If a Director has conflict of interest in a matter to be
considered by the Board which the Board has determined to
be material, the matter will be dealt with by a physical Board
meeting rather than a written resolution. That Director will
abstain from voting on the relevant Board resolution in which
he/she or any of his/her associates has a material interest and
he/she shall not be counted in the quorum present at such
Board meeting. INEDs, who, and whose close associates,
have no material interest in the transaction are present at that
Board meeting.
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Board Committees

To assist the Board in execution of its duties and facilitate
effective management, certain functions of the Board have
been delegated by the Board to the Executive Committee,
Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee, Nomination
Committee and Corporate Governance Committee.

All members of the Audit Committee and majority members
of the Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee
are INEDs. Clear written terms of reference of all the Board
Committees are given to the respective members of these
Committees. Details of the Board Committees as at 31
December 2021 are set out below:

1. Executive Committee (set up on 22 October 2014)

The Executive Committee consists of all the Executive
Directors, namely Ms. Cindy Yeung (Chairperson
of the Committee), Mr. Ng Koon Keung, Ricky (“Mr.
Ricky Ng”), Mr. Wong Chi Fai and Ms. Fan Man
Seung, Vanessa. The primary duties of the Executive
Committee are (a) formulating business policies and
making decision (including entering into transactions)
on matters relating to the management and day-to-
day operations of the Group; (b) making and reviewing
corporate/financial/treasury planning, investment
and operation strategy of the Group; (c) discussing
and approving any financial, borrowing, charging
and guarantee commitment to be made or on behalf
of the Group; (d) approving transactions, including
discloseable transactions, exempted connected
transactions and non-exempt continuing connected
transactions which took place from time to time under
the master agreement(s) previously approved by the
Board/Shareholders (as the case may be) under the
Listing Rules; (e) approving any publication of relevant
announcement for discloseable transaction in relation
to lease transaction recognizing the right-of-use assets
by the Company as lessee according to HKFRS 16
“Leases”; and (f) having all power and authorities
as that the Board except those matters specifically
reserved for the full Board as set out in the “Formal
Schedule on matters reserved for and delegated by the
Board” adopted by the Board from time to time.

36 R FEEERE A R A W EMPEROR WATCH & JEWELLERY LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 202 14E #t

EXZET

RO EEFERTERERREARER &
FELTHHECHESEZRTHTRZES:
ERZBe FMEZES RBZBEEMER

SR 2 4
EREBEE-

EZZEENEENE FHNZESGRREZR
BEeAZHKEABIYINTEZ -FTEES
LEgZFWERRESEECREHTLHEEZSE
SR BEKE -R2021FE12A31BMESEEE
SHBEHIOT

1 HITEEE (K2014F10522H £ 17)

ATZEBEHEBATESHEK ED
MREHIEXL (ZREEEE) RER
FE(TREE]) BTEERERBHIE
KL - HITZEECTERER@QME
AEEEERBREEABCEENE
EBBRRELRE (BREETRS)
(D)FIE R AER 2 % % E
BRE RE R EERE: (c)adm Mt
HEERARRE SR RANEE S E 2 /75
BE WEBERREERE: AHRERS -
BREITRAABEBTZATRERS %
REBERHRIBBEHESTE MR
(RIBAME ) B 2 AR ZE T TRETT
ZHBRBEBEBERS: (e)REFEMN
BimEERFE165 [HE | AR AQ
Al (EREBAN)NERREENHER
Z HETIEZENERATEER SN
HEAAE ROEBESS2MARD
LE# HEFETRRNZ [FEHE
FEFRTLHESEREIFHELZL
AEEEXRIAHETHERESRTS
EIRTE Z FHBRIN



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Audit Committee (set up on 19 June 2008)

The Audit Committee consists of three INEDs, namely
Mr. Liu Hing Hung (Chairman of the Committee), Ms.
Chan Sim Ling, Irene and Ms. Chan Wiling, Yvonne.

The specific written terms of reference of the Audit
Committee is available on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company. The Audit Committee is
primarily responsible for (a) making recommendations
to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment and
removal of the external auditor; (b) reviewing and
monitoring the external auditor’'s independence and
objectivity and effectiveness of the audit process; (c)
approving the remuneration and terms of engagement
of external auditor; and (d) reviewing financial
information and overseeing the financial reporting
system, risk management and internal control systems.
The Audit Committee held three meetings during the
Year.

A summary of work performed by the Audit Committee
during the Year is set out as follows:

i reviewed with the management/finance personnel
and/or the external auditor the effectiveness of
audit process and the accounting policies and
principles adopted by the Group, the accuracy
and fairness of the annual consolidated financial
statements for the financial year ended 31
December 2020 (“Pervious Year”) and the interim
consolidated financial statements for the six
months ended 30 June 2021;

ii. reviewed with the senior management and
finance personnel the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems of the
Group during the Previous Year;

iii. performed annual review of the non-exempt
continuing connected transactions of the Group
for the Previous Year;

iv. recommended to the Board on the re-
appointment of external auditor at the 2021
annual general meeting (“2021 AGM"); and

V. approved the audit plan for the Year, reviewed
the independence of the external auditor and
approved its engagement.
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1 E IR
3.  Remuneration Committee (set up on 19 June 2008) 3. HFMZESE (RK2008F6H19AHK )

The Remuneration Committee consists of three FTHMEEEBR="RKEEK ED5lR
members, namely Ms. Chan Wiling, Yvonne BUBITESTHRERA L (X527
(Chairperson of the Committee) and Mr. Liu Hing Hung, E)HEEERHAERNITEETELTIEL
both being INEDs, and Mr. Wong Chi Fai, being an Ko

Executive Director.

FME B gz A8 E B E A R
RARARRREEN -FTMEES

TEBRERRQMERARAIZEELS
MERE 2 F B R MRE: (b)BILIE
HITEEZHM: RC)BENRATEE R
EREEBZREFMTBERAEESIR

The specific written terms of reference of the
Remuneration Committee is available on the websites
of the Stock Exchange and the Company. The
Remuneration Committee is primarily responsible for
making recommendations to the Board on (a) the
Company’s policy and structure of all remuneration of

Directors and senior management; (b) the remuneration HER - AFERZESZ2HFMNFBEHR
of INEDs; and (c) the specific remuneration IREMBRERWT -FMNEE SR AT

packages of individual Executive Directors and senior ERITTMREE-
management. Details of the remuneration of each of

the Directors for the Year are set out in note 9 to the

consolidated financial statements. The Remuneration

Committee held two meetings during the Year.

FINZEERNAFEARMETTZ TIEH

A summary of the work performed by the Remuneration

Committee during the Year is set out as follows:

i reviewed the Directors’ fees and made

recommendation to the Board;

ii. reviewed the current remuneration structure/
package of the Executive Directors and senior
management and recommended the Board to

approve their specific packages;

ZEHNT

BOEFNS LAEFERY
Ly

i BANTEEREREREZR
BHBRE S
Ly ARFMEBNEES RS
2

RO MESRERBHE LT

iii. reviewed and recommended the Board on the iii. 3
ZIEETEHMEE &

revised remuneration package of Ms. Cindy
Leung; and

AEFERZRTRBRLE (XK
B ERIRITESRITRES)
ZHBEFE -

iv. recommended the Board on the remuneration iv.
package of Mr. Ng Koon Keung, Ricky (the
newly appointed Executive Director and Chief
Executive Officer of the Group).
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Nomination Committee (set up on 19 March 2012)

The Nomination Committee consists of three members,
namely Ms. Chan Sim Ling, Irene (Chairperson of the
Committee) and Ms. Chan Wiling, Yvonne, both being
INEDs, and Ms. Fan Man Seung, Vanessa, being the
Executive Director.

The specific written terms of reference of the
Nomination Committee is available on the websites of
the Stock Exchange and the Company. The primary
duties of the Nomination Committee are (a) reviewing
the structure, size, composition and diversity of
the Board; (b) reviewing the Board Diversity Policy;
(c) determining the policy for the nomination of
Directors (“Nomination Policy”) and identifying
potential candidates for directorship; (d) assessing
the independence of INEDs; (e) reviewing the time
commitment of each Director in performing his/her
responsibilities; and (f) making recommendations to the
Board on the appointment, re-appointment, re-election
or re-designation of Directors and succession planning
for Directors. The Nomination Committee held two
meeting during the Year.

A summary of the work performed by the Nomination
Committee during the Year is set out as follows:

reviewed the structure, size, composition and
diversity of the Board;

ii. reviewed the independence of the INEDs;

jii. reviewed the confirmation from the Directors on
time commitment in performing their duties as
Directors:

V. made recommendation to the Board on the re-
election of Directors at the 2021 AGM; and

V. made recommendation to the Board on the
appointment of Mr. Ricky Ng as Executive
Director and Chief Executive Officer of the
Group.

B 5L G Bk BR 87 A PR A W] EMPEROR WATCH & JEWELLERY LIMITED 39

4.

1z € 16 e

EBEZESE (R2012E35198 KT )

REZBEH-_RKEAK ED 55
BIUFNTEETRER KL (ZEEZ
E)RARBELETMATETEHHEL
4o

RAZEGZABE MBS E R R
RARARRREEN - RHEES
IERER QRIEFTENRE A
g EETTIE OBRAEEFES T
LB : () EEEFRBBE (BRI
R EYEBEESFHEREA: (d)F%BE
VIFRTEENE LML RIBTEF
EETEBRERMRANERE: &3
EXZLE BEHZME EEXATULE
FRIFEIMETERIEZEZ -REZ
BEeNAEERITMAGH-

REZBEENAFEABRTZIIEHRE
;o

RN EETEMERE A -AKK
% it

i R B IERITES 2B

iii. RN EESHBETEEBEMEKRA
FrfE 2z ERE:

iv. BRI FEBFARAE LEEE
ERNEFEREERZE K

v. REEREERAEENTES
ROTBEHNEESREES-

ANNUAL REPORT 202 14E #}




CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
1 58 VA o

Board Diversity Policy

As adopted by the Board, the Board Diversity Policy
aims to achieve diversity on the Board in the broadest
sense in order to have a balance of skills, experience
and diversity of perspectives to the business nature of
the Company. Selection of candidates on the Board is
based on a range of diversity perspectives, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. The Nomination
Committee will also assess the merits and contribution
of any Director proposed for re-election or any
candidate nominated to be appointed as Director that
will bring to the Board against the objective criteria,
with due regard for the benefits of diversity on the
Board that would complement the Company’s corporate
strategy.

Nomination Policy

The Company had adopted a written Nomination Policy
of the Group which aims at assisting the Nomination
Committee in identifying and nominating suitable
candidates for directorship based on the Board
Diversity Policy and sets out the nomination criteria
and the nomination procedures for (i) nominating new
Director to fill a casual vacancy on the Board; (ii)
making recommendation to Shareholders regarding
any Director proposed for election or re-election at
general meeting; and (iii) nomination by Shareholders
on election of new Director.
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Corporate Governance Committee (set up on 19
March 2012)

The Corporate Governance Committee (“CG
Committee”) consists of five members, namely Ms. Fan
Man Seung, Vanessa (Chairperson of the Committee)
being an Executive Director, Ms. Chan Sim Ling,
Irene and Mr. Liu Hing Hung, both being INEDs, a
representative from company secretarial function and a
representative from finance and accounts function.

The specific written terms of reference of the CG
Committee is available on the website of the Company.
The primary duties of the CG Committee are (a)
reviewing the policies and practices on corporate
governance of the Company (“CG Policy”) and making
recommendations to the Board; (b) reviewing and
monitoring the policies and practices of the Company
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements
of the Company; (c) developing, reviewing and
monitoring the code of conduct applicable to Directors
and relevant employees of the Group on dealings in
the Company’s securities; (d) reviewing and monitoring
the training and continuous professional development
of Directors and senior management; and (e) reviewing
the Company’'s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in this report. The CG Committee held one
meeting during the Year.

A summary of the work performed by the CG
Committee during the Year is set out as follows:

reviewed the CG Policy and made recommendation
to the Board;

ii. reviewed the policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements;

iii. reviewed the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

iv. reviewed the said code of conduct applicable to
Directors and relevant employees of the Group;
and

V. reviewed the Company’s compliance with the CG
Code and disclosure in Corporate Governance
Report.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary whose appointment was approved by
the Board, plays an important role in supporting the Board for
ensuring good information flow within the Board and that the
Board policy and procedures are followed. She is responsible
for advising the Board on general duties and obligations of
Directors and good corporate governance issues, and has
facilitated induction and professional development of the
Directors. She has day-to-day knowledge of the Company’s
affairs.

During the Year, the Company Secretary had duly complied
with the relevant professional training requirement under Rule
3.29 of the Listing Rules.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS OF DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted EWJ Securities Code as its
own code of conduct regarding securities transactions
by Directors on no less exacting terms than the required
standards as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules
regarding the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”). Having made
specific enquiry to the Directors, all of them confirmed that
they had complied with the required standard of dealings
as set out in the Model Code and EWJ Securities Code
throughout the Year.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
Financial Reporting

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities to prepare
the annual consolidated financial statements of the Group and
other financial disclosures required under the Listing Rules.
The management has provided all members of the Board with
monthly updates on internal consolidated financial statements
which give a balanced and understandable assessment of
the Group’s performance, position and prospects as at the
reporting date.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements for
the Year, the Board had adopted appropriate accounting
policies and applied them consistently, made judgment and
estimates that were prudent and reasonable and ensured the
consolidated financial statements are prepared on a “going
concern” basis (with supporting assumptions or qualifications
as necessary) and showed a true view of the state of affairs
of the Group for the Year. The management had provided
sufficient explanation and information to the Board on the
consolidated financial statements to enable it to make an
informed assessment of the financial and other information
put before it for approval. The auditor of the Company had
made a statement about their reporting responsibilities in the
Independent Auditor’s Report.

I B S SR BB A B A W) EMPEROR WATCH & JEWELLERY LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 202 14E #t

A EH

AAREEEFERASE EASKERE
FEREEEAE URREFEABZ AN
TR R R HR RIL ST 1 B
EREEN—MBENEBURRTOLREE
AETAEEERHER YORDEEIM
EREEER-RHAAAZAEFHAMA
=

NAEER RARWNECEABT EHHELE
329 T 2 B EXEEIERTE -

ERZIHERG
ARFERNELBEGEESTAERLA

EEZER BREREAFEA-—BEETRESTEH
MEEEFREFES TR ZRERXZER -

[ B S A%
Bt 75 BE ¥R

E=ZNERFREERBUAKEZFEREMB
BREETRAUFAREZEMMBRESR-
RERAHN BEEEEBANEETEEEKE
RESFHZABEEWHHRER B AIRER
SFREFM TN RE 2 RE AR RATR

RRERFEESYBRRK EESCHMN
BRAZETRR YEBERZFBER EH
BERBEZHE kG WHRARLES VR
R (HELE | ZERE (RFERBH LEE
BEIREBER)REERRAKERAEE
ZHBRR-EEEENESSRHEUSES
MBEBRZADBERERN NEEEEM
HEERQEEIL 2 BB R L E R AB AT A
RRARZZEMERKET 2 ERE R BULZ
BB R ENIEL B -



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
1 58 VA

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL JE\ B 45 B R I B
CONTROL

Internal control is fundamental to the successful operation REBEEIETIRKINEEN B E EBEE2ER -
and day-to-day running of a business and it assists a BHARIEXNEEKEEZ-AEBTHEFHZ
company in achieving its business objectives. Internal control A EXHRELERF T ZEBMNNHARKBE IR
policies and procedures within the Group are updated RRAEPEEIERAG ([ELEG]) ZHERIELRIR
regularly with the primary objective of providing general #—&#E3IRER -

guidance and recommendations on a basic framework of

risk management and internal control systems (“Control

Systems”).

A. Goals and Objectives A. REREBE
The Board is responsible to ensure that the Group EEe 8 ERRAEERINERFEE
establishes and maintains appropriate and effective KA EZERS L°M#f%%’f‘§&%:f¥
Control Systems. Such systems are designed to mIEBRAREEXNEKEF ZRAR
manage rather than eliminate risks of failure to achieve BAMERERRANBREHRS f%ﬁﬁ
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable, EBEIRFE

but not absolute, assurance against material
misstatement or losses.

The key objectives of the Control Systems include: EERGzEEBERBRE:

. safeguarding assets; . RIEEE:

. ensuring completeness, accuracy and validity of . BRUELERERE 2T
financial records and reports; MR E M

. promoting adherence to policies, procedures, o REBTHEK BF ERRE
regulations and laws; and ]

. promoting effectiveness and efficiency of . {R 1 A8 2 e 1 R R o
operations.

A review has been conducted on (i) the Group’s ERUATARTETRS: (VAEBZA

internal control measures and procedures covering *IKE*¥ m&kﬁ BEMAEKRER

all material controls, including operational, financial BREEE MBRaFERE: RINEAA

and compliance controls; and (ii) risk management TERWEQTZH 0 TR B BE o

functions in the principal subsidiaries of the Company.
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B. Internal Control
(1)  Governance Control
The control structure of the Control Systems is
set out as follows:
The Board

o responsible for the overall Control Systems
and reviewing their effectiveness;

o oversee the Control Systems on an ongoing
basis with the assistance of Audit Committee;

o ensure maintenance of appropriate and
effective Control Systems;

° define management structure with clear
lines of responsibility and limit of authority;
and

o determine the nature and extent of

significant risks that the Company is
willing to take in achieving the strategic
objectives and formulate the Group’s risk
management strategies.

Audit Committee

o review and discuss the Control Systems
with the management annually to ensure
that the management has performed its
duty to have effective Control Systems.
This discussion includes the adequacy
of resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programmes and
budget of the Company’s accounting,
internal audit and financial reporting
functions; and

° consider major findings on internal control
matters (if any) raised by external auditor
and make recommendations to the Board.
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The management (includes Chief Executive EEE (GRFTHER ¥KE

Officer, heads of business units, departments W -BARSHBEE)

and divisions)

. design and implement the Control . R RERBSREEE
Systems’ policies and procedures duly FEESSEAEZER
endorsed by senior management and the ARBRERRERF:

Board;

. monitor the Control Systems properly and . HEEBEERG  WHER
ensure the Control Systems are executed ZERBBABRENT
effectively;

. monitor risks and take measures to . BS B R B 30 B BUHE 4 PR (K
mitigate risks in day-to-day operations; AE&ERE:

. give prompt responses to, and follow up . ¥ A EB 3k 1 BF A% EEM 12 B
the findings on internal control matters ZEBEANEEEE 2R
raised by internal or external auditors; and BEREDREFEE R

R &

. provide confirmation to the Board on the . MESERREZRRAZ
effectiveness of the Control Systems. BRI -

Internal Audit Department A B & S8 T

. carry out the analysis and independent . MEMBABEEREE BF
appraisal of adequacy and effectiveness EE - UBRERATEHE
of the Control Systems in respect of all ERGcRRERBESMN
material controls, including operational, ETON KRBT H%
financial and compliance aspects;

. alert the management on the audit review . MERERBERRE
findings or irregularities, if any, and advise RETHETR (VAR
them on the implementation of necessary REBVELBRITEMN
steps and actions to enhance the internal ReEArEE s AMBEZER
controls of the Group; and BEREER R

. report the results of internal audit reviews . THREZZESRES
and agreed action plans to the Audit EmENBEZRTER
Committee and the Board on a regular RS HEITEIRT S

basis.
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1 E IR
(2) Operational Control (2) EEERE
During the Year, the management had analyzed RAFEN BEEDLHERIR
the control environment, identified risks RREBBAD B RRED T
pertaining thereto, and implemented various WRt Lt B A N ZIEE %

controls therein as follows:

° Approach taken: The management
communicates with relevant staff, reviews
relevant documentation of the internal
control system and evaluates findings
of any deficiencies in the design of the
Group’s internal control system, providing
recommendations for improvement
and assesses the effectiveness of
implementation of such recommendations,
where appropriate. The scope and findings
of review on the Control Systems have
been reported to and reviewed by the
Audit Committee annually.

° Procedure manuals and operational
guidelines: They are in place to safeguard
the assets against unauthorized use or
disposition and ensure maintenance of
proper accounting records that are in
compliance with the applicable laws, rules
and regulations for the provision of reliable
financial that are information for internal
use and/or external publication.

o Management information system and
technology: Such use to control over
the business activities allows close
tracking of various inputs and outputs
of the Company’s business such as raw
materials, inventories, products, customer
information and human resources. It also
tracks audit trails in the authorization
system, under which permissions and
responsibility of authorization are clearly
identified and adequate records can be
maintained in the Control Systems.
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Reports and variance analysis: Such
reports and analysis of each segment in
the upstream, midstream and downstream
are conducted on a regular basis such
that the performance of each point of sales
and each product category can be easily
accessible.

Information flow: The transparent
information flow alerts the management
promptly of any deviations. Benchmarking
with historical database and comparisons
with the same also acts as a detecting
device for spotting unusual activities.

Safeguarding of assets: To safeguard
shops’ assets, security systems are
installed and properly maintained in good
condition at each shop. In addition, tests are
carried out on a daily basis to ensure the
proper functioning of the security systems
and implementation of internal control
procedures in daily operations. Daily stock
count for each shop, regular and surprise
stock counts are arranged by the shop
managers, Assurance Team and Finance &
Accounts Department respectively. Annual
stock count is also carried out by external
auditors. Insurance coverage on inventory
is periodically reviewed by the management
for sufficient coverage, and to ensure
compliance with the terms and conditions of
the insurance policies.

Quality control: Diamonds are either sent
to authoritative and reliable organizations
for assessment and certification or are
tested internally with our own professional
equipment to assure the quality fulfills
good standard requirement. In order
to provide assurance of high quality
products and services and to enhance the
protection of our customers’ interest, the
Company had joined several associations
and schemes.

Proper authorization on sales discounts:
Discount policies are properly maintained
and controlled by electronic point-of-sales
systems. Discount policies and pricing
strategy are reviewed from time to time.
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(3)  Financial Control

proper controls are in place for the
recording of complete, accurate and timely
accounting and management information;

annual budget and quarterly forecast on
all capital and revenue items are prepared
and approved by the management before
being adopted;

the management monitors the business
activities closely and reviews monthly
financial results of operations against
budgets/forecasts;

regular reports on revenue, trade
receivables’ ageing and debtors’ ageing
and internal financial reports are prepared
to the management which give a balanced
and understandable assessment of the
Group'’s financial performance;

monthly updates on internal financial
statements are provided to all Directors
which give a balanced and understandable
assessment of the Group’s performance,
financial position and prospects in
sufficient details;

annual audit by external auditor is carried
out to ensure that the consolidated
financial statements are prepared in
accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, the Group's
accounting policies and the applicable
laws and regulations; and

daily available fund report is reviewed to
monitor the cash flows against budgets/
forecasts.
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Compliance Control

The following policies and procedures are in
place to safeguard the compliance control:

Systems and Procedures on Disclosure
of Inside Information to ensure, with the
assistance of an internal work team (if
required), that any material information
which comes to the knowledge of any
one or more officers should be promptly
identified, assessed and escalated,
where appropriate, for the attention of
the Board. The Board shall make timely
decisions on disclosure, if necessary, and
take appropriate measures to preserve
confidentiality of inside information until
proper dissemination of inside information;

Policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements
which shall be reviewed and monitored
regularly by the CG Committee as
delegated by the Board;

CCT Compliance Committee is established
to monitor, control and regularly review
connected transactions and continuing
connected transactions of the Company
and ensure proper compliance with all
relevant laws and regulations, the Listing
Rules and disclosure requirements;

Whistle-blowing policy for employees
of the Group to raise concerns, in
confidence, about possible improprieties
in financial reporting, internal control or
other matters. Such arrangement will
be reviewed by the Audit Committee
which ensures that proper arrangement
is in place for fair and independent
investigation of the matters; and

Anti-Money Laundering and Counter-
terrorist Financing Policy and Procedures
is established to set out the general
framework for combating crime against
money laundering and financing of
terrorism. It provides guideline to prevent
the Group’'s employees and clients/
customers/suppliers/vendors/contractors
from being misused for money laundering,
terrorist financing or other financial
crime and has set out some indications
of potentially suspicious transactions/
activities for employees’ reference.
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C. Risk Management

(1)

Risk Management Process

The risk management process includes risk
identification, risk evaluation, risk management
measures and risk control and review.

The management is entrusted with duties to
identify, analyze, evaluate, respond, monitor
and communicate risks associated with any
activity, function or process within its scope of
responsibility and authority. Risks are evaluated
by the Board and management based on (i) the
severity of the impact of the risk on the Group’s
financial results; (ii) the probability and frequency
that the risks will occur; and (iii) the velocity or
speed at which risks can occur.

Based on the risk evaluation, the Company will
manage the risks as follows:

° Risk elimination — The management may
identify and implement certain changes
or controls that in effect eliminate the risk
entirely.

° Risk mitigation — The management may
implement risk mitigation plan designed
to reduce the likelihood, velocity or
severity of the risk to an acceptable level
or contingency plan for possible loss
scenarios.

o Risk control and monitoring — It involves
making decisions regarding which risks
are acceptable and how to address
those that are not. Accidents and other
situations involving loss or near-loss will be
investigated and properly documented as
part of the effort to manage risks.

° Risk retention — The management may
decide that the risk rating is low enough
that the risk is acceptable level and
no action is required and the risk will
continue to be monitored as part of the
risk management program to ensure
the level of risk does not increase to an
unacceptable level.
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Significant Risks and Strategies

Certain significant risks have been identified
through the process of risk identification and
assessment. Such significant risks of the Group
together with their respective key strategies/
control measures are set out below:

a) Decline in tourists’ arrivals and
consumption demand resulted from
downturn in economic and unstable
social conditions and also outbreak of
contagious diseases such as COVID-19,
SARS

Facing the unfavourable market situation,
the Group:

o proactively manages the Group's
geographical presence and
develops alternative sales channels
including e-commerce and also
explores new on-line payment
solution;

o optimises business operations and
shops establishments in Hong Kong
and Mainland China;

o develops market diversification
beyond Hong Kong market; and

° decisively takes stringent cost control
measures including human resources
streamline plan, negotiation for
rental concession, retail network
optimisation exercises including
shorten business hours, shops
closure plan, etc.

b) Damage to brand name and reputation

In addition to advertising and promotional
efforts in strengthening our brand image,
the Group has also given much attention

to:

° register of brand name and major
jewellery product collection names;

° conduct customer service training
and mystery shopper reviews to
ensure sales staff service standards;

° maintain product quality by various
means from vendor selection to
quality check upon delivery from
vendors; and

° brand name infringements which

are followed up by legal department
until completely resolved.
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(o X-SE &7
c) Reliance on major suppliers and watch

d)

brands

In fact, the Group’'s success largely rides
on its relationship with the world’s giant
watch suppliers and top-tier brands. The
loss of key brands may adversely affect
the Group’s business. To cope with this,
the Group:

° centralizes communication with
major watch brands suppliers within
top management;

° develops and maintains mutually
beneficial and long-term relationship
with all suppliers;

° continues to build up our own
jewellery brands; and

° arranges senior sales staff
inspecting all watches delivered to
shops.

Excess and shortage of watch inventory

The Group strives to be leading retailer
in bands that have higher consumer
appreciation and consequently stronger
profit yield. In order to achieve this leading
position, we:

° maintain close business relationship
and communication with watch
manufacturers to strive for optimal
and timely supply; and

° systematically review inventory
with updated sales forecasts to
determine appropriate inventory
level.

Substandard design and production of
jewellery

The Group’s strategy is to yield higher
gross margin and avoid price competition
with other market players. As such, quality
of our jewellery and highly regarded
designs are vital.
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° The Group maintains a high quality
design team with good market
trend knowledge, measured by
effectiveness of successful product
design launched.

° Merchandising managers, design
managers, sales operation
managers and shop representatives
review all jewellery design before
approval by CEO for production.

° Production vendors selection and
regular quality performance review
are conducted by merchandising
managers, technical manager and
in some cases jewellery design
manager.

° Merchandising managers, technical
manager and in some cases design
manager inspect jewellery product
mold and first sample before bulk
production.

° All jewellery products must pass
through quality inspection by quality
control team and shop front sales
team.

° Scanning of diamond by equipment
is used to avoid receiving synthetic
diamonds and procure diamonds
from international renowned
suppliers.

° Higher value jewellery products are
tested by reputable and commonly
recognized third-party laboratories
who issue testing certificates.

Stable supply of raw materials at fair
price

In order to maintain our timely replenishment
and new product launch, we secure
reliable sourcing by:
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o adopting systematic vendor selection
process; and

o regularly reviewing and exploring
more attractive sources.

g) Stock loss or theft

Since our stock items are easily concealable,
the Group places very much attention on
safeguarding them with all practicable
measures as follows:

° CCTV monitoring and back up;

° daily stock-take at shops;

o procedures and approval requirements
for stock transfer, and use of security
guarded service;

o security systems for stock locations;
and
o insurance coverage.

h) Shop location and rental expenses

o conduct adequate research and
study to ensure proper location
selected; and

° perform feasibility study and scenario
analysis to ensure financial viability
on each new shop location including
renewal of lease contract.
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i) Anti-money laundering

Non-compliance with applicable anti-money
laundering laws would adversely affect the
Group’s business and reputation. We shall:

° review compliance policies regularly;

° enforce the relevant internal control
procedures in all shops and assist
sales personnel to be familiar with
“know your customers” approach;

° stay alert to the industrial practices
and co-operates with banks on case
investigation; and

o provide regular training to the staff.

i) Cyber security risks
To mitigate cyber security risks, the Group
has taken measures as follows:

° the Company’s IT infrastructure is
regularly scanned and patched;

° risky external IP addressees are
blocked:;

° emails are filtered for spam and
malware;

° specialized ransomware/virus detection

software are installed in all computers;

U access rights to the Group’s systems
are strictly controlled and regularly
reviewed,;

° training for personnel about dangerous

email attachments; and

o regular backups of data for recovery.

The Board will make sure that the risks facing by
the Company shall be reviewed regularly, and
the management will take suitable measures to
deal with them on ongoing basis.
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D. Management Confirmation

The Board acknowledged that it had received a
confirmation from the management on the effectiveness
of the Control Systems of the Group for the Year. The
Audit Committee and the Board had reviewed the
Control Systems and were not aware of any significant
issues that would have an adverse impact on the
effectiveness and adequacy of the Group’s operational,
financial and compliance areas of the Control Systems.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company had adopted a written dividend policy setting
out the principles for the Board to determine appropriate
amount of dividend to be distributed to the Shareholders.
The Company intends to provide Shareholders with regular
interim and final dividends (as the case may be) based on
the earnings attributable to its Shareholders after taking into
consideration of the factors including, inter alia, (i) cash flow
requirements for business operations; (ii) cash available,
financial liabilities and capital commitment; (iii) market
environment and challenges; and (iv) future development
and investment opportunities. The declaration of dividends
or recommendation on such payment shall be subject to
all applicable laws, rules and regulations including but
not limited to the Listing Rules, the Companies Ordinance
(Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (“CO") and the
Articles of Association of the Company.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company has established a shareholders’ communication
policy and the Board shall review it on a regular basis to
ensure its effectiveness. The Company communicates with
the Shareholders mainly in the following ways: (i) the holding
of annual general meetings (“AGM”") and extraordinary
general meetings, if any, which may be convened for specific
purposes to provide opportunities for the Shareholders
to communicate directly to the Board; (ii) the publication
of announcements, annual reports, interim reports and/
or circulars as required under the Listing Rules and press
releases providing updated information of the Group; (iii)
the availability of latest information of the Group on the
Company’s website at https://www.emperorwatchjewellery.
com; (iv) the holding of press conference(s) from time to time;
and (v) meeting with investors and analysts on a regular basis
and participate investor road show and sector conference.

There is regular dialogue with institutional Shareholders and
general presentations are made when financial results are
announced. Shareholders and investors are welcome to visit
the Company’s website to raise enquiries through our Investor
Relations Department whose contact details are available on
the Company’s website and the “Corporate Information and
Key Dates” section of this annual report.

Separate resolutions are proposed at the general meetings for
substantially separate issues, including re-election of retiring
Directors. The Chairperson of the 2021 AGM and chairman/
members of the Board Committees and the external auditor
had attended the 2021 AGM to answer questions from the
Shareholders. With the assistance of the Company Secretary,
the Chairperson of the meeting had explained the procedures
for conducting a poll voting during the meeting.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Set out below is a summary of certain rights of the
Shareholders as required to be disclosed pursuant to the CG
Code:

Right to convene/Call general meetings

Shareholder(s) representing at least 5% of the total voting
rights of all the Shareholders having a right to vote at general
meetings may send a request to the Company pursuant to
Section 566 of the CO. The request must state the general
nature of the business to be dealt with at the meeting, and
may include the text of resolution that may properly be moved
and is intended to be moved at the meeting. Requests may
consist of several documents in like form. A request may
be sent to the Company for the attention of the Company
Secretary in hard copy form or in electronic form and must be
authenticated by the relevant Shareholder(s). Such request
will be verified with the Company’s share registrar and the
Company Secretary will request the Board to convene a
general meeting within 21 days upon its confirmation that the
request is in order. Such meeting must be held on a date not
more than 28 days after the date of the notice convening the
meeting and such notice must include notice of the resolution.

Section 568 of the CO provides that if the Directors do not
within 21 days as stated above to call a general meeting,
the Shareholders representing more than one half of the total
voting rights of all of them, may themselves call a general
meeting, but the meeting so convened must be called for
a date not more than 3 months after the Directors become
subject to the requirement to call a meeting. The meeting
must be called in the same manner, as nearly as possible,
as that in which that meeting is required to be called by the
Directors. The business that may be dealt with at the meeting
includes a resolution to be dealt with at the meeting. All
reasonable expenses incurred by the Shareholders of this
purpose must be reimbursed by the Company.

Putting forward Proposals at General Meetings

Section 615 of the CO provides that (i) Shareholder(s)
representing at least 2.5% of the total voting rights of all
Shareholders; or (ii) at least 50 Shareholders having a right to
vote on the resolution at the AGM may request the Company
to circulate a notice of a resolution to be properly moved
or is intended to be moved at that meeting. Such request
must identify the resolution to be moved at the AGM, must
be authenticated by the relevant Shareholder(s) and sent to
the registered office of the Company for the attention of the
Company Secretary in hard copy form or in electronic form
not later than 6 weeks before the relevant AGM or if later, the
time when the notice of AGM is despatched.

I B S SR BB A B A W) EMPEROR WATCH & JEWELLERY LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 202 14E #t

J B 2 HE A
BECEEATINETHE S TRERERNZ
BWEMT:

BHRRRAEZER BRARRAE

BB QR ERPI 56605 MEREBILEEER
BIRBERARELEREZERRZERERZD
5% BIA] AN A3 H ESR- RKAJNAKRE
FREBREE, —RUEE SAIBERNZAE
AEERENSBELIRNZAEGHE ZRBREX
Ko BRAIBEZMHEABEUZ X BRA
AFNENAK B FIRARERARA FAAWER
VREHBABRRER - Z2XRKEAARRB RN
BEFECEZEARRWMESERLEFTENE
ERAEEZRNEREFE2IBANERARRAE -
HERSARTEBERAEEE B HR28H
ZEMBTARBEBEN AR RERIABS -

R AME DI SE5681F L E © HE FARLIA EAT
R2IEABRABRRAS A2 BRRARE
B—FUEZBRR -AIBTARKRRAE B
M BRZAEAEEZHI ARG ERE
TEB=EART - ZRGEANBRAREROE
EARAGZHERTABR-AIERKE Lk
BrEEHBEREENE LREZRER -BRH
HEENAAEAREMXABRARARMNE-

RERRAELREES

REMEBIFEGISIREE: (VMEEBEREEDN
PRERFZAD2.5% 2 BUR : 3 (ii)&x D508 B ERK
RBFREGLARBEREZBRRAERLEAR
AIRHARAIEZ % LIRS HE BRI BAEZ
SR LPDAARIRNBE - RERARLER
RBERBFERE LB RESR  BEMABRK
RESTENBERRBFAS R (WERIR)
FRRRBS XS HEERF /N EZ BT L
AEBFREERNRAARETMPER T ARMWE -



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Proposing a Person for Election as a Director

The procedures for Shareholders to propose a person
for election as a Director are available for viewing on the
Company’s website.

Enquires from Shareholders

Shareholders should direct their enquiries about their
shareholdings to the Company’s share registrar, Tricor
Secretaries Limited. Other Shareholders’ enquiries can
be directed to the Investor Relations Department of the
Company.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There are no significant changes in the Company'’s
constitutional documents during the Year.

AUDITOR’S INDEPENDENCE AND
REMUNERATION

The Audit Committee is mandated to review and monitor the
independence of the auditor to ensure objectivity and the
effectiveness of the audit process of the financial statements
in accordance with applicable standards. Members of the
Audit Committee were of the view that the Company’s auditor,
Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tomatsu (“Deloitte”), is independent
and had recommended the Board to re-appoint it as the
Company’s auditor at the 2022 AGM. During the Year, Deloitte
had rendered audit services and certain non-audit services
to the Group and the remuneration paid/payable to it by the
Group is set out as follows:

Services rendered Ff7 12 it BR 7

Audit services #Z EUR 7

Non-audit services: 3E# SRS :

1z € 16 e
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AL A% FERE U
WAER AR R Z BB ER XL EEAE
2B

A% Bl 2 8 S e % B 4
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REE 2 B AN EREBREP M RRK
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R2022BRIBFRE LEREBRRR 2R
B M AFEERN B8 ERASBIE‘RZBR
BRETHRERE mASKEEN EBHT
mzMeEHNmT

Fees paid/payable
et B ER
HK$’000

FTHET

3,520

Agreed-upon procedures for continuing connected transactions

SERERFOHERRF
— Review of preliminary results announcement
BEHNTRERS

20

10

B 5L G 8K B 87 A PR A W] EMPEROR WATCH & JEWELLERY LIMITED 59

ANNUAL REPORT 202 14E #}




INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
M 7 A% B i

Deloitte.

TO THE MEMBERS OF
EMPEROR WATCH & JEWELLERY LIMITED
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Emperor Watch & Jewellery Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set
out on pages 67 to 167, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2021,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes
in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2021, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the
“Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

o S 7 A% o I
AREBEZFRE/AZBMITNEXEHE &
BEAHHESEMBEBRRTREZNERH A
BEITRERERGAM B RRE B ERE
R EKRER MAERNHEFTREFER
BR

Key audit matter
BRELXSEE
Valuation of inventories — Jewelleries held for resale
FE—IFEEEREZ14E
We identified the valuation of inventories — jewelleries
held for resale as a key audit matter due to the

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

AEBATONMNEEBRERSE

Our procedures in relation to evaluating the
appropriateness of valuation of inventories — jewelleries
held for resale included:

significance of the balance to the consolidated
financial statements as a whole, combined with
the judgement and estimation associated with
determining the amount of allowance for inventories.

ARHMTRET S B R ERE 2 G Eh R
REEFE RRERAKABUBANBRRERM
EHOBE MY RREESRRESEAN AN
Rfhiat e

In estimating the amount of allowance for inventories
— jewelleries held for resale, it is the Group’s policy
to review the net realisable value of inventories
periodically with reference to the condition of the
items and the market condition. The management
reviews regularly the suitability of the allowance
policy and the amount of allowance for inventories
that are based on the estimation by considering
factors as detailed in the note 4 to the consolidated
financial statements in relation to the allowance
for inventories. In addition, the management also
appoints an independent professional gemmologist
to perform valuation on certain jewellery items as
reference for allowance consideration.

REFFE-RHEFBEREZRESRE E5E
ZBRRZEZEABRARTRAES RAFE 2 &
BEE - EEEDNRENRGAMBHMERM TIFHER
FEBBZERRAEMIEZ MG TR BBEER
ZEEUERFEREBESE MM BEEENZRE—2E
VEXBOLETMUHETHRERBETHEER/E
BEBZ2E-

AZEMTHEFE-RFEEREZGHERELZE
BRECE

Obtaining an understanding of management’s
process of reviewing and evaluating net
realisable value of inventories;

THREEERSMNHEFERNERFEZIER

Evaluating the allowance policy adopted by
the management with reference to current
market conditions, historical and current sales
information, pricing policy and strategies,
inventory realisation plan, ageing and conditions
of inventories;

SLERTHR BEREMHEERN EEHER

R FEZRFE  FEMNKER LA HERE
& PiTER 0 1) BB EROSR
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS - continued

Key audit matter

AREXRER

Valuation of inventories — Jewelleries held for resale

A AL I —

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

REBEMTONMNEEERERSR

FE— 1 IFBEEREZ 418

As disclosed in note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements, as at 31 December 2021, the carrying
amount of inventories — jewelleries held for
resale is HK$2,011,104,000, net of allowance of
HK$52,559,000, which represents 43% of the net
assets of the Group.

4R A B R R KT 34T # 55 - 1R2021F12H318 ' 17
E-EFEEERE 2 ERMEEAE2,011,104,0008 L B
IR B #552,559,0008 70 HHE R BEBEEFEZ
43%
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Evaluating net realisable value of inventories
assessed by management, on a sample basis,
with reference to the selling prices of similar
products;

ETHEARAFEEEEEFERAGRBER
ZHEENTFENAIZRFE:

Evaluating the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of the independent professional
gemmologist and obtaining an understanding of
the scope of work and the terms of engagement;
and

AMEBYERELREEM A B EOREEL
¥ TRETIEBERZTRGR: &

Understanding the valuation process carried out
by the independent professional gemmologist
on selected jewellery items and checking the
carrying amounts of selected jewellery items to
the jewellery appraisal report to test that these
items were recorded at lower of cost and net
realisable value.

THRBUEXRELETAMMAGEREKERHA
MIEFARRREFERETRBEERERE
FREENBERRF @BRESDRARAR SR F
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’'s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend
to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for
overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section
405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control.
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° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor's report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.
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We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or
safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the
independent auditor’s report is Ka-Lai Man.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

23 March 2022
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

27 A\
AR AR AR M 2w U AR SR
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
HZE2021F12A31AILEE
2021 2020
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
=g FEx FHET
Revenue A (9) 3,926,608 2,626,609
Cost of sales HE R A (2,697,103) (1,786,545)
Gross profit EF 1,229,505 840,064
Other income H e A 6 8,848 8,195
Selling and distribution HERDHAZ
expenses (840,549) (677,227)
Administrative expenses THAX (113,566) (89,265)
Other gains or losses H bk E 1B (11,591) (13,832)
Finance costs BhE B AR 7 (16,378) (33,139)
Profit before tax B 5% A& K 8 256,269 34,796
Taxation TIE 10 (51,574) (803)
Profit for the year FEm A 204,695 33,993
Other comprehensive income FEAEMEERA
for the year
Item that may be reclassified HEAJEET 7 HZE
subsequently to profit or loss: BamZHE -
Exchange differences arising BMEBIINEBEEZ
on translation of M ER
foreign operations 14,433 42,098
Total comprehensive income RARHEA AEL
for the year and attributable FEE2HWALRE
to owners of the Company 219,128 76,091
Earnings per share — basic BRAFN-EXR 12 HK3.02 cents %1l HK0.50 cent 7&1ll
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

o o B S R U0 R R
AT 31 DECEMBER 2021
7202112 A31H
2021 2020
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
B 7 FET FET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ¥ %  #23 & R & 13 1,615,723 1,717,896
Right-of-use assets EREEE 14 207,527 365,022
Rental deposits Heks 85,765 93,910
Deposits paid for acquisition of W EE¥) % - #22 &
property, plant and equipment & #&H 7 2L E 504 364
Deferred tax assets EETHIBEEE 23 5,103 10,896
1,914,622 2,188,088
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 15 2,710,757 3,029,949
Right to returned goods asset EEEEE 21 1,553 794
Receivables, deposits and FEWFIE - & & RTEN KB
prepayments 16 166,226 148,928
Amounts due from related JiE L [ 38 R B FRIE
companies 22 753 561
Bank balances and cash RITEBRER S 17 556,344 405,111
3,435,633 3,585,343
Current liabilities REBEE
Payables and accrued charges B FIE K ETE R 18 150,137 123,697
Lease liabilities HERE 19 160,343 227,155
Contract liabilities AHaE 20 18,653 9,877
Refund liabilities iR %kﬁ{z 21 2,204 1,035
Amounts due to related JE 1 B8 & IR
companies 22 2,122 4,622
Taxation payable FEATBEIE 36,455 22,184
Bank borrowings RITEE 24 165,452 638,693
535,366 1,027,263
Net current assets REBEEFE 2,900,267 2,558,080
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AT 31 DECEMBER 2021

BaMBRRRE |

M2021412A31H
2021 2020
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
B 3T FHBxT FE T
Non-current liabilities kFrBaE
Deferred tax liabilities FELERIBEEE
Lease liabilities HEBRE
Net assets EEFE
Capital and reserves BEXR#EE
Share capital LN
Reserves &
Total equity R

The consolidated financial statements on pages 67 to 167
were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of
Directors on 23 March 2022 and are signed on its behalf by:

NG KOON KEUNG, RICKY
R
DIRECTOR
EF
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-
23 2,988 3,359
19 91,111 193,691
94,099 197,050
4,720,790 4,549,118
25 3,484,152 3,484,152
26 1,236,638 1,064,966
4,720,790 4,549,118
FOTEFE167H 236 M B R K B 202243
Ro3REEEgH AR RERE WhHTHE
EFERAERE:
WONG CHI FAI
BEE
DIRECTOR
BE
o W
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
4 HE 25 5 W

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

HZE2021F12A31AILEE
Share Merger Other Capital ~ Translation Retained
capital reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total
Rx Bt HitfkeE EARE ERRE REER @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT TR TR TR TR TR THET
(note 26(a))  (note 26(b))  (note 26(c))
(Mzto6(a)) (Mizto6(b))  (HizE26(c))
At 1 January 2020 R202061A1A 3,484,152 (373,003) (26,195) 2,529 (38,058) 1,423,602 4,473,027
Profit for the year EREH - - - = = 33,993 33,993
Exchange differences arising on BEENEBEL B ZE
translation of foreign operations - - - - 42,098 - 42,098
Total comprehensive income FERENARE
for the year - - - - 42,098 33,993 76,091
At 31 December 2020 #2020512A318 3,484,152 (373,003) (26,195) 2,529 4,040 1,457,595 4,549,118
At 1 January 2021 R202151 A1R 3,484,152 (373,003) (26,195) 2,529 4,040 1,457,595 4,549,118
Profit for the year EREH - - - - - 204,695 204,695
Exchange differences arising on BEBNEBEL ERER
translation of foreign operations - - - - 14,433 - 14,433
Total comprehensive income FERERALE
for the year - - - - 14,433 204,695 219,128
Final dividend paid for 2020 020FEHZKRHARE
(note 11) (FrzE11) - - - - - (10,169) (10,169)
Interim dividend paid for 2021 021FEHZRHRE
(note 11) (ME11) - = - - - (37,287) (37,287)
At 31 December 2021 #2021512A318 3,484,152 (373,003) (26,195) 2,529 18,473 1,614,834 4,720,790
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
ARO Bl Bk

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

HZE2021F12A31B L FE
2021 2020
HK$°’000 HK$'000
FEx FHET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES mEEK
Profit before tax B 74 A g A 256,269 34,796
Adjustments for: R
Allowance for (reversal of FE (BERD)BE
allowance for) inventories 16,604 (1,189)
Depreciation of property, ME - HBERBETE
plant and equipment 128,785 141,590
Depreciation of right-of-use assets CREEENE 266,166 242 515
Impairment loss recognised YFE EERRERERZ
in respect of property, BEEE
plant and equipment 6,729 6,990
Loss on disposal/write-off of P& EHEME MR
property, plant and equipment Rz EE 1,373 1,580
Gain arising from termination/ BRI MERTEE Y
modification of leases & (50) (317)
Impairment loss recognised NERAREERRZ
in respect of right-of-use assets B EE 7,939 8,951
(Reversal of) allowance EEEE (BERRE)BE
for credit losses (665) 536
Interest income FEMA (8,653) (5,476)
Finance costs Rl E B AR 16,378 33,139
Operating cash flows before RTEEEEHAI 2
movements in working capital KEREME 690,875 463,115
Decrease in inventories FEZRL 311,181 151,370
(Increase) decrease in right to REEEE (&M
returned goods asset (759) 2,373
Increase in receivables, deposits EWFRIE - & M TE A FRIEE N
and prepayments (14,628) (7,195)
(Increase) decrease in amounts due  FEU B E A &) 3118 (3 H0) &
from related companies (192) 3,363
Increase in payables and JETFRIE R EET & A8 N
accrued charges 11,092 7,867
Increase (decrease) in ERAEEEMNORD)
contract liabilities 8,776 (2,080)
Increase (decrease) REBEEMNORD)
in refund liabilities 1,169 (8,184)
(Decrease) increase in amounts FE AT A A B IE () 38 A0
due to related companies (2,500) 3,592
Net cash generated from operations & &S 2R & F5E 1,005,014 619,221
Income taxes paid AR (31,452) (42,383)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING RETHRBZRESFEH
ACTIVITIES 973,562 576,838
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
AR Bl i Bk

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
HE2021F12A31H L FE

2021 2020
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 FERT FHET
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BRETH
Refunds of rental deposits REHSKS 10,710 24,054
Deposits paid for acquisition of UWEE¥ %  #ENEREZ
property, plant and equipment 2% & (140) (621)
Proceeds from disposal of HEWE HEREHEZ
property, plant and equipment  FT15 5UE - 5
Purchase of property, BEWME HEREE
plant and equipment (34,150) (15,306)
Interest received B U F B 6,141 1,888
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM BETE (FTH)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES FBzREFEHE (17,439) 10,020
FINANCING ACTIVITIES mEEE
Dividends paid BB 2, 33 (47,456) -
Interest paid EATHLE 33 (16,378) (33,139)
Bank borrowings raised EEERITEE 33 400,000 129,515
Repayments of bank borrowings EEETEE 33 (873,241) (281,949)
Repayments of lease liabilities EEHE&E 33 (271,527) (241,687)
NET CASH USED IN BMETHFAZRESEE
FINANCING ACTIVITIES (808,602) (427,260)
NET INCREASE IN CASHAND BRe&RBESEEYWIEINEEE
CASH EQUIVALENTS 147,521 159,598
CASH AND CASH FHzHERBESEEY
EQUIVALENTS AT THE
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 405,111 239,909
Effect of foreign exchange INEEREF) s &
rate changes 3,712 5,604
CASH AND CASH FRZEESRAEEED
EQUIVALENTS AT THE (HERTHESRE
END OF THE YEAR, HEAR)
REPRESENTED BY BANK
BALANCES AND CASH 556,344 405,111
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
it 1 B 205 i A B i

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

HZE2021F12A31AILEE

1. GENERAL INFORMATION 1. —BFEH
Emperor Watch & Jewellery Limited (the “Company”) REERRBEER AR ([ARAE])AB—
is a public limited company incorporated in Hong MRBEBFMR L ARER A H
Kong and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange BRONEBMERZMARRAA (1B
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). lIts Frl) Em-HEEZERAR AREERK
immediate holding company is Emperor Watch & KESEERBERAR ([REEHRKSE
Jewellery Group Holdings Limited (“Emperor W&J ZiR]) REBEXHS ([RERKE
Holdings”) which is incorporated in the British Virgin ENEMAMYZAR -ARABESE([E
Islands (“BVI"). The directors of the Company (the F])REBERRAZREERAB BIGX
“Directors”) consider that its ultimate holding company MEGKEERERAT REBREX
is Albert Yeung Watch & Jewellery Holdings Limited, BHEFMKIL AR AR AT Mo
a company incorporated in the BVI. The address of FREARFELEME MU I EEES
the registered office and principal place of business B EFFE288 i R E S B 25 o

of the Company is 25/F, Emperor Group Centre, 288
Hennessey Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. RARRlR—BREERAR -HWEAQ
The principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in Al EEEBHNMIEE35 -

note 35.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in REMBHREABT (BT 2R B
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is also the functional TR ARAZINEEEE

currency of the Company.

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2. BEHBET ABERT H M E &Y
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG R (A v B B i i R 1 )
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”)

AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs THAT ARE AEERFERNLETEBY KR

MANDATORILY EFFECTIVE FOR THE CURRENT e

YEAR

In the current year, the Group has applied the following RAFE AEEBEHAERAUNTHS

amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong BEAg ([EESMAE])EM

Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) H BB GRS EREET A - H 182021

for the first time, which are mandatorily effective for F1A1HS 22 RBHFE RS H £

the annual periods beginning on or after 1 January B ARSI E ISk

2021 for the preparation of the consolidated financial

statements:

Amendment to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent ERMBBREENEI6HR 2 20198 RFER

Concessions BEA HENEERE

Amendments to HKFRS 9,  Interest Rate Benchmark Reform ERPBHRELDFNR . FIREENE
HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, - Phase 2 BRI ERIE395 -FRE&
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16 BRRMBRELNETR

BAMBREERF4H L
BRAMBREEAF 165
PACHIEN
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A 1 5 i M R

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

HE2021F12A31H L FE
2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND

AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) - continued

AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs THAT ARE
MANDATORILY EFFECTIVE FOR THE CURRENT
YEAR - continued

In addition, the Group applied the agenda decision of
the IFRS Interpretations Committee of the International
Accounting Standards Board issued in June 2021
which clarified the costs an entity should include as
“estimated costs necessary to make the sale” when
determining the net realisable value of inventories.

Except for the new and amendments to HKFRSs
mentioned below, the Directors anticipate that the
application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the
current year has had no material impact on the Group’s
financial positions and performance for the current and
prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.

IMPACTS ON APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS
TO HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4
AND HKFRS 16 INTEREST RATE BENCHMARK
REFORM - PHASE 2

The amendments have no impact on the consolidated
financial statements as none of the relevant contracts
has been transitioned to the relevant replacement rates
during the year. The Group will apply the practical
expedient in relation to the changes in contractual cash
flows resulting from the interest rate benchmark reform
for bank borrowings measured at amortised cost.
Additional disclosures as required by HKFRS 7 are set
out in note 28.

74 YRGBT A R A W EMPEROR WATCH & JEWELLERY LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

H E2021F12A31H L FE
2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND

AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) - continued

IMPACTS ON APPLICATION OF THE AGENDA
DECISION OF THE COMMITTEE - COST
NECESSARY TO SELL INVENTORIES (HKAS 2
INVENTORIES)

In June 2021, the Committee, through its agenda
decision, clarified the costs an entity should include
as “estimated costs necessary to make the sale” when
determining the net realisable value of inventories.
In particular, whether such costs should be limited to
those that are incremental to the sale. The Committee
concluded that the estimated costs necessary to
make the sale should not be limited to those that are
incremental but should also include costs that an entity
must incur to sell its inventories including those that are
not incremental to a particular sale.

The Group’s accounting policy prior to the Committee’s
agenda decision was to determine the net realisable
value of inventories taking into consideration of
incremental costs only. Upon application of the
Committee’s agenda decision, the Group changed
its accounting policy to determine the net realisable
value of inventories taking into consideration of both
incremental costs and other cost necessary to sell
inventories. The new accounting policy has been
applied retrospectively.

The application of the Committee’s agenda decision
has had no material impact on the Group’s financial
positions and performance.
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RATERREEXNAN TEBIEEE
HEHFEVAERENRKA  BIEFEE
FHEBSHMRA-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Aok 1 B 25 A M R

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

HE2021F12A31H L FE
2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2. JE FH BT 5T T A8 A6 5T 7 v B S il

AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) - continued

NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs IN ISSUE

B ([ B el ) —42

EEMEMARERZHTREBTE

BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

78 B 35 3R o5 2E Al

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are

not yet effective:

AEBEWLERZEREBATCEMERK
R Z AT MRIER] B A B a2 :

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts and BENBREENE7R RBRAHKEEE
the related Amendments® HES
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual B BIREER R R 12
Framework? FEIR 2 BT A
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets BERBKHRELR REEEEBE DT
and HKAS 28 between an Investor and its F10R R BEDE FEEEHN
Associate or Joint Venture* RR|FE28H 2 BRI A BENEXTE
Amendment to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent BERBRELR 20216 A30H & K
Concessions beyond F165K BT A 2019B R A E R
30 June 2021 HHENESHE
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as BEBQHEAEIRL BRESBEARDNL
Current or Non-current and EHEN ERBREES
related amendments to Hong HRESRNAH
Kong Interpretation 5 (2020) &3] (2020%F )?
Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting BEREHEAFIRREE SHECEERR
and HKFRS Practice Policies® IBRHREENERRS
Statement 2 FOR TR
Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting BB QHEAESREITA iHEFNTER

Amendments to HKAS 12

Estimates?®
Deferred Tax related to Assets

EB G RSB 1058

BE-QHELYZ

and Liabilities arising from EHEN BEKRAENRA
a Single Transaction® IR IE
Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment — BEREHERE 16T mE BERSE-
Proceeds before Intended Use? BEIA BE B AIE)
PSR

Amendments to HKAS 37

Amendments to HKFRSs

Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract?
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs

EHGERBITE Y
EEIE

BEAGH-BTEH
KRR AR

BAMBREENZEIAR FEMBREER

2018 - 20202 2018F £2020F
()4 2 B2
1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April L R20215F4 18 3 2 & B F S HfE
2021 Y
g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 g M2022F1 A1H sk 2 1% 45 8 5 [E B

January 2022

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

January 2023

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date

to be determined
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
H E2021F12A31H L FE

2.  APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) - continued

NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs IN ISSUE

BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE - continued

Except for the amendment to HKFRSs mentioned
below, the Directors anticipate that the application of all
new and amendments to HKFRSs will have no material
impact on the consolidated financial statements in the

foreseeable future.

AMENDMENTS TO HKAS 1 AND HKFRS PRACTICE

STATEMENT 2 DISCLOSURE OF ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Aok B T s A A

JE P AT e A AT A o B B e
W ([ B el ) — 42

EEMEHRERZHITREBITE
B BREEA -
BRIk 2 BBV HRELL 2 &
RIS EETAHIEA A # ] k& B
AIEAMERERINADHRE IS
HEAVBBRRERBEATE -

R GR Y EI Y Tk 2
KB 3 B 298 2 15 5T A 8 il 8RB
%

HKAS 1 is amended to replace all instances of the BASHEANEIRCBITUTERNSET
term “significant accounting policies” with “material HEEHIBRRFESHE] —F7ADN
accounting policy information”. Accounting policy Fr B 1B 5 fis 32 R & 8 1 75 3 5% A E th
information is material if, when considered together B —HER HBEEHAINUNEGRE
with other information included in an entity’s financial EHeErELRRAVERERNEEERE
statements, it can reasonably be expected to influence BEZEVHEREMELARE  BIZ

decisions that the primary users of general purpose FHBREHNBEK

financial statements make on the basis of those

financial statements.

The amendments also clarify that accounting policy ZEBE MR AMESRREBLTE

R-BERERARSME  HibERHAIF
R BFBERERMDAIBEKX A A
FRMAREARS HMEEBEHKBRA

information may be material because of the nature of
the related transactions, other events or conditions,
even if the amounts are immaterial. However, not all

accounting policy information relating to material EﬁE’JAEJrLBZ”ﬁﬂK%EHEEK"%—
transactions, other events or conditions is itself MEREEREIFERSTBRERER

material. If an entity chooses to disclose immaterial EHRERTSEBEERITHEKER -
accounting policy information, such information must

not obscure material accounting policy information.

BAMBRELEN BB RS F2RFEL
E?ﬁ/&*%/ﬁﬂf%f“i&i”ﬁﬂﬂ&ﬂ LA

HKFRS Practice Statement 2 Making Materiality
Judgements (the “Practice Statement”) is also amended

to illustrate how an entity applies the “four-step HA-—EEBNAS [HPETHERXR
materiality process” to accounting policy disclosures MR EARSTBREEBERAEAE
and to judge whether information about an accounting g BRERNENEEMBRERE
policy is material to its financial statements. Guidance CEBEXR - BEXMECHMEEERR

and examples are added to the Practice Statement. R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A 1 5 i M R

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

HE2021F12A31H L FE
2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND

AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) - continued

NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs IN ISSUE
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE - continued

AMENDMENTS TO HKAS 1 AND HKFRS PRACTICE
STATEMENT 2 DISCLOSURE OF ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

The application of the amendments is not expected
to have significant impact on the financial position
or performance of the Group but may affect the
disclosures of the Group’s significant accounting
policies. The impacts of application, if any, will be
disclosed in the Group’s future consolidated financial
statements.

AMENDMENTS TO HKAS 8 DEFINITION OF
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

The amendments define accounting estimates as
“monetary amounts in financial statements that are
subject to measurement uncertainty”. An accounting
policy may require items in financial statements to
be measured in a way that involves measurement
uncertainty — that is, the accounting policy may require
such items to be measured at monetary amounts
that cannot be observed directly and must instead
be estimated. In such a case, an entity develops an
accounting estimate to achieve the objective set out by
the accounting policy. Developing accounting estimates
involves the use of judgements or assumptions based
on the latest available, reliable information.

In addition, the concept of changes in accounting
estimates in HKAS 8 is retained with additional
clarifications.

The application of the amendments is not expected to
have significant impact on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
H E2021F12A31H L FE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.

3.1

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued
by the HKICPA. For the purpose of preparation
of the consolidated financial statements,
information is considered material if such
information is reasonably expected to influence
decisions made by primary users. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”)
and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis at the end
of each reporting period, as explained in the
accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair
value of the consideration given in exchange for
goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to
sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date, regardless of whether
that price is directly observable or estimated
using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group
takes into account the characteristics of the
asset or liability if market participants would take
those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure
purposes in these consolidated financial
statements is determined on such a basis,
except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-
based Payment, leasing transactions that are
accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 16,
and measurements that have some similarities
to fair value but are not fair value, such as net
realisable value in HKAS 2 /nventories or value-
in-use in HKAS 36 /mpairment of Assets.
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3.

Aok B T s A A

A B o 5 T 5 R AR R S TR
R BOR

3.1

EHRESHBERROKE

ReMBRRDREZTB S
R ([FEGHAMRE])BEMRZ
BEMBRELEN R LR
RAMBHRRME HAEBEHM
FEAHEFETIREMREFD
HORTE  RIEREMBERENKN
WO HEMBRERTERERER
BEXZABERRAESF LA
A (TEmARL) REE R B ERD
MEZ BRI -

RAEMBRERTINEER KRR
BELRAEZLERFR N TXH
SIEV R ER SR AL

FESL A — R ER RIER ] E
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
HE2021F12A31H L FE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

3.

3.1

3.2

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
- continued

In addition, for financial reporting purposes,
fair value measurements are categorised into
Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which
the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to
the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices
(unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities that the Group can
access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than
quoted prices included within Level 1, that
are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for
the asset or liability.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements
incorporate the financial statements of the
Company and entities controlled by the Company
and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when
the Company:

o has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the
investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its
returns.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

HE2021F12A31B L F &
3.  BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. G AMBERENKEREKX
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL o RMBOR — &

STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - 3.2 EXREHEER-Z
continued
BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION - continued AR H A
The Group reassesses whether or not it controls WEEEXBERBET Ll =18
an investee if facts and circumstances indicate HEER BB EHREE
that there are changes to one or more of the FAEEEEFRTHERZEE
three elements of control listed above. IR EEH R -
Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the REBRESH B D E) 26 R
Group obtains control over the subsidiary and B RARGE AR WRKE
ceases when the Group loses control of the BB A B %‘J%H—irmﬂzi B AR
subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of BEREms RNAFEANEAXL
a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the EZHMBRARIZWMARRAS &
year are included in the consolidated statement BARASEREFEHEE A ﬁ_iﬁ
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income SEAEMBARIEGEE B
from the date the Group gains control until the EJr)\,Zv?é-\.TE!E&ﬁmzﬁH&)\#Fy
date when the Group ceases to control the R
subsidiary.
When necessary, adjustments are made to the MBARIZHMBHRERETER
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring MTELHAR UEESHEER
their accounting policies in line with the Group's EAEESHBR -2

accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, FIEEEAARBMEERARE:
income, expenses and cash flows relating to Bwm WA XHERE M (ER
transactions between members of the Group are SERERRIBZRSEH) AR
eliminated in full on consolidation. FERBRTUAEEEE-
MERGER ACCOUNTING FOR BUSINESS WRIEIJHETHEHFZFEFGTOHZ
COMBINATION INVOLVING BUSINESSES o Of & 7t i

UNDER COMMON CONTROL

The consolidated financial statements REMBREMAZSEIRELE
incorporate the financial statements items of HEAZEHEH Z2EHEB 2T
the combining businesses in which the common iﬁi’%lﬁ B WMUZEWB®REE
control combination occurs as if they had been REHEBER ?&EEAT* %H?‘i
consolidated from the date when the combining ZT HITE HREWEA

businesses first came under the control of the
controlling party.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
HE2021F12A31H L FE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
continued

MERGER ACCOUNTING FOR BUSINESS
COMBINATION INVOLVING BUSINESSES
UNDER COMMON CONTROL - continued

The net assets of the consolidated entities are
consolidated using the existing book values from
the controlling party’'s perspective. No amount
is recognised in respect of goodwill or bargain
purchase gain at the time of common control
combination.

REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH
CUSTOMERS

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when
“control” of the goods or services underlying the
particular performance obligation is transferred
to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or
service (or a bundle of goods or services) that is
distinct or a series of distinct goods or services
that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue
is recognised over time by reference to the
progress towards complete satisfaction of the
relevant performance obligation if one of the
following criteria is met:

° the customer simultaneously receives
and consumes the benefits provided by
the Group's performance as the Group
performs;

o the Group’s performance creates or
enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the Group performs; or

o the Group’s performance does not create
an asset with an alternative use to the
Group and the Group has an enforceable
right to payment for performance
completed to date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

HE2021F12A31B L F &
3.  BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. G AMBERENKEREKX
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL o RMBOR — &

STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - 3.2 EAREHHBE-#F
continued
REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH FHERGHZHA &
CUSTOMERS - continued
Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in BRI BEPAIRREZEBE M
time when the customer obtains control of the 3 R 75 2 15 I 2 FRE T B T SR UK
distinct good or service. Ao
A receivable represents the Group’s unconditional FEWRIBBEASERDAKEZE
right to consideration, i.e. only the passage RUERN TERENRETHF
of time is required before payment of that PR [T 7 4 7 AT Ui B o

consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s EHNBBEEASERNEFERRD
obligation to transfer goods or services to a MR BEE MASEE I
customer for which the Group has received EREFPKEAKE (2B
consideration (or an amount of consideration is WHRESRE) -

due) from the customer.

Contracts with multiple performance BEZHBEHNELT (BESEXR
obligations (including allocation of transaction BE) 284

price)

For contracts that contain more than one HREsEZR—HEENEEZE
performance obligations, including customer H(BEEBREHTE) ~&E
loyalty programme, the Group allocates the RBEHEREBEREERISE
transaction price to each performance obligation SEEZEBRNEE WHEITH
on a relative stand-alone selling price basis, RA] B BRI

except for the allocation of discounts and
variable consideration.

The stand-alone selling price of the distinct EROBEAT 2EBEMmARY
good or service underlying each performance CEBEBRANIIIKEE-
obligation is determined at contract inception. It FREERAEBEEBEYIRMER
represents the price at which the Group would HERBEEN MRS 2 BEE - W
sell a promised good or service separately to BEREETTEEREGHN K
a customer. If a stand-alone selling price is not SEEFREEHRIGED M
directly observable, the Group estimates it using FREPEZEANBENEA IR
appropriate techniques such that the transaction SE AIRMAEEEHRGEER
price ultimately allocated to any performance AAEFmIRBERT S M A ER
obligation reflects the amount of consideration BMzRESHE-

to which the Group expects to be entitled in
exchange for transferring the promised goods or
services to the customer.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
HE2021F12A31H L FE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

3.

3.2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
continued

REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH
CUSTOMERS - continued

Variable consideration

For contracts that contain variable consideration
including the customers’ right to return goods,
the Group estimates the amount of consideration
to which it will be entitled using the expected
value method.

The estimated amount of variable consideration
is included in the transaction price only to the
extent that it is highly probable that such an
inclusion will not result in a significant revenue
reversal in the future when the uncertainty
associated with the variable consideration is
subsequently resolved.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
updates the estimated transaction price
(including updating its assessment of whether an
estimate of variable consideration is constrained)
to represent faithfully the circumstances present
at the end of the reporting period and the
changes in circumstances during the reporting
period.

Refund liabilities

The Group recognises a refund liability if the
Group expects to refund some or all of the
consideration received from customers.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
H E2021F12A31H L FE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

3.

3.2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
continued

REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH
CUSTOMERS - continued

Sales with a right of return/exchange

For a sale of products with a right of return/
exchange for dissimilar products, the Group
recognises all of the following:

(a) revenue for the transferred products in
the amount of consideration to which the
Group expects to be entitled (therefore,
revenue would not be recognised for
the products expected to be returned/
exchanged)

(b)  arefund liability/contract liability; and

(c) an asset (and corresponding adjustment
to cost of sales) for its right to recover
products from customers and are
presented as right to returned goods
asset.

Principal versus agent

When another party is involved in providing
goods or services to a customer, the Group
determines whether the nature of its promise
is a performance obligation to provide the
specified goods or services itself (i.e. the Group
is a principal) or to arrange for those goods or
services to be provided by the other party (i.e.
the Group is an agent).

The Group is a principal if it controls the
specified good or service before that good or
service is transferred to a customer.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A 1 5 i M R

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
HE2021F12A31H L FE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

3.

3.2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
continued

REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH
CUSTOMERS - continued

Principal versus agent — continued

The Group is an agent if its performance
obligation is to arrange for the provision of the
specified good or service by another party.
In this case, the Group does not control the
specified good or service provided by another
party before that good or service is transferred to
the customer. When the Group acts as an agent,
it recognises revenue in the amount of any fee or
commission to which it expects to be entitled in
exchange for arranging for the specified goods
or services to be provided by the other party.

LEASES
Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange
for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or
after the date of initial application or arising
from business combinations, the Group
assesses whether a contract is or contains a
lease based on the definition under HKFRS 16
at inception, modification date or acquisition
date, as appropriate. Such contract will not be
reassessed unless the terms and conditions of
the contract are subsequently changed.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

HE2021F12A31B L F &
3.  BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. G AMBERENKEREKX
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL o RMBOR — &

STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - 3.2 EXREHEER-Z
continued
LEASES - continued g —E
The Group as a lessee AEBERBARBA
Allocation of consideration to components of a SHECIEZE & 2K 55 5
contract
For a contract that contains a lease component HEEHREHAKE D AR —IEK
and one or more additional lease or non- ZIEFEIINEE N IEHEAK LD
lease components, the Group allocates the ZEAME AEEREBHEEAR
consideration in the contract to each lease BRER D 2 B B EBREERIE
component on the basis of the relative stand- MEHAKE D 2 ET B EBRE
alone price of the lease component and the EBEHNRESEZREHEEAR
aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease PXEB S o
components.
Non-lease components are separated from lease FEMEEKE » EBEEHEK LD
component and are accounted for by applying SR W EREMEAERARK-

other applicable standards.

Right-of-use assets EHEEE
The cost of right-of-use asset includes: ERAEEE ZKABLE:
. the amount of the initial measurement of . HMEBBRZVXFTERRE:

the lease liability;

. any lease payments made at or before . RABB K ZAELE 2
the commencement date, less any lease FREER R BERD K
incentives received:; HERE:

. any initial direct costs incurred by the . AEEBEEZERNVNTE
Group; and BAAR: &

. an estimate of costs to be incurred by . AEBEFHEEHRAEBE
the Group in dismantling and removing E -EREEEEMESH
the underlying assets, restoring the site HERBEAEEEHER
on which it is located or restoring the RERGEHRTE 2R Z
underlying asset to the condition required MBI PTE AR ET AR -

by the terms and conditions of the lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o W B ok Mk

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
HE2021F12A31H L FE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

3.

3.2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
continued

LEASES - continued
The Group as a lessee — continued
Right-of-use assets — continued

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less
any accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of
lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of its
estimated useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a
separate line item on the consolidated statement
of financial position.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted
under HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (“HKFRS
9") and initially measured at fair value.
Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are
considered as additional lease payments and
included in the cost of right-of-use assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group
recognises and measures the lease liability at the
present value of lease payments that are unpaid
at that date. In calculating the present value of
lease payments, the Group uses the incremental
borrowing rate at the lease commencement date
if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not
readily determinable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

H E2021F12A31H L FE
3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
continued

LEASES - continued
The Group as a lessee — continued
Lease liabilities — continued

The lease payments include:

o fixed payments (including in-substance
fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable;

° variable lease payments that depend on

an index or a rate, initially measured using
the index or rate as at the commencement
date;

° amounts expected to be payable by the
Group under residual value guarantees;

o the exercise price of a purchase option if
the Group is reasonably certain to exercise
the option; and

o payments of penalties for terminating a
lease, if the lease term reflects the Group
exercising an option to terminate the lease.

Variable lease payments that reflect changes in
market rental rates are initially measured using
the market rental rates as at the commencement
date. Variable lease payments that do not
depend on an index or a rate are not included
in the measurement of lease liabilities and right-
of-use assets, and are recognised as expense
in the period in which the event or condition that
triggers the payment occurs.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
HE2021F12A31H L FE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

3.2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
continued

LEASES - continued
The Group as a lessee — continued
Lease liabilities — continued

After the commencement date, lease liabilities
are adjusted by interest accretion and lease
payments. The Group remeasures lease liabilities
(and makes a corresponding adjustment to
the related right-of-use assets) whenever the
lease payments change due to changes in
market rental rates following a market rent
review in which cases the related lease liability
is remeasured by discounting the revised lease
payments using the initial discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a
separate line item on the consolidated statement
of financial position.

Lease modifications

The Group accounts for a lease modification as
a separate lease if:

o the modification increases the scope of
the lease by adding the right to use one or
more underlying assets; and

° the consideration for the leases increases
by an amount commensurate with the
stand-alone price for the increase in
scope and any appropriate adjustments
to that stand-alone price to reflect the
circumstances of the particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted
for as a separate lease, the Group remeasures
the lease liability, less any lease incentives
receivables, based on the lease term of the
modified lease by discounting the revised lease
payments using a revised discount rate at the
effective date of the modification.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
H E2021F12A31H L FE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

3.

3.2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
continued

LEASES — continued
The Group as a lessee — continued
Lease modifications — continued

The Group accounts for the remeasurement
of lease liabilities by making corresponding
adjustments to the relevant right-of-use asset.
When the modified contract contains a lease
component and one or more additional lease or
non-lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the modified contract to each
lease component on the basis of the relative
stand-alone price of the lease component and
the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease
components.

FOREIGN CURRENCIES

In preparing the financial statements of each
individual group entity, transactions in currencies
other than the functional currency of that
entity (foreign currencies) are recorded at the
rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of
the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
at that date. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement
of monetary items, and on the retranslation
of monetary items, are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they arise except
for exchange differences on monetary items
receivable from or payable to a foreign operation
for which settlement is neither planned nor
likely to occur (therefore forming part of the
net investment in the foreign operation), which
are recognised initially in other comprehensive
income and reclassified from equity to profit or
loss on disposal.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A 1 5 i M R

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
HE2021F12A31H L FE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

3.

3.2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
continued

FOREIGN CURRENCIES - continued

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities
of the Group’s operations are translated into
the presentation currency of the Group (i.e.
HK$) using exchange rates prevailing at the
end of each reporting period. Income and
expenses items are translated at the average
exchange rates for the year, unless exchange
rates fluctuate significantly during the period,
in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of transactions are used. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity under the heading of translation reserve.

BORROWING COSTS

All borrowing costs that are not directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of quality assets are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they are
incurred.

GOVERNMENT GRANTS

Government grants are not recognised until
there is reasonable assurance that the Group will
comply with the conditions attaching to them and
that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or
loss on a systematic basis over the periods in
which the Group recognises as expenses the
related costs for which the grants are intended to
compensate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

HE2021F12A31B L F &
3.  BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. G AMBERENKEREKX
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL o RMBOR — &

STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - 3.2 EXREHEER-Z
continued
GOVERNMENT GRANTS - continued BB — 42
Government grants related to income that are B A E R BUT B ERFEE
receivable as compensation for expenses or EEXARIIBEEMERKEE
losses already incurred or for the purpose of AAEERHINSMBEZIE (M
giving immediate financial support to the Group R ) R YA R 18
with no future related costs are recognised in mAER HRAXEESBOK
profit or loss in the period in which they become FA#E BB Hfh B R Bk - B
receivable. Government grants relating to TR THMKRAIIET 2
compensation of expenses are deducted from 5l o

the related expenses, other government grants
are presented under “other income”.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS 3B 1k 5 A e A

Payments to defined contribution retirement FE M PR KRB A FT B 5. Hl 1
benefit plans, the Mandatory Provident Fund ANEEFELBRER ZRKE
Scheme and state-managed retirement benefit MBI ZRNEEREREMA
schemes, are recognised as an expense when ERESHREIIERX -

employees have rendered service entitling them
to contributions.

SHORT-TERM EMPLOYEE BENEFITS F7 B 1 B 75 A

Short-term employee benefits are recognised EHEERMNNIREBRMERS
at the undiscounted amount of the benefits REMAE TN 2 RMRENS
expected to be paid as and when employees A FMEEHES RN I®
rendered the services. All short-term employee RAERAE -

benefits are recognised as an expense.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing EBEZEEAN (Pl ITE R#H
to employees (such as wages and salaries ERFR) DRAOBREREN 25
and annual leave) after deducting any amount BHERARE-

already paid.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
HE2021F12A31H L FE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

3.

3.2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
continued

TAXATION

Income tax expense represents the sum of the
tax currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable
profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from
‘profit before tax’ because of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and
items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group'’s liability for current tax is calculated using
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary
differences between the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding
tax bases used in the computation of taxable
profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised
for all deductible temporary differences to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises
from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of assets and liabilities
in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
H E2021F12A31H L FE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

3.

3.2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
continued

TAXATION - continued

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for
taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, except where the
Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in
the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that
there will be sufficient taxable profits against
which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in
the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period
and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured
at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period in which the liability is settled or the asset
is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and
assets reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets
and liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A 1 5 i M R

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
HE2021F12A31H L FE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

3.

3.2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
continued

TAXATION - continued

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax
for leasing transactions in which the Group
recognises the right-of use assets and the related
lease liabilities, the Group first determines
whether the tax deductions are attributable to the
right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax
deductions are attributable to the lease liabilities,
the Group applies HKAS 12 /ncome Taxes
requirements to the leasing transaction as a
whole. Temporary differences relating to right-
of-use assets and lease liabilities are assessed
on a net basis. Excess of depreciation on right-
of-use assets over the lease payments for the
principal portion of lease liabilities resulting in
net deductible temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and when they relate to income taxes levied to
the same taxable entity by the same taxation
authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit
or loss, except when they relate to items that
are recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case, the current
and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
it 1 B 205 i A B i

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

HE2021F12A31B L F &
3.  BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. G AMBERENKEREKX
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL o RMBOR — &

STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - 3.2 EXREHEER-Z
continued
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT IERNY T Y4
Property, plant and equipment are stated in the ME MBERREBERKRNREH
consolidated statement of financial position at BEFHERZRFREEBE (40
cost, less subsequent accumulated depreciation BIREEMBIRABRRAR -
and subsequent accumulated impairment losses,
if any.
When the Group makes payments for ownership REBELYMEREEREERNER
interests of properties which includes both (BEHELHWREEFE )
leasehold land and building elements, the entire EHRERVNBERE ZHEE A
consideration is allocated between the leasehold hAEERENIREZEHE LR
land and the building elements in proportion to BFE -

the relative fair values at initial recognition.

To the extent the allocation of the relevant i EE R IE R S 15 B & 32 5 AL -
payments can be made reliably, interest in METHREZNEESTHNRAEK
leasehold land is presented as “right-of-use RATEREEE] 27 &K
assets” in the consolidated statement of financial BT E A ERFTEL
position. When the consideration cannot be SMEEREEL W Z KT D EDR
allocated reliably between non-lease building FoREMERSERYE #HeS
element and undivided interest in the underlying e

leasehold land, the entire properties are
classified as property, plant and equipment.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the TERREREZKREENMEEA
cost of assets less their residual values over ERAFHRFHEXNRNRFIRERE
their estimated useful lives, using the straight- R A AFERFH FAEE
line method. The estimated useful lives, residual MFERZEESERMHEEE
values and depreciation method are reviewed at REZ BN EAE2HTER
the end of each reporting period, with the effect FEEFREEAR

of any changes in estimate accounted for a
prospective basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
HE2021F12A31H L FE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

3.

3.2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
continued

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT —
continued

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from
the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item
of property, plant and equipment is determined
as the difference between the sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in the profit or loss.

IMPAIRMENT ON PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT AND RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of its assets with
finite useful lives to determine whether there is
any indicator that those assets have suffered
an impairment loss. If any such indicator exists,
the recoverable amount of the relevant asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss, if any.

The recoverable amount of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets are estimated
individually. When it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of an individual asset
individually, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
H E2021F12A31H L FE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

3.

3.2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
continued

IMPAIRMENT ON PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT AND RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS —
continued

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment,
corporate assets are allocated to the relevant
cash-generating unit when a reasonable and
consistent basis of allocation can be established,
or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest
group of cash generating units for which a
reasonable and consistent allocation basis can
be established. The recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit or group
of cash-generating units to which the corporate
asset belongs, and is compared with the carrying
amount of the relevant cash-generating unit or
group of cash-generating units.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value
less costs of disposal and value-in-use. In
assessing value-in-use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset or a cash-
generating unit for which the estimates of future
cash flows have not been adjusted.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
HE2021F12A31H L FE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

3.

3.2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
continued

IMPAIRMENT ON PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT AND RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS —
continued

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than
its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to
its recoverable amount. For corporate assets
or portion of corporate assets which cannot
be allocated on a reasonable and consistent
basis to a cash-generating unit, the Group
compares the carrying amount of a group of
cash-generating units, including the carrying
amounts of the corporate assets or portion of
corporate assets allocated to that group of cash-
generating units, with the recoverable amount of
the group of cash-generating units. In allocating
the impairment loss, the impairment loss is
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the
other assets on a pro-rata basis based on the
carrying amount of each asset in the unit or the
group of cash-generating units. The carrying
amount of an asset is not reduced below the
highest of its fair value less costs of disposal (if
measurable), its value in use (if determinable)
and zero. The amount of the impairment loss
that would otherwise have been allocated to the
asset is allocated pro rata to the other assets of
the unit or the group of cash-generating units.
An impairment loss is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
H E2021F12A31H L FE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

3.

3.2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
continued

IMPAIRMENT ON PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT AND RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS —
continued

Where an impairment loss subsequently
reverses, the carrying amount of the asset
(or cash-generating unit or a group of cash-
generating units) is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so
that the increased carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or cash-generating
unit or a group of cash-generating units) unit in
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

INVENTORIES

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost of inventories is
determined on a weighted average basis for gold
and specific identification basis for watches and
other jewellery items depending on the nature
of the inventory. Net realisable value represents
the estimated selling price for inventories less
all estimated cost of completion and costs
necessary to make the sale. Cost necessary to
make the sale include incremental costs directly
attributable to the sale and non-incremental costs
which the Group must incur to make the sale.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
HE2021F12A31H L FE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

3.

3.2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
continued

PROVISIONS

Provisions are recognised when the Group has
a present obligation (legal or constructive) as
a result of a past event, it is probable that the
Group will be required to settle that obligation,
and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the
best estimate of the consideration required to
settle the present obligation at the end of the
reporting period, taking into account the risks
and uncertainties surrounding the obligation.
When a provision is measured using the cash
flows estimated to settle the present obligation,
its carrying amount is the present value of those
cash flows (where the effect of the time value of
money is material).

Restoration provisions

Provisions for the costs to restore leased
assets to their original condition, as required
by the terms and conditions of the lease, are
recognised at the date of inception of the lease
at the directors’ best estimate of the expenditure
that would be required to restore the assets,
estimates are regularly reviewed and adjusted as
appropriate for new circumstances.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised when a group entity becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on
a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in
the marketplace.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
H E2021F12A31H L FE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

3.

3.2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
continued

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
initially measured at fair value except for trade
receivables arising from contracts with customers
which are initially measured in accordance
with HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with
Customers (“HKFRS 15”). Transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition or
issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
are added to or deducted from the fair value
of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition.

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial
asset or financial liability and of allocating
interest income and interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts and payments (including all fees and
points paid or received that form an integral part
of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial asset or financial
liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to
the net carrying amount on initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A 1 5 i M R

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
HE2021F12A31H L FE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

3.

3.2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
continued

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued
Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following
conditions are subsequently measured at
amortised cost:

° the financial asset is held within a
business model whose objective is to
collect contractual cash flows; and

o the contractual terms give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding.

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method for financial assets measured
subsequently at amortised cost. Interest income
is calculated by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial
asset except for financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired. For
financial assets that have subsequently become
credit-impaired, interest income is recognised
by applying the effective interest rate to the
amortised cost of the financial asset from the
next reporting period. If the credit risk on the
credit-impaired financial instrument improves
so that the financial asset is no longer credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset from the
beginning of the reporting period following the
determination that the asset is no longer credit-
impaired.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
H E2021F12A31H L FE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

3.

3.2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
continued

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued
Financial assets — continued
Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment
under expected credit loss (“ECL") model on
financial assets (including trade receivables,
other receivables, amounts due from related
companies, rental deposits and bank balances),
which are subject to impairment assessment
under HKFRS 9. The amount of ECL is updated
at each reporting date to reflect changes in
credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will
result from all possible default events over
the expected life of the relevant instrument. In
contrast, 12-month ECL represents the portion
of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from
default events that are possible within 12 months
after the reporting date. Assessment are done
based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific
to the debtors, general economic conditions and
an assessment of both the current conditions
at the reporting date as well as the forecast of
future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for
trade receivables. The ECL on these assets are
assessed individually for debtors with significant
balances.

For other instruments, the Group measures the
loss allowance equal to 12-month ECL, unless
when there has been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition, in which
case the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The
assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be
recognised is based on significant increases in
the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since
initial recognition.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
HE2021F12A31H L FE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
continued

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued
Financial assets — continued

Impairment of financial assets — continued
(i) Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk
has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk
of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with
the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition. In making this assessment,
the Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportable, including
historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue
cost or effort.

In particular, the following information
is taken into account when assessing
whether credit risk has increased
significantly:

° an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the financial
instrument’s external (if available) or
internal credit rating;

° significant deterioration in external
market indicators of credit risk, e.g.
a significant increase in the credit
spread, the credit default swap
prices for the debtor;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

Aok B T s A A

HZE2021F12A31B L FE
3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. mMEBESMBHRENKEREK
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL TRt R -
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - 3.2 EXREHEER-Z
continued
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — continued ST H—Z&
Financial assets — continued THEE—E
Impairment of financial assets — continued ZHEERE &
(i) Significant increase in credit risk — () EERKRBEZLM—Z
continued

. existing or forecast adverse . HE SRSKBER
changes in business, financial ERREEHBEANE
or economic conditions that are HBEAF S B8
expected to cause a significant A EHEBAEE
decrease in the debtor’s ability to HEEBZENKRET
meet its debt obligations; [

. an actual or expected significant . BERAREEENE
deterioration in the operating results BB EAREL:
of the debtor;

. an actual or expected significant . BEBAMEZEE
adverse change in the regulatory, OB SR MTIRIR B R
economic, or technological ke BIRERXR
environment of the debtor that TF B4 - E ] &5
results in a significant decrease in BEBEABREGEH 2
the debtor’s ability to meet its debt BE I KI8T R o
obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above Tam Lt 5T 2 A& R -

assessment, the Group presumes that ) m,'M‘JL,TA?ﬁHHEiESO?E’

the credit risk has increased significantly rEESBREEERR A

since initial recognition when contractual ‘%Dﬁéﬁﬁ%%?}(ﬂ%ﬁ%i‘a‘bﬂ’

payments are more than 30 days past RIEXEBEAEARZ
due, unless the Group has reasonable and B BHREELIEDOL -
supportable information that demonstrates

otherwise.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
HE2021F12A31H L FE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
continued

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — continued
Financial assets — continued
Impairment of financial assets — continued

(i) Significant increase in credit risk —
continued

Despite the aforegoing, the Group
assumes that the credit risk on a debt
instrument has not increased significantly
since initial recognition if the debt
instrument is determined to have low
credit risk at the reporting date. A debt
instrument is determined to have low credit
risk if i) it has a low risk of default, ii) the
borrower has a strong capacity to meet
its contractual cash flow obligations in
the near term and iii) adverse changes in
economic and business conditions in the
longer term may, but will not necessarily,
reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil
its contractual cash flow obligations. The
Group considers a debt instrument to have
low credit risk when it has an internal or
external credit rating of ‘investment grade’
as per globally understood definitions.

The Group regularly monitors the
effectiveness of the criteria used to identify
whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are
capable of identifying significant increase
in credit risk before the amount becomes
past due.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
H E2021F12A31H L FE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
continued

3.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Financial assets — continued

Impairment of financial assets — continued

(i)

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management,
the Group considers an event of default
occurs when information developed
internally or obtained from external
sources indicates that the debtor is
unlikely to pay its creditors, including the
Group, in full (without taking into account
any collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group
considers that default has occurred when
a financial asset is more than 90 days past
due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate
that a more lagging default criterion is
more appropriate.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
HE2021F12A31H L FE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
continued

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued
Financial assets — continued

Impairment of financial assets — continued
(iii)  Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when
one or more events that have a detrimental
impact on the estimated future cash flows
of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-
impaired includes observable data about
the following events:

(a)  significant financial difficulty of the
issuer or the borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a
default or past due event;

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for
economic or contractual reasons
relating to the borrower’s financial
difficulty, having granted to the
borrower a concession(s) that
the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider; or

(d) it is becoming probable that the
borrower will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganisation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
H E2021F12A31H L FE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
continued

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

3.

Financial assets — continued

Impairment of financial assets — continued

(iv)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset
when there is information indicating that
the counterparty is in severe financial
difficulty and there is no realistic prospect
of recovery, for example, when the
counterparty has been placed under
liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or in the case of trade
receivables from contracts with customers
when the amounts are over two years past
due, whichever occurs sooner. Financial
assets written off may still be subject to
enforcement activities under the Group’s
recovery procedures, taking into account
legal advice where appropriate. A write-
off constitutes a derecognition event. Any
subsequent recoveries are recognised in
profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function
of the probability of default, loss given
default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if
there is a default) and the exposure at
default. The assessment of the probability
of default and loss given default is based
on historical data and forward-looking
information, such as Gross Domestic
Product (i.e. GDP). Estimation of ECL
reflects an unbiased and probability-
weighted amount that is determined with
the respective risks of default occurring as
the weights.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A 1 5 i M R

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

HZE2021F12A31AILEE
3.  BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. RS EMBHRENKEREX
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL FRTBOR — &
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - 3.2 EARSHBEK-—#&
continued
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued SR TH—&
Financial assets — continued THEE—E
Impairment of financial assets — continued ZHEEE &
(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL — (v) iﬁ HEEBEZERE
continued R—E
Generally, the ECL is the difference —RmE BHEEEEAR

between all contractual cash flows that are BBEEHNENAEE A
due to the Group in accordance with the EefReanEElAE
contract and the cash flows that the Group EHWR BERERE

expects to receive, discounted at the
effective interest rate determined at initial
recognition.

Except for the trade debtors with
significant balances which are assessed
individually, ECL for other financial assets
is considered on a collective basis taking
into consideration past due information
and relevant credit information such
as forward looking macroeconomic
information.

The Group takes into consideration the
following characteristics when formulating
the grouping:

° Nature of financial instruments
(including trade receivables,
other receivables, rental deposits,
amounts due from related
companies and bank balances);

° Past-due status;

° Nature, size and industry of debtors;
and

o External credit ratings where
available.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

H E2021F12A31H L FE
3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
continued

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — continued
Financial assets — continued
Impairment of financial assets — continued

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL —
continued

The grouping is regularly reviewed by
management to ensure the constituents of
each group continue to share similar credit
risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on
the gross carrying amount of the financial
asset unless the financial asset is credit-
impaired, in which case interest income is
calculated based on amortised cost of the
financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain
or loss in profit or loss for all financial
instruments by adjusting their carrying
amount, with the exception of trade
receivables where the corresponding
adjustment is recognised through a loss
allowance account.

Financial liabilities and equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified as either financial liabilities
or as equity in accordance with the substance of
the contractual arrangements and the definitions
of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that
evidences a residual interest in the assets of
an entity after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A 1 5 i M R

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
HE2021F12A31H L FE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

3.

3.2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
continued

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued
Financial liabilities and equity — continued
Equity instruments — continued

Repurchase of the Company's own equity
instruments is recognised and deducted directly
in equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or
loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation
of the Company’s own equity instruments.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities (including trade payables,
other payables, amounts due to related
companies and bank borrowings) are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using
the effective interest method.

Derecognition of financial assets and financial
liabilities
The Group derecognises a financial asset only

when the contractual rights to the cash flows
from the asset expire.

On derecognition of a financial asset at
amortised cost, the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liability
when, and only when, the Group’s obligations
are discharged, cancelled or have expired.
The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid and payable is recognised in
profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

H E2021F12A31H L FE
4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION

UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 3, the Directors are
required to make estimates and assumptions about
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be
relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an on-going basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only
that period, or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the end of the reporting period that may have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the
next financial year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A 1 5 i M R

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

HE2021F12A31H L FE
4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION

UNCERTAINTY - continued

ALLOWANCE FOR INVENTORIES -
JEWELLERIES HELD FOR RESALE

In estimating the amount of allowance for inventories
— jewelleries held for resale, it is the Group’s policy
to review the net realisable value of inventories
periodically with reference to the condition of the items
and the market condition. The management of the
Group reviews regularly the suitability of allowance
policy and estimates the amount of allowance for
inventories based primarily current market conditions,
historical and current sales information, pricing policy
and strategies, inventory realisation plan, as well as
the ageing and conditions of inventories to identify
slow-moving items. In addition, the management also
appoints an independent professional gemmologist
to perform valuation on certain jewellery items as
reference for allowance consideration. The Group
carries out an inventory review at the end of the
reporting period and makes allowance. When the
subsequent estimated amount of allowance for
inventories is less than the original cost, a material
allowance may arise. As at 31 December 2021, the
carrying amount of inventories for jewelleries held
for resale is HK$2,011,104,000 (net of allowance for
inventories of HK$52,559,000) (31 December 2020:
HK$1,994,353,000 (net of allowance for inventories of
HK$41,511,000)).

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

Revenue represents sales of products to retail
customers and commission income from services
provided.

For sales of products to retail customers, revenue is
recognised when control of the goods has transferred,
being at the point the customer purchases the goods at
the retail shop. Payment of the transaction price is due
immediately at the point the customer purchases the
goods.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

H E2021F12A31H L FE
5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

— continued

For commission income, revenue is recognised when
it expects to be entitled in exchange for arranging for
the specified goods provided by the other party to the
customers at the retail shop.

All revenue are recognised at a point in time.

Information reported to the chief operating decision
maker (“CODM”), the Executive Director of the Group,
for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment
of segment performance focuses on the locations of the
operations. This is also the basis upon which the Group
is arranged and organised. The Group’'s operating
segments under HKFRS 8 Operating Segments are
operations located in Hong Kong, Macau, The People's
Republic of China excluding Hong Kong and Macau
(“PRC") and other regions in Asia Pacific (representing
Singapore and Malaysia). The revenue generated by
each of the operating segments is mainly derived from
sales of watch and jewellery. No operating segments
identified by the CODM have been aggregated in
arriving at the reportable segments of the Group.

All the sales of products and commission income are
completed within one year. As permitted under HKFRS
15, the transaction price allocated to these unsatisfied
contracts is not disclosed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
HE2021F12A31H L FE

5.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5.

— continued

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and
results by reportable and operating segment:

For the year ended 31 December 2021

W N B oy B — 4

NI RAEBWARKEZ 2R LK

& WA -

HZE2021F128318 L FE

Other
Hong regions in
Kong Macau PRC Asia Pacific Elimination Consolidated
5E A TE GZAHMHE E] e
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FTEx FTER FEx FERT FERT FER
Revenue WA
External sales INREEE 1,737,379 370,731 1,227,807 586,971 - 3,922,888
Inter-segment sales* DEEEE 125,342 16,225 - - (141,567) -
Commission income BeWA 1,872 1,848 - - - 3,720
1,864,593 388,804 1,227,807 586,971 (141,567) 3,926,608
* Inter-segment sales are  * DR E
charged at cost R X 8
Segment profit 5 85:3% F 137,376 48,709 188,250 106,702 - 481,037
Unallocated other income A&7 B E b U A 8,848
Unallocated corporate RAOBEERX
expenses (205,647)
Unallocated other gains R AL H b U 25 3%
or losses EE (11,591)
Unallocated finance costs 7 FC @l & Ak A& (16,378)
Profit before tax B %4 B i 256,269
For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE2020F12A31B ILFE
Other
Hong regions in
Kong Macau PRC Asia Pacific  Elimination Consolidated
B SR HE RAHAMME ki TA
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHEL FHEL FHET FHET FHET FHET
Revenue WA
External sales SNRIHE 1,256,426 160,393 783,267 426,331 - 2,626,417
Inter-segment sales* DEEHEE 42,681 6,637 = = (49,318) =
Commission income BalA 155 37 - - - 192
1,299,262 167,067 783,267 426,331 (49,318) 2,626,609
* Inter-segment sales are  * DRI E
charged at cost R 8
Segment profit 5 & 7l 70,570 11,599 104,509 68,493 = 255,171
Unallocated other income K% BELE b It A 8,195
Unallocated corporate RAEEERZ
expenses (181,599)
Unallocated other gains AR5 BLE fth W 55 3%
or losses B (13,832)
Unallocated finance costs 7 7 Bt @ & A A (33,139)
Profit before tax B 5 AT & A 34,796
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

H E2021F12A31H L FE
5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

— continued

The accounting policies of the reportable and operating
segments are the same as the Group’s accounting
policies described in note 3. Segment profit represents
the profit earned from each segment without allocation
of other income, corporate expenses including
depreciation charged on the self-owned flagship
shop, other gains or losses and finance costs. This is
the measure reported to the CODM for the purposes
of resource allocation and assessment of segment
performance.

SEGMENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

No assets and liabilities are included in the measures
of the Group’s segment reporting that are regularly
reviewed by the CODM. Accordingly, no segment
assets and liabilities are presented.

OTHER SEGMENT INFORMATION

Amounts included in the measure of segment result:

For the year ended 31 December 2021

Aok B T s A A

W N B oy ¥ B R — 42

A2HmNMEED Iz B BRR EK FES
Pl REE S BERAAR - 2 &
ERARDPEEMKRA CXRAX(BREEB
XEAEEENTEEZR HtlaEk
BRARBERA) 2B &SRR
Aot BRI EREERRELEITER
IEBRDBERFEDBRRZFTER

-

THEERAE
TEEERRECTHEHN Z2AKREDH
BEFEFUEFABEERBE Bt
VEEHBDMEERAB-

Hiv s BEHR
AFADERERTEC S

BE20215F12A31BLFE

Other
Hong regions in
Kong Macau PRC  Asia Pacific Unallocated Consolidated
B A TE TAHMHE RAE me
HK$000  HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$°000 HK$’000
THET THERT THERT TET TERT TERT
(Note b)
(MizEDb )
Depreciation of property, 1% #22 1
plant and equipment HETE 107,584 3,685 6,638 4,916 5,962 128,785
Depreciation of EREEENE
right-of-use assets 209,540 12,532 23,955 9,010 11,129 266,166
Expense relating to HEEMERMZ
rented premises (Note a)  BI3Z (Kizta) 960 329 98,599 11,136 77 111,795
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
HE2021F12A31H L FE

— continued
OTHER SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

W N B oy B — 4

Hitt o MESN &

(a) Expenses relating to rented premises includes expenses
relating to variable lease payments and rental expenses
for contracts assessed not under the definition of lease
under HKFRS 16.

(b) Unallocated represents amount used for office.

REVENUE BY MAJOR PRODUCTS

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue
from its major products and services:

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZE2020F12A31BLFE
Other
regions in
Hong Kong Macau PRC Asia Pacific Unallocated Consolidated
B SR H DAREAMME RABC RE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHEL FHEL FHET FET FET
(Note b)
(Pt D)
Depreciation of property, ¥ % - #22 1
plant and equipment RETE 116,031 5,864 7,758 6,159 5,778 141,590
Depreciation of FREEERE
right-of-use assets 189,143 12,528 19,552 9,533 11,759 242,515
Expense relating to rented BFAEWEFRE 2
premises (Note a) A% (Mista) 33 = 66,882 5,767 945 73,627
Notes: B 5

(a) HEEEMEEUIHXBFEETZEES
NHEBZRAX RAREEENBRS
EQF16RBENBEMABNANZ

Bem%-
(b) FOBEARWAZZEHE-
IBEmZBA

AEERAEBEMRMRE ZWADHT
LN

2021 2020

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHERT FHET

Sales of watch H & 8 3,265,202 2,055,960
Sales of jewellery HEKRE 657,686 570,457
Commission income — Watch Bae B A —fE% 3,720 192
3,926,608 2,626,609
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

22 A\ 23
o B 2R B
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
HZE2021F12A31B L FE
5.  REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. WA K& R -2
— continued
GEOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION i & & ¥
Information about the Group's non-current assets, FHRREEMEMBUEZR AR
excluding rental deposits and deferred tax assets, FRBEE (HeREREENBEE
presented based on the geographical location of the BRON) 2 ERIFBEHINNAT
assets are detailed below:
As at 31 December 2021 ®2021F12A31H
Other
Hong regions in
Kong Macau PRC Asia Pacific Consolidated
&8 e N PE SmAHfME =Ee
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FERT THER FTERT THER
(Note b)
(FfzEb)
Non-current assets JEREEE 1,711,497 13,617 86,582 12,058 1,823,754
As at 31 December 2020 72020F12H31H
Other
Hong regions in
Kong Macau PRC  Asia Pacific Consolidated
BB R P RE SR AHAh R o)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FHET FAT FHET
(Note b)
(FzEb)
Non-current assets FEREIEE 1,946,835 31,634 83,829 20,984 2,083,282
No revenue from a single customer amounted to 10% RAEEE SEREAEEE-KFP
or more of the Group’s total revenue for both years. ZWAEAREEWALTEI0%I A L -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

22 A\ 23
;%'ji {ZI\EZI- % ﬁ i% I}ﬁ it
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
HZE2021F12A31B L FE
6. OTHER INCOME 6. HAbl A
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FHT
Interest income from RITE SR B HA
bank deposits 6,141 1,888
Interest income from MekaMEKA
rental deposits 2,512 3,588
Government grants BT 8 Bh - 2,589
Others i) 195 130
8,848 8,195
In 2020, the Group recognised government grants 20205 - A& E gt BT E R SR 15
to HK$26,705,000 in respect of COVID-19-related 8 1Y 47 B TE SR BUIT 4 Bh 26,705,000 7T
subsidies, of which HK$20,193,000 relates to H #20,193,000/% 7T 82 & 8 BUT IR 1y
Employment Support Scheme provided by the Hong [fR Bt %] 5 8] B #8 %3,923,000/% 7T H
Kong government and HK$3,923,000 provided by the Mg BFRHE ZERBERAFE
Singapore government. These amounts have been BB TR A
offset against staff costs for the year.
7.  FINANCE COSTS 7. B
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FHT
Interest on bank borrowings RITEENB 6,406 16,652
Interest on lease liabilities HEBENE 9,972 16,487
16,378 33,139
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

o B 2R B
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
HZE2021F12A31B L FE
8. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 8. BrFBiw A
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Profit before tax has been arrived BrBE AR A 20k (FFA)
at after charging (crediting): THIEE :
Auditor’'s remuneration Z BT B &
— Current year —AKFEE 3,520 3,433
— Overprovision in prior years —BAFEHBERE (222) (220)
Cost of inventories included in cost  $4&EK AR Z FERA
of sales (included allowance for (B ¥E1F E#1#16,604,000
inventories of HK$16,604,000 7B 7T (20204 : B ElTF S & B
(2020: reversal of allowance for 1,189,000/%7T) )
inventories of HK$1,189,000)) 2,692,567 1,777,163
(Reversal of) allowance for credit FEBE (BERE)EE
losses (665) 536
Depreciation of property, plant and M HBEREBETE
equipment
— retail shops —TEEH 122,823 135,812
— offices S NE 5,962 5,778
128,785 141,590
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE
— retail shops —ZTEEH 255,037 230,756
- offices /N 11,129 11,759
266,166 242,515
Staff costs, including Directors’ BIXA BREEEME
remuneration (note 9(a)) (Pt 5F9(a) )
- salaries and other benefits costs *i‘ﬁi&ﬁﬁﬁ?ﬁﬂéﬁﬁﬁ 264,738 177,664
— retirement benefits scheme ROKAE T FT B4R 3
contributions 23,804 14,534
288,542 192,198
Included in other gains or losses: FFAH MU A A
Impairment loss recognised in respect G % - 2R MR EERZ
of property, plant and equipment BIEEE 6,729 6,990
Impairment loss recognised in respect FLiE F# & E R
of right-of-use assets BB E B 7,939 8,951
Loss on disposals/write-off of property, & FFiE¥ % - a2 &
plant and equipment xRz BB 1,202 1,580
Gain arising from termination/ MEKRIE A MERFEEZ
modification of leases UG 75 (50) (317)
Net exchange gains BE 5 Uk 25 ) F 5B (4,229) (3,372)
11,591 13,832
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

HZE2021F12A31AILEE
9. DIRECTORS” AND EMPLOYEES’ 9. AR EE 4
EMOLUMENTS
(A) DIRECTORS (A) EE
Details of the emoluments paid and payable to #H £20214F &2020F12A31H 1+
the Directors for the years ended 31 December FEZEMNKENEE ZM &
2021 and 2020 are as follows: BT
For the year ended 31 December 2021 BZ£2021F12A31A L FE
Performance  Retirement
Salaries related benefits
and incentive scheme Others
Fees allowance payment contributions (note) Total
FeR ®E EAREF Hit
re EE RBHAX sTEIMR (M) @t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
THER THERT THER FTEx FTER THExR
Executive Directors BITES
Ms. Cindy Yeung BHaLt 250 3,437 - 60 2,400 6,147
Mr. Ng Koon Keung, Rk
Ricky (appointed on (H2021%
1 July 2021) 7TR1BEZE) 125 1,176 432 30 - 1,763
Mr. Wong Chi Fai BEELAE 250 - - - - 250
Ms. Fan Man Seung, BEERLT
Vanessa 250 - - - - 250
Independent Non-executive BIFHITEE
Directors
Ms. Chan Sim Ling, Irene BREER 220 - - - - 220
Mr. Liu Hing Hung BB 220 - - - - 220
Ms. Chan Wiling, Yvonne RER T 220 - - - - 220
1,535 4,613 432 90 2,400 9,070
Note: For the year ended 31 December 2021, a sum of MizE: #HE2021F12A31HLEFE H
HK$2,400,000 was paid to a company controlled GHRELZTIRHERETAEE
by Ms. Cindy Yeung for the provision of her BT RBHAREEBENRS
services relating to design and consulting services MEES AR SN —£RE
rendered to the Group. 2,400,000/8 JT °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
H E2021F12A31H L FE

9. DIRECTORS” AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS - continued

Aok B T s A A

9. HHELEEME &

(A) DIRECTORS - continued (A) EE-—#
For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZE2020F12A31HILFE
Performance Retirement
Salaries related benefits
and incentive scheme
Fees  allowance payment contributions Tota
RIRREF
wme FekEH RRERHHRAEX FHEIE R “ast
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FHET FET FHET
Executive Directors HITES
Ms. Cindy Yeung EE ik 250 2,461 223 60 2,994
Mr. Wong Chi Fai HEEBELE 250 - - - 250
Ms. Fan Man Seung, Vanessa Ss&E %+ 250 - - = 250
Independent Non-executive BIFHITEE
Directors
Ms. Chan Sim Ling, Irene PRIZEIS X1 220 = s = 220
Mr. Liu Hing Hung BERKTE 220 - - - 220
Ms. Chan Wiling, Yvonne PRER Z+ 220 - - = 220
1,410 2,461 223 60 4,154
(B) EMPLOYEES (B) EE

Of the five individuals with the highest
emoluments in the Group, two (2020: one) were
Director whose emoluments are included in note
9(a) above. The emoluments of the remaining

AEBz AU FMNEE S
ML (2020F : —fI) BESE - %
L2 HME PR Ll i 5E9(a) - 84
T =1z (20204 : 1) Z ¥ Bl a0

three (2020: four) individuals were as follows: T
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Salaries and allowance ¥ 4% KE8, 4,793 5,593
Performance related FRIREBENF

incentive payment 198 650

Retirement benefits ROKAEFIFH B4R 3K
scheme contributions 172 274
5,163 6,517
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
HE2021F12A31H L FE

9. DIRECTORS” AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS - continued

ERNAEEAME &

(B) EMPLOYEES - continued (B) EE-—#
Their emoluments were within the following BEZHMEBEMT
bands:
Number of employees
EEAHY
2021 2020
HK$1,000,001 to 1,000,001/8 L&
HK$1,500,000 1,500,000/% 7T 1 2
HK$1,500,001 to 1,500,001/& L&
HK$2,000,000 2,000,000/ JT 2 2
Notes: B 5
(i) The fees paid or payable to the Executive Directors (i) FE NS ENRITESERE

and Independent Non-executive Directors shown
above were for their services in connection with
their services as directors of the Company.

(i) The salaries and allowance, performance related
incentive payment and retirement benefits scheme
contributions paid or payable to the Executive
Directors shown above were for their services in
connection with the management of the affairs of
the Group.

(iii) The performance related incentive payment is
a discretionary bonus determined based on the
financial performance of the Group.

(iv) No Directors waived or agreed to waive any
emoluments in the years ended 31 December 2021
and 31 December 2020.

(v) During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 31
December 2020, no emoluments were paid by the
Group to any of the directors of the Group or the
five highest paid individuals as an inducement to
join or upon joining the Group or as compensation
for loss of office.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
H E2021F12A31H L FE

Aok B T s A A

10. TAXATION 10. BiIAE
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHT
The tax charge (credit) FARBEZH (BER)BE:
for the year comprises:
Current year: REE:
Hong Kong BB 7,039 -
Macau JE P9 5,673 =
PRC s 19,143 =
Singapore o0 16,313 9,286
48,168 9,286
(Over)underprovision BEFE (BREBEE) BETL
in prior years:
Hong Kong BB - (5,894)
Macau R P (2,153) (4,855)
Singapore #rnsg 87 =
(2,066) (10,749)
Deferred taxation (note 23) EEFRIE (P 5E23) 5,472 2,266
51,574 803

Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the first
HK$2 million of profits of the qualifying group entity
will be taxed at 8.25%, and profits above HK$2 million
will be taxed at 16.5%. The profits of group entities not
qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax rates regime will
continue to be taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%.

The Directors considered the amount involved upon
implementation of the two-tiered profits tax rates regime
as insignificant to the consolidated financial statements.
Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the
estimated assessable profit for both years.

The Macau Complementary Income Tax is calculated at
12% of the estimated assessable profits for both years.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax
(the “EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the
EIT Law, the tax rate of the Company’s subsidiaries in

the PRC is 25% for both years.

Singapore Income Tax is calculated at 17% of the
estimated assessable profits for both years.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

HZE2021F12A31AILEE
10. TAXATION - continued 10. BiE-—4&
Malaysia Income Tax is calculated at 24% of the MEF E 2 H R TSR R e
estimated assessable profits for both years. No RBURE N 224%5 E - R B FE A - B
provision for Malaysia Income Tax has been made as RARBMBARWENERAEELE
the Company's subsidiary did not have any assessable o] & &R B A - (A b I 8 3L S R PR o
profit arising from Malaysia for both years. PR E B -
Details of deferred taxation are set out in note 23. EIER IR 2 I E PR M523 -
Taxation for the year can be reconciled to the profit REEHBERGEERREMEEKA
before tax per the consolidated statement of profit or WMEMRZBRBANEMERAT
loss and other comprehensive income as follows:
2021 2020
HK$°’000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Profit before tax B 5% A A 256,269 34,796
Tax charge at Hong Kong £16.5% 2 BB NE BT R
Profits Tax rate of Wz #18 (20204 : 16.5% )
16.5% (2020: 16.5%) 42,284 5,741
Tax effect of expenses not PRI MBRAX 2 BB 2
deductible for tax purpose 21,976 20,795
Tax effect of income not taxable EERRWA ZHIEHE
for tax purpose (2,712) (2,410)
Effect of different tax rates of MEBARIREMAEEREE
subsidiaries operating ZTRABMEzHE
in other jurisdictions 3,705 56
Tax effect of tax losses not MARBRMIBEEE NG E
recognised 2,353 938
Utilisation of tax losses AR AR 2 MIAER
previously not recognised (13,823) (12,988)
Over provision in respect of MEFE 2 BREEE
prior years (2,066) (10,749)
Others HAb (143) (580)
Taxation for the year FEMIE 51,574 803
The Hong Kong Profits Tax rate is used as this is the FIRACERBNEHEDASEEERKE

domestic tax rate in the jurisdiction where the operation
of the Group is substantially based. Taxation arising in
other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates prevailing
in the relevant jurisdiction.
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7k B 5 R 3R B WE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
HZE2021F12A31AILEE
11. DIVIDENDS 11. BB
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTERT THET
Dividends recognised as BRBAEEDIRZKRE :
distribution during the year:
2020 Final: HK0.15 cent 2020 R : ®AR0.1578 1l
(2020: 2019 final dividend: (20204 : 20194
Nil) per share RHEARR B« 4 ) 10,169 =
2021 Interim: HK0.55 cent 2021F Fh Hi : §AR0.55/8 1l
(2020: interim dividend: Nil) (20204 : R HARR B &)
per share 37,287 =
47,456 -
The Board of Directors proposed the payment of a HE2021F12A31BHLFE EFoE
final dividend of HK0.35 cent (2020: HK0.15 cent) K R HARR B & %0.3578 1l (20204 -
per share in an aggregate amount of approximately 0.15% 1) - # € ¥ 4 /23,728,000 7T
HK$23,728,000 (2020: HK$10,169,000) for the year (20204 : 10,169,000/ JT ) * 1 78 & K
ended 31 December 2021 which is subject to approval REIRENEERFTEFRG L &R
by the shareholders of the Company at the forthcoming FREE -
annual general meeting.
12. EARNINGS PER SHARE - BASIC 12. HRAER —HAR
The calculation of the basic earnings per share RARHEE ANEBEBRERRBIIIRE
attributable to owners of the Company is based on the T3 BEEE -
following data:
EARNINGS 2R
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FHET
Profit for the year attributable RAEEREREF 2
to owners of the Company PN/NCIE RN
for the purpose of FEE A
basic earnings per share 204,695 33,993
NUMBER OF SHARES BaEE
2021 2020
Number of ordinary shares A BEERERERN 2
for the purpose of TEKREA
basic earnings per share 6,779,458,129 6,779,458,129
No diluted earnings per share in both years was HARBEFEFELEDETECEETL A
presented as there were no potential dilutive ordinary Bg - B R R R F R AR 25 AR
shares in issue during both years. SERF
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
HE2021F12A31H L FE

13.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. W3- WA Bkt
Leasehold Furniture,
land and Leasehold fixtures and Motor
building improvements  equipment vehicles Total
HEL#HR HENE B EER
£ BEIR R RE @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TR FET THT TR
COoST %
At 1 January 2020 7202061 A1H 1,800,000 371,079 121,572 1,333 2,293,984
Exchange realignment EH AR - 1,854 1,102 13 2,969
Additions NE - 10,852 6,252 - 17,104
Disposals/write-off &/ = (52,739) (4,208) - (56,947)
At 31 December 2020 R2020612A31R 1,800,000 331,046 124,718 1,346 2,257,110
Exchange realignment B K A% - 587 615 7 1,209
Additions RE S 27,069 7,081 - 34,150
Disposals/write-off HE /i = (27,343) (3,730) = (31,073)
At 31 December 2021 R20214612A31H 1,800,000 331,359 128,684 1,353 2,261,396
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION Rt ERFE
AND IMPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2020 202061 A1H 96,874 275,268 71,096 688 443,926
Exchange realignment B K 3% - 1,356 701 13 2,070
Provided for the year FRREE 92,334 35,110 13,924 222 141,590
Impairment loss recognised RERERZHEER
in profit or loss - 6,990 - = 6,990
Eliminated on disposals/write-off HE /R - (51,872) (3,490) - (55,362)
At 31 December 2020 R202012A31R 189,208 266,852 82,231 923 539,214
Exchange realignment B K 3% - 337 301 7 645
Provided for the year FNEE 92,081 22,159 14,323 202 128,785
Impairment loss recognised REZRRZAEESE
in profit or loss - 6,729 - - 6,729
Eliminated on disposals/write-off HE ik H = (26,607) (3,093) = (29,700)
At 31 December 2021 #2021512A31H 281,289 269,470 93,762 1,152 645,673
CARRYING VALUES RHEE
At 31 December 2021 R2021412A31R 1,518,711 61,889 34,922 201 1,615,723
At 31 December 2020 120205124310 1,610,792 64,194 42,487 423 1,717,896
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

H E2021F12A31H L FE
13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT -

continued

The items of property, plant and equipment above, after
taking into account the residual value, are depreciated
on a straight-line basis at the following rates per
annum:

Leasehold land and building Over the lease terms

Leasehold improvements 16.7% — 33.3%

Furniture, fixtures and
equipment 9% — 33.3%

Motor vehicles 18% — 20%

Leasehold land and building is located in Hong Kong.

Due to the impact of COVID-19 pandemic, the number
of visitor arrivals dampened which led to certain shops
in Hong Kong and Macau not performing as expected,
the management of the Group concluded there was
an indicator for impairment and conducted impairment
assessment on recoverable amounts of property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use assets of relevant
shops. The Group estimates the recoverable amount
of these shops, each represents an individual CGU,
to which the asset belongs when it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount individually.

The recoverable amount of CGUs has been determined
based on a value in use calculation.

Based on the result of the assessment, certain shops
with impairment indicators have been impaired in full
as the remaining lease term of these shops are to end
in less than one year from the end of the reporting
period and hence would not generate a net cash
inflow in the future, accordingly, an impairment loss of
HK$6,729,000 and HK$7,939,000 (2020: HK$6,990,000
and HK$8,951,000) has been recognised against the
carrying amount of property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets respectively, in profit or loss during
the year ended 31 December 2021.
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HRHERSRIBENEENTABRD
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REEEAR S MRAFRE  tHE £2021
F12A31BLEFE WME HEREZE
UREREEES N BZERERE
B B 5 186,729,0007% 7T K 7,939,000/%8
7T (20204 : 6,990,000/ 7T 58,951,000
BIT) °
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
HE2021F12A31H L FE

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS o FBE &
Leased
properties
HEWE
HK$'000
FHET
As at 31 December 2021 72021128311
Carrying amount FREE 207,527
As at 31 December 2020 7A2020F12H31H
Carrying amount FREE 365,022
For the year ended 31 December 2021 & Z2021F12831HILFE
Depreciation charge TEEZER 266,166
Impairment losses recognised (note 13) R ZBEEE (KizE13) 7,939
For the year ended 31 December 2020 # Z20205F12831HILFE
Depreciation charge TEEZER 242515
Impairment losses recognised (note 13) 2R ZBEEE (HizE13) 8,951

Variable lease payments during the year ended
31 December 2021 was HK$51,104,000 (2020:
HK$25,232,000). In addition, rental expenses for
contracts reassessed not under the definition of
lease under HKFRS 16 was HK$60,691,000 (2020:
HK$48,395,000). Total cash outflow for leases during
the year ended 31 December 2021 amounted to
HK$332,653,000 (2020: HK$283,406,000).

For both years, the Group leases retail shops and office
for its operations. Lease contracts are entered into for
fixed term of 1 to 5 years, but may have extension and
termination options as described below. Lease terms
are negotiated on an individual basis and contain
a wide range of different terms and conditions. In
determining the lease term and assessing the length
of the non-cancellable period, the Group applies the
definition of a contract and determines the period for
which the contract is enforceable.

Addition to right-of-use assets resulting from new lease
entered or renewed amounted to HK$117,362,000
(2020: HK$107,671,000).
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HZE2021F12A31AILEE
14. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS - continued 14. MM ERE £
Leases of retail shops are either with only fixed lease TEEMcHEEBEETHENREE
payments or contain variable lease payment that are EAEHAENF(ADEREHEE 2
based on certain percentage sales and minimum ETEOHHEERKEFEHEN
annual lease payment that are fixed over the lease ) NRIERRAREEFEEENT
term. The payment terms are common in retail shops EEHRATRE - CAATEINERNE
in the PRC where the Group operates. The overall RBUKTERSEEREELAESZMM
financial effect of using variable payment terms is that B
higher rental costs are incurred by shops with higher
sales.
The Group has extension options for certain leases in AEBREREFERETHEZERERE
Hong Kong. These are used to maximise operational B-ZEREREANREERAEERS
flexibility in terms of managing the assets used in the FTAZEEFRKEEFTERAL-EXR
Group's operations. The extension options held are EEATFEZERERERE-
exercisable only by the Group.
The Group assesses at lease commencement date AEEREHERBBBHTEREERS
whether it is reasonably certain to exercise the EEBETHELEREEE -R2021F
extension options. As at 31 December 2021, the 12A31H " AEBRGECEBETEL
potential exposures to these future lease payments REEREC2HEEBEYRMAZER
not included in lease liabilities for extension options in REEMNREBEERRE AZ (20204 :
which the Group is not reasonably certain to exercise 7,506,000/ 7T) °
was Nil (2020: HK$7,506,000).
15. INVENTORIES 15. #&
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTEx FHET
Raw materials FE AR 26,375 35,752
Goods held for resale FEEBERMm 2,684,382 2,994,197
2,710,757 3,029,949
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

HE2021F12A31H L FE
16. RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND 16. WEWEKIAE - #& 4 K A #0E
PREPAYMENTS
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FH&T AT
Trade receivables from RERFEH2EFEWNFIE
contracts with customers 54,589 63,830
Less: Allowance for B IEEEEEE
credit losses (585) (1,223)
54,004 62,607
Other receivables, deposits and E th fE U 0 IE « & & R FE M KA
prepayments 96,531 78,140
PRC Value-Added Tax (“VAT") AR aJUgEEER ([EERK])
recoverable 15,691 8,181
166,226 148,928

As at 1 January 2020, trade receivable from contracts
with customers amounted to HK$50,716,000.

Retail sales are normally settled in cash or by credit
cards with the settlement from the corresponding
banks or other financial institutions within seven days.
The credit term of receivables from retail sales in
department stores are normally ranged between 15 to
45 days.

Included in other receivables, deposits and
prepayments as at 31 December 2021 were
advance payments to suppliers of HK$13,814,000
(2020: HK$15,506,000) and rebate receivables of
HK$37,297,000 (2020: HK$30,624,000). The remaining
items are individually insignificant.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

HZE2021F12A31AILEE

16. RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND 16.  FEWCHKIE ~ ¥4 KR AT 3K H — &
PREPAYMENTS - continued
The following is an ageing analysis of trade receivables AT AIRE AT E 5 FE W5k I8 PO B ) B R
before impairment presented based on the invoice date REZEBH (EIZEEKRARR B HE
at the end of the reporting period, which approximated ) 25| 2 BRER DT o

the respective revenue recognition dates.

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FHETT
Within 30 days 30HA 51,939 60,956
31 - 60 days 31260H 1,222 409
61— 90 days 61£290H 200 48
Over 90 days @0 H 1,228 2417
54,589 63,830
Included in the trade receivables balance were EoRKUREBELEHKTEEREEER
receivables from department stores with aggregate 636,000/% 7t (20204 : 1,301,0007% 7T )
carrying amount of HK$636,000 (2020: HK$1,301,000) ZEWRBERRFIE RERBH ZF
which are past due at the reporting date for which the RIEE A AN & E & E R EE
Group has not provided for impairment loss. BEE-
Details of impairment assessment of trade and other B 5 N HAEWRIE 2 BE G 2518
receivables are set out in note 28. PP EE28 ©
17. BANK BALANCES AND CASH 17. SRAT4A R LBl &
As at 31 December 2021, bank balances carried MR2021F12A31H " RITEKRIRETF
interest at market rates which ranged from 0.01% to 0.01%%£3.50% (2020%F : FF0.01% =
3.50% per annum (2020: 0.01% to 3.15% per annum). 3.15% ) VT IS M E 58 o
Bank balances and cash that are not denominated WINEEEERBZ2IEEEIEZR
in the functional currencies of the respective group THHERREHOT :
entities are as follow:
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
HK$ ATt 10 234
Macau Pataca (“MOP”) BT (BRFT]) 42,352 53,272
United States dollars (“USD") Ex([%Ex]) 158 790
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
HZE2021F12A31B L FE
18. PAYABLES AND ACCRUED CHARGES 18.  WEAFEKIE K FEEE
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHERT FHET
Trade payables B S RN HIE 51,394 45,235
Other payables and accrued HtENRIBERETER
charges 96,776 75,484
Singapore Goods and Services #7103 B & & AR 75 FE - B 1B
Tax payables 1,909 1,892
PRC VAT payables A B e IR (E B 58 1,086
150,137 123,697
Included in other payables and accrued charges MR2021F12A31H Rt fta kS
as at 31 December 2021 were accrued bonus and 16,605,000/ JT (20204 : 6,621,000
incentive of HK$16,605,000 (2020: HK$6,621,000) and 7% 0 ) & JEE £ % {5 Bk 230,642,000 7T
accrued renovation costs of HK$30,642,000 (2020: (20204 : 12,005,000/ 7T) B 5T A E fth
HK$12,005,000). ENZRIENREGTER-
The ageing analysis of trade payables presented based BESRMNRBERERPRIZEZAHE
on the invoice date at the end of the reporting period T2 BRER DT T -
are as follows:
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FHET
Within 30 days 30H A 48,716 39,964
31 - 60 days 31260H 2,442 2,131
61 — 90 days 61290H 29 866
Over 90 days @90 H 207 2,274
51,394 45,235
The Group normally receives credit terms granted by rEE-REEERARTZEEHARI0

creditors of 30 to 60 days. £60H -
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HZE2021F12A31AILEE
18. PAYABLES AND ACCRUED CHARGES - 18. MEATsE K WER B - 2&
continued
Trade payables that are not denominated in the WINEEBER ZHEEBHECZE
functional currencies of the respective group entities SREMNRIERAT
are as follows:
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT FHT
MOP R IT 9,262 6,263
uUSsb %71 128 1,821
19. LEASE LIABILITIES 19. HEAME
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET THETT
Lease liabilities payable: ERNEERE:
Within one year —FR 160,343 227,155
Within a period of more than —F A EETBBERE
one year but not more
than two years 70,503 131,447
Within a period of more than MEAEENBBRF
two years but not more
than five years 20,608 62,244
251,454 420,846
Less: Amount due for settlement 8 : 7| AR B B E W AR
within one year shown —FAREREE 22
under current liabilities (160,343) (227,155)
Amount due for settlement after F| AJER BB BEI AR
one year shown under —FREREE 22
non-current liabilities 91,111 193,691

B 5L G BE B B0 A PR A W] EMPEROR WATCH & JEWELLERY LIMITED (37
ANNUAL REPORT 202 14E #}




fok B B 285 A% B

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HZE2021F12A31B L FE
20. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 20. ARAME
2021 2020
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
k=2 FERT FHET
Advances from customers ~ BF (a) 16,191 6,777
Customer loyalty B B AT &
programmes (b) 2,462 3,100
18,653 9,877
Contract liabilities are expected to be settled within EHNEEEARASE —REEAHRR
the Group’s normal operating cycle and classified as HERSERREBAR
current liabilities.
As at 1 January 2020, contract liabilities amounted to 120201 A1H - 648 E /11,957,000
HK$11,957,000. BT
Notes: Bt 5T
(a) Advances from customers of HK$16,191,000 (2020: (a) 5] fﬁ&fiﬁ&?ﬁ%ﬁﬁ WBRz®EFAE
HK$6,777,000) were received for the sales of watches and {3 IE A£16,191,0007% 7T (20204 :
jewellery. 6,777,000/ 7T) °
(b) Sales of goods that result in award credits for customers, (b) EAERFBREBEAEE 2 BEE MG
under the Group's customer loyalty programmes, are ElESRECERHEEDNDARASZ T
accounted for as multiple element revenue transactions. ZWARZRG EFERIERREZA
The fair value of the consideration received or receivable ﬁ%@ﬁ@ﬁﬂ#ﬁ%%%ﬁiﬁﬁ%ﬁ?ﬁf%z%ﬁ
is allocated between the goods supplied and the award EITOR- EREZRENBZZ
credits granted. The consideration allocated to the —r—I%E’JﬁZﬁEZ’“‘EF@J% o R
award credits is measured by reference to the fair value 20215F12A318 D REREZRER
of the awards for which they could be redeemed. As at 2,462,000/ 7T (2020¢ 3,100,000/
31 December 2021, the consideration of HK$2,462,000 JL) °
(2020: HK$3,100,000) was allocated to the award credits.
The customer loyalty points granted during the year will RAFERLNBERTRMFEZED
expire at the end of June in the following year. RERFERNAEER -
21.  RIGHT TO RETURNED GOODS ASSET 21. BB RERE MR E
AND REFUND LIABILITIES
2021 2020
HK$°’000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Right to returned goods asset EEEEE 1,553 794
Refund liabilities arising BREEMMEAZEREE
from right of return 2,204 1,035
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HZE2021F12A31B L FE
21. RIGHT TO RETURNED GOODS ASSET 21. BEWEETEIIBRAE &
AND REFUND LIABILITIES - continued
The refund liabilities relate to customers’ right to return RRAERTPRERAHE -NIHER
products. At the point of sale, a refund liability and HEHRKRECERBERRRNEBELR
a right to returned goods asset and a corresponding EREEENRBRERZS REER AR
adjustments to revenue and cost of sales are AEBEBEHEBEEIFERARAELL
recognised for those products expected to be returned. BEFTEEEHAE-
The Group uses its accumulated historical experience
to estimate the number of returns using the expected
value method.
22. AMOUNTS DUE FROM (TO) RELATED 22, HEWC (fF) BRE 2\ sk OE
COMPANIES
The amounts due from related companies mainly EWBERARIRBEETERLER X 2
represent prepayment of operating expenses. RRIE -
The amounts due to related companies mainly ENBEAARBEFERENBERA
represent the service charge payable to related ZIRBE - ZEREREEF 2B RIE
companies. These amounts are unsecured, interest-free EREE-
and repayable on demand.
The related companies represent companies controlled MEARRESEHILAGRE(Z—UE
by a director or private trusts of which another director EREERZmAZ )EHZRFA
is one of the eligible beneficiaries.
23. DEFERRED TAXATION 23. RIEBLIE
The following are the deferred tax assets (liabilities) AEBERRZEEREBEE (BE)RE
recognised by the Group and the movements thereon RAERFBEBEFEZEBHWT :
during the current and prior years:
Accelerated
tax Tax
Leases depreciation losses Total
HE MEHERE BHEFRE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FHT THET
(Note)
(Pt &E)
At 1 January 2020 20201 B 1H 7,592 2,225 - 9,817
Exchange realignment [ 5 3% = (14) = (14)
(Charge) credit to profit or RENERE () A
loss for the year (7,592) (1,109) 6,435 (2,266)
At 31 December 2020 2020 12A31H - 1,102 6,435 7,537
Exchange realignment BE 5 5% - 50 - 50
Credit (charge) to profit or RERBREETA (1K)
loss for the year - 963 (6,435) (5,472)
At 31 December 2021 M2021%12831A8 - 2,115 - 2,115

Aok B T s A A

Note: At 31 December 2021 and 2020, no temporary difference
arise in leases because the Group was entitled to claim all

related expenses as clarified by the tax authority.
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23.

DEFERRED TAXATION - continued

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated
statement of financial position, certain deferred tax
assets and liabilities have been offset. The following is
the analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial
reporting purpose:

23.

RENRNEAMBRAREME BT
ELEMRBEEENRBBED THEHE-UTH
S5 B ¥R T 5 BVRAE R IR AR DA -

2021 2020

HK$’000 HK$'000

FERT FHET

Deferred tax assets RAEFRIAEE 5,103 10,896
Deferred tax liabilities BEHIBRE (2,988) (3,359)
2,115 7,537

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused
tax losses of approximately HK$33,964,000 (2020:
HK$102,608,000) available for offset against future
profits. No deferred tax has been recognised in respect
of such losses (2020: HK$39,000,000). No deferred tax
asset has been recognised in respect of remaining tax
losses of HK$33,964,000 (2020: HK$63,608,000) due
to unpredictability of future profit streams. Included
in unrecognised tax losses are losses incurred by
subsidiaries in other jurisdictions of HK$33,964,000 (2020:
HK$63,564,000) that will expire in the coming years
(please see the table below). Other losses may be carried
forward indefinitely. Tax losses of HK$4,503,000 (2020:
HK$1,902,000) have been expired during the year.

The unused tax losses available for offset against future
profits are analysed as follows:

RIERPELEER  NEBEHES 7] K5
2R 2 ) 2 A< Bh FA % TH B3 18 4933,964,000
7 7T (20204F : 102,608,000/ 7T ) ° #f &
L% 5 B 18 (20204 : 39,000,000/ 7T)
T SR AT 7 TE - R R oK 2R 1 2RO 2 A
TEET MUK BLER T B4 1H E5 833,964,000
7t (2020%F : 63,608,000/% JT, ) & SR IR iT
MEEE REMAEERECE ZHBR
AIMEAMARRHEBEBEBREBRE
R fE i 2 33,964,000/ 7T (20204 :
63,564,000/ 70 ) 2 BB (R T &) « Hi
E a8 ER BiAEE - FNE fEm 2 FIEES
183%4,503,000/% 7t (20204 : 1,902,000
I e

AAERERR OGN 2 KRB BRIEEE
Paxiiy Ul

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTET THET

Will expire on: 155 T 5 B B E W
31 December 2021 2021512 H31H - 10,709
31 December 2022 2022% 12 A31H 1,271 14,031
31 December 2023 2023%12A31H 8,985 20,391
31 December 2024 2024%12A31H 2,629 2,629
31 December 2025 2025%F 12 H31H 8,310 8,310
31 December 2026 202612 H31H 5,371 5,371
31 December 2027 2027512 HA31H 2,123 2,123
31 December 2028 2028412 A31H 5,275 -
33,964 63,564

Unrecognised tax loses that may 7] £&[R 8458

be carried forward indefinitely M A& MR IBEIE - 44
33,964 63,608
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
HZE2021F12A31AILEE
24. BANK BORROWINGS 24, ST R
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTERT FHET
The carrying amounts of bank A*ﬁ’?ﬁ%‘é/l BRI Z
loans that contain a RITEREREE
repayment on demand clause (Eumzﬁbf@\fﬁlﬁ—l—ﬁ]m)
(shown under current BAERNATHEEE:
liabilities) but repayable:
Within one year —F R 18,041 45,630
Within a period of more than —FUEETHBBARE
one year but not
exceeding two years 18,041 45,630
Within a period of more than MEAEBTNEBRT
two years but not
exceeding five years 129,370 430,179
Within a period of more than AFENE
five years - 117,254
165,452 638,693
Less: Amounts due within B ARBAELE
one year shown under R—FREEZELE
current liabilities (165,452) (638,693)

Amounts shown under
non-current liabilities

SIAFERBAB LR

The bank borrowings carry floating interest rate ranged
from 0.50% to 1.14% over Hong Kong Interbank Offered
Rate (“HIBOR”) (2020: 1.10% to 1.14%) per annum.

The Group had pledged a property with carrying
amount of HK$1,518,711,000 (2020: HK$1,610,792,000)
to secure banking facilities granted to the Group. In
addition, corporate guarantee was also issued in favour
of the banks by the Company and its subsidiary to
secure banking facilities granted to Group.

RITEBEREBRITRAEFRE ([FBR
TRIZERE])NMOS0%E1.14% 2 % 8
FEREFTE (2020F 1 1.10%E1.14% ) °

AEEEEH—IERMAEE,518,711,000
7 7T (20204F : 1,610,792,000/8 7T ) 2 ¥
¥ UEAAEEERETRE 2 KT
e dtiN KRR REKMBAR MG ASE
EERRITREMARITIRESEER -

25. SHARE CAPITAL 25. A
Number of ordinary shares Share capital
EERHE R
2021 2020 2021 2020
HK$°000 HK$'000
TER TAT
Issued and fully paid ERETRERE
At beginning of year and RENRER
at end of year 6,779,458,129  6,779,458,129 3,484,152 3,484,152
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26. RESERVES

(a)  Merger reserve arose from the group reorganisation
scheme (the “Group Reorganisation”) undertaken
by the Company to rationalise the structure of
the Group in preparation for the listing of the
Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange in 2008.

(b)  Other reserve represented the aggregate amount
of:

(i) the difference between the nominal value
of share capital and the amount due to
Emperor W&J Holdings capitalised for
issue of 344 ordinary shares of US$1 each
in a subsidiary of HK$343,997,000 prior to
the Group Reorganisation;

(i)  the capital contribution of HK$6,000
by Emperor W&J Holdings in Emperor
Watch and Jewellery Company Limited
(subsequently renamed as Prime Sharp
Limited, a then fellow subsidiary of the
Company) (“EWJCL") prior to the Group
Reorganisation;

(i)  promissory notes in aggregate of
HK$373,006,000 issued in exchange for
shares in the subsidiaries as a part of
Group Reorganisation;

(iv) the excess of the consideration paid
for acquisition of additional interest
in a subsidiary from a non-controlling
shareholder over the carrying amount of
non-controlling interest of HK$927,000
during the year ended 31 December 2010;

(v) the shortfall of the consideration paid
for acquisition of additional interest in a
subsidiary from a non-controlling interest
of HK$4,063,000 during the year ended 31
December 2010;

(vi) the reversal of reserve of HK$295,000
arising from the deregistration of a non-
wholly owned subsidiary during the year
ended 31 December 2011; and
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26. fitf

(a)

EHREEEARTDREBARNT
B {n 102008 4F £ Bt X2 P £ 7 M
BEASERBZEEEMAE
(TEEBAIFESE-

HifE e T oIS TH 2@

() REBEHAMN KAEE
HENREFRAREZR
HIEE AL (173448 M
BRARESEREEIXTZ
EBBRRGD) 2HEHNEE
343,997,000/ Tt :

(i) HEEHKSEREEER
BEHEHAEERKER
BRAdE (E&BAPrime
Sharp Limited ' & B & &
RAIZRAS RN BRQG)
([EWJCL |) z H #6,000
BT

i)y EREBEHZED
ERBEMBAA ZRG
MBITZALEZEAH
373,006,000/ 7t :

(iv) A — % JE4E IR AR R U g —
FHEBARRBEIINEZZE
NREBAIFEREZR
HZE2010F 124318 [F 5
€ 2 BRE{E927,0008 T ;

(v) REZE2010F12H31H
IFFER—RBIFERES
W B — A B /B A &) BB A A
BZENRETRE:®E
4,063,000 TT. :

(vi) HZE2011F12H318 1t
FE-HIkFEM—FEFESR
BB AR MBELD 2 F#&
295,000 7T : &
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HZE2021F12A31AILEE
26. RESERVES - continued 26. fliff—&
(b) - continued (b)y —#&

(vii) the reversal of HK$28,000 and HK$5,000 (viil H 22015 12HA31H &
arising from the deregistration of a wholly 2014F12A31B L F & -
owned subsidiary during the year ended SIkFM—RHEE2ERBA
31 December 2015 and 31 December &) 1 2 Bl # E128,000/% 7T
2014, respectively. 5,000 7T °

(c) Capital reserve represented the excess of the (c) EBARHFBEIEZERKE (FH)
value of net assets acquired over purchase BR AR R1987F W BEEWICLZ
consideration paid to EWJCL by Emperor Watch EEFEEABEREB 2N -

& Jewellery (HK) Company Limited in 1987.

27. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 27.  E AR B A B
The Group manages its capital to ensure the entities in AEEEREAUBREEANSERY
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern AFERE RNERABLELERRRKRAR
while maximising the return to shareholders through HEHRAREREREAER - AEE 2B
the optimisation of the debt and equity balances. The BREEBEFEMRL W B -
Group's overall strategy remains unchanged from prior
year.
The capital structure of the Group consists of cash and AEBZEAZEBIERENREEE
cash equivalents, debt comprising bank borrowings, Y- BIRITIEEEAK 2 ER HEBEN
lease liabilities and equity attributable to the owners RARREEAERGEER (BED#T
of the Company, comprising issued share capital and AR ERE) -
reserves.
The Directors review the capital structure periodically. EETHRIEREE RIF ~EE
As part of this review, the Group considers the cost of ZRERNKARERB@ARER I &5
capital and risks associated with the capital, and will BETFR DERORERERTEE
balance its overall capital structure through new share TEEBERGERE-
issues and share buy-backs as well as raising of new
bank borrowings.
28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 28. &b T H
A. CATEGORIES OF FINANCIAL A. SR ITBEEH
INSTRUMENTS
2021 2020
HK$°’000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Financial assets THREE
At amortised cost RE PR 734,164 594,002
Financial liabilities THEE
At amortised cost R AR 232,498 697,981
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
HE2021F12A31H L FE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

28.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s financial instruments include trade
receivables, other receivables, rental deposits,
amounts due from related companies, bank
balances and cash, trade payables, other
payables, amounts due to related companies,
lease liabilities and bank borrowings. Details
of these financial instruments are disclosed in
their respective notes. The risks associated with
these financial instruments include market risk
(including foreign currency risk and interest rate
risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies
on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
The management of the Group manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner.

MARKET RISK

The Group’s activities are exposed primarily to
the financial risks of changes in interest rates
and foreign currency exchange rates (see
below).

(i) Interest rate risk

The Group exposed to cash flow interest
rate risk in relation to floating-rate bank
balances (see note 17 for details) and
floating-rate bank borrowings (see note 24
for details) and also exposed to fair value
interest rate risk in relation to fixed rate
lease liabilities (see note 19 for details).
The Group cash flow interest rate risk is
mainly concentrated on the fluctuation
of interest rates on bank balances,
HIBOR arising from the floating-rate bank
borrowings. The Group aims at keeping
bank borrowings at floating rates. The
Group manages its interest rate exposures
by assessing the potential impact arising
from any interest rate movements based
on interest rate level and outlook. The
management will review the proportion of
bank borrowings in fixed and floating rates
and ensure they are within reasonable
range.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES - continued

28.

MARKET RISK — continued

(i)

Interest rate risk — continued

A fundamental reform of major interest rate
benchmarks is being undertaken globally,
including the replacement of some
interbank offered rates with alternative
nearly risk-free rates. Details of the
impacts on the Group’s risk management
strategy arising from the interest rate
benchmark reform and the progress
towards implementation of alternative
benchmark interest rates are set out under
‘interest rate benchmark reform” in this
note.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to
interest rates at the end of the reporting
period. The analysis is prepared assuming
the financial instruments outstanding
at the end of the reporting period were
outstanding for the whole year. A 100 basis
point (2020: 100 basis point) increase or
a 10 basis point (2020: 10 basis point)
decrease in floating-rate bank borrowings
are used when reporting interest rate risk
internally to key management personnel
and represents management’s assessment
of the reasonably possible change in
interest rates. Bank balances are excluded
from sensitivity analysis as the Directors
consider that the exposure of cash flow
interest rate risk arising from floating-rate
bank balances is insignificant.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES - continued

MARKET RISK — continued

28.

(i)

(i)

Interest rate risk — continued
Sensitivity analysis — continued

If interest rates had been 100 basis points
(2020: 100 basis points) higher and all
other variables were held constant, the
Group’s pre-tax profit for the year ended
31 December 2021 would decrease by
HK$1,655,000 (2020: HK$6,387,000). If
interest rates had been 10 basis points
(2020: 10 basis points) lower and all
other variables were held constant, the
Group’s pre-tax profit for the year ended
31 December 2021 would increase by
HK$165,000 (2020: HK$639,000). This is
mainly attributable to the Group’s exposure
to interest rates on its floating-rate bank
borrowings.

Foreign currency risk

The Group has certain sales and
purchases transactions and bank balances
denominated in MOP, USD, Renminbi
(“RMB"), Singapore Dollars (“SGD") and
Malaysian Ringgit (“MYR”) which are
the currencies other than the functional
currencies of respective group entities.
The Group manages its foreign currency
risk by closely monitoring the movements
of the foreign currency rates. The Directors
conduct periodical review of foreign
currency exposure and will consider
hedging significant foreign exchange
exposure should the need arise.
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28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 28. &I H-—#&
B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT B. HMEXEAKMEEEERBEX £

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES - continued
i 53 Ja i — 42
(i) EREE—Z

RIER AR - NE B LAEREE
SEERYEEB LI
ERIENEREENEA
B(ERREEERAR) KT

MARKET RISK — continued

(ii)  Foreign currency risk — continued

The carrying amounts of the Group’s
monetary assets and liabilities, including
inter-group balances at the end of the
reporting period that are denominated

in currencies other than the functional BT
currency of the relevant entities are as
follow:
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Assets BE
Third parties E=¥r
HK$ BT 10 233
MOP BT 46,564 55,716
usD £ 158 790
RMB AR 162,568 236
MYR BREESH 319 479
Inter-group balances £F B E 4 B
SGD # I3 TT - 48
MYR BRARSTH 7,452 5,520
Liabilities =R+
Third parties EZ=¥
MOP BT 9,316 6,269
uUsb ETT 128 1,821
Inter-group balances KB
HK$ BT 858,395 858,395
SGD N oo 91,042 -
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES - continued

MARKET RISK — continued

28.

(i)

Foreign currency risk — continued
Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below details the
Group's sensitivity to a 6% (2020: 6%)
increase in the functional currencies
of the relevant group entities, relative
to respective foreign currencies. The
sensitivity analysis of the Group also
includes foreign currency exposure on
inter-group balances. 6% (2020: 6%) is the
sensitivity rate used in the management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible
change in foreign currency rates. The
sensitivity analysis includes only foreign
currencies denominated monetary items
and adjusts their translation at the end of
the reporting period for a 6% (2020: 6%)
change in the foreign currency rates. If the
functional currencies of the relevant group
entities strengthen/weaken 6% against
respective foreign currencies:

Translation reserve would have increased/
decreased by HK$56,519,000 (2020:
HK$51,170,000) as a result of change
in foreign currency rates of inter-group
balances, as the inter-group balances
form part of the Group’s net investments in
subsidiaries.

Pre-tax profit for the year would have
decreased/increased by HK$12,011,000
(2020: Pre-tax profit for the year
would have decreased/increased by
HK$2,981,000) as a result of change in
foreign currency rates of third parties’
assets and liabilities.
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28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES - continued

CREDIT RISK AND IMPAIRMENT
ASSESSMENT

Credit risk refers to the risk that the Group’s
counterparties default on their contractual
obligations resulting in financial losses to the
Group. The Group’s credit risk exposures are
primarily attributable to trade receivables, other
receivables, rental deposits, amounts due from
related companies and bank balances. The
Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements to cover its credit risks associated
with its financial assets.

The Group performed impairment assessment for
financial assets under ECL model. Information
about the Group’s credit risk management,
maximum credit risk exposures and the related
impairment assessment, if applicable, are
summarised as below:

Trade receivables

Before accepting any new customer, the Group
uses an internal credit scoring system to assess
the potential customer’s credit quality and
defines credit limits by customer. Limits and
scoring attributed to customers are reviewed
annually. Other monitoring procedures are in
place to ensure that follow-up action is taken
to recover overdue debts. In this regard, the
Directors consider that the Group's credit risk is
significantly reduced.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

28.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES - continued

CREDIT RISK AND IMPAIRMENT
ASSESSMENT — continued

Trade receivables — continued

The Group's concentration of credit risk by
geographical locations is mainly in the PRC
and Hong Kong, which accounted for 79%
(2020: 90%) and 17% (2020: 6%) of the total
trade receivables as at 31 December 2021,
respectively. In order to minimise the credit risk,
the management of the Group has delegated a
team responsible for determination of credit limits
and credit approvals.

In addition, the Group performs impairment
assessment under ECL model on trade balances.
Except for items that are subject to individual
evaluation, the remaining trade receivables
are grouped based on shared credit risk
characteristics by reference to the external
credit ratings for industry/Group’s internal credit
ratings/past-due amounts/repayment frequency
after due dates. Details of the quantitative
disclosures are set out below in this note.

Other receivables, rental deposits and
amounts due from related companies

The directors of the Company have taken into
account internal credit rating based on the
historical default experience and credit quality
and various external sources of actual and
forecast economic information, as appropriate,
in estimating the probability of default of each
of the other financial assets occurring within
their respective loss assessment time horizon.
They are grouped based on shared credit risk
characteristics by reference to the external
credit ratings for industry/Group’s internal credit
ratings/past-due amounts/repayment frequency
after due dates. For the purpose of impairment
assessment, the ECL of these financial assets
is measured under 12-month ECL. No ECL
allowance has been recognised as the amount is
not considered to be material.
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28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES - continued

CREDIT RISK AND IMPAIRMENT
ASSESSMENT — continued

Bank balances

The credit risk on bank balances is limited
because the counterparties are banks with high
credit ratings assigned by international credit-
rating agencies.

Other than concentration of credit risk on liquid
funds which are deposited with several banks
with high credit ratings, the Group does not have
any other significant concentration of credit risk.

The Group's internal credit risk grading
assessment comprises the following categories:

Internal credit

ST AR -&

B. WMBEREEEERBEK-#Z

1 5 Jl B J 0 £ AP A — A2

RITHEE

HRRZHF REBRBREEFR
BEBEFESSEEFRZRT
BIRTTERZEERRAR -

BEABRASEEFRNRT
MRBESNEFEERRIN
AEBYBEMEBERNEFE

Rk -
AEBAIEERRFRHA T
R R AR :

rating Description Trade receivables Other financial assets

RBEETR  HE B2 RWHE HitEMEE

Low risk The counterparty is reputable and has a low risk of Lifetime ECL - not 12-month ECL
default and does not have any past-due amounts credit-impaired

(B ABENRSHFHZENRARRE rHRAEERHR REAESEEER
By EEMBHAETE ~EEERE

Watch list Debtor is reputable but with past-due amounts and Lifetime ECL - not 12-month ECL
frequently repays after due dates credit-impaired

ERRE ABEALERNHEREERHEHRNEBA rHEBEEER R2EAESEEER

-EEERE

Doubtful There have been significant increases in credit risk Lifetime ECL - not Lifetime ECL - not
since initial recognition through information credit-impaired credit-impaired
developed internally or external resources

3+ REABEKZEHINBER PHEHEEHA rHRHEEHR
FERR B MR R REZEM -EEERE —EEERE

Loss There is evidence indicating the asset is credit-impaired  Lifetime ECL - Lifetime ECL -

credit-impaired credit-impaired
Bi BRBETRAELBEERNE PHERHEEEHR rHRBEEHR
-BEERE -BREERE

Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtor is Amount is written off  Amount is written off
in severe financial difficulty and the Group
has no realistic prospect of recovery

itz BREBTEBARHRENHEER TR AT 8 RIEH L3
FEEYEERAREAE
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HE2021F12A31H L FE
28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 28.

B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES - continued

CREDIT RISK AND IMPAIRMENT
ASSESSMENT — continued

Bank balances — continued

The tables below detail the credit risk exposures
of the Group’s financial assets which are subject

S TH

,,E

B. WMBEREEEERBEK-#Z

1 1 Jl B J 0 £ R A — 42

ﬁﬂnnﬁ% nE

TRALAEBeREE (AL
THRBEEBEN G FEERZE

to ECL assessment: ERER
External Internal 12-month or Gross
credit rating credit rating lifetime ECL carrying amount
HBEE  ABEE 1285
T4 BE 2HEHEERR RHEAE
2021 2020
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
it TET TAT
Financial assets at amortised cost
BBHERATIRZ2SRERE
Trade receivables 16 N/A (Note 1) Lifetime ECL (not 54,004 62,607
B S RN A TER (Bi3E1) credit-impaired)
2HEREERSR
(REERE)
Credit-impaired 585 1,223
BEEERE
Other receivables 16 N/A (Note 2) 12-month ECL 37,297 31,813
HipEdskor TER (Hi3E2) PEABBEEER
Rental deposits - N/A (Note 2) 12-month ECL 85,765 93,910
HeRe A (Ftzk2) 12ERESREESSE
Amounts due from related 22 N/A (Note 2) 12-month ECL 753 561
companies TEA (HzE2) PEAEHEESSE
FE B A R FIA
Bank balances 17 Aorabove (Note 3) 12-month ECL 551,513 398,439
RITEH ARSI E  (PHFE3) REAESEEER
Notes: B 5 -
1. Trade receivables primarily consist of credit 1. %%ﬁé”ﬁl%\ﬁi%@ﬁ%ﬁfiﬁ

card sales, e-payment sales platforms such as
Alipay or WeChat Pay and department store
sales. The Directors monitor their balances
on an ongoing basis. Trade receivables in
connection with invoices settled through credit
card of HK$8,668,000 or e-payment platforms
of HK$1,776,000 are assessed individually and
with high credit rating and no past due history.
Trade receivables with significant balances in
connection with department stores are assessed
individually. Other trade receivables in connection
with department stores are considered on a
collective basis. In determining the ECL for certain
trade receivables in connection with department
stores, the management of the Group has taken
into account the historical default experience
and forward-looking information, such as GDP.
The management of the Group considers some
of these assets are short-term in nature and the
probability of default is negligible on the basis of
reputable department stores. In this regard, the
Directors consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.
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28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 28. &@TH &
B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT B. HBEREEEERBX &

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES - continued

CREDIT RISK AND IMPAIRMENT 17 B B J 0ok 1 P A — 2B

ASSESSMENT - continued

Bank balances — continued RITA B —E

Notes: — continued MizE: —4&

2. In determining the ECL for other receivables, 2. REEEMEKRFE Helke
rental deposits and amounts due from related REWBEEARREZBHE
companies, the management of the Group has EBEBEITH A5BEEREER
taken into account the historical default experience BRAEEZERBTHERLE RN
and forward-looking information, such as GDP, GDPERIEMER WRAREE
as appropriate, and concluded that no significant BB B VA R AR E LARI
increase in credit risk since initial recognition mEEIE N B REREEE
is noted and risk of default is insignificant, and B8 L - 3 A A b R SRR
therefore, no impairment has been recognised.

3. The Group measures the loss allowance on liquid 3. AEBHERDES CEEREE
funds equal to 12-month ECL. The credit risk on BESM2EABHEERE-
liquid funds is limited because cash are placed mBEeZEERRAR  2H
with reputable banks with external credit rating of RIRE DERREEZEBINEE
at least “A” assigned by an international credit- BRSgzER TAL] (BB
rating agency or state owned. EEREERT) ZIRITH

BRITA-
There has been no change in the estimation RAFEL BB F MR E

techniques or significant assumptions made 2R&K-

throughout the year.

TRETEMERETRER G
B E 5 FE M IR FE SR 2 Y TR 1
EEEEZES:

The following table shows the movement in
lifetime ECL that has been recognised for trade
receivables which are assessed for impairment
individually:

EEBEBENEFHBENR:

Movement in the allowance for credit losses:

Lifetime ECL

(credit-

impaired)

>HITEH

FEEE

(BEEERE)

HK$'000

FHET

As at 1 January 2020 R2020F 1518 682
Impairment losses recognised BRI E BB 536
Exchange realignment bE 5, 38 B 5
As at 31 December 2020 202012 A31H 1,223
Reversal of impairment losses VERIEN Sk =E (665)
Exchange realignment bE 5, 3 & 27
As at 31 December 2021 7A2021F12831H 585
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HZE2021F12A31B L FE
28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 28. &@hTH &
B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT B. HMERREEEERBKRX &
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES - continued
LIQUIDITY RISK B & & B
The Group’s liquidity position is monitored K& lZﬁ@Jéﬁ‘fHﬁﬁEﬁ VNN
closely by the management of the Company. In EREFRIER - RERRHE
the management of the liquidity risk, the Group TRBE NEEE E BERERFRE
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash HAMBEeRAEE F#@NK o A
equivalents adequate to finance the Group's BNAEBEEXEBRBEREAE
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations EIEA-K
in cash flows
The following table details the Group’s remaining TRFINASESHABENMHEHE
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities BEMHEHEAGBRERTENRE
and lease liabilities and lease liabilities based ZHRBEHNFH TRIIBER
on the agreed repayment terms. The table has EEAHERERZETR HHK
been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash ReBBGEsAMRRENER
flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest B TXREHAFNNERAEE®
date on which the Group can be required to pay. ME-BIFHFEZFBIR SR
The table includes both interest and principal mE KRB KRB R ERSE
cash flows. To the extent that interest cash flows RZFE 4R o
are floating rate, the undiscounted amount is
derived from interest rate curve at the end of the
reporting period.
Carrying
amount
Weighted Repayable More than More than at the
average  on demand 1yearbut 2 years but Total end of the
effective or within less than less than  undiscounted reporting
interest rate 1 year 2 years 5 years cash flows period
BRER RER
MmELH EES 1E0E 2FhE BeRE  RERHEA
BRAE 15/ Ao BHR5E s ZEEE

% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER AR AR AR AR

At 31 December 2021 #2021512A31A
Trade and other payables EHREMEMNFE - 64,924 - - 64,924 64,924
Amounts due to related companies JE B2 2 Al 3R - 2,122 - - 2,122 2,122
Bank borrowings RITEE 114 165,452 - - 165,452 165,452
Lease liabilities HE&E 2.23 159,767 72,076 20,798 252,641 251,454
392,265 72,076 20,798 485,139 483,952
Carrying
amount
Weighted Repayable More than More than at the
average on demand 1 year but 2 years but Total end of the
effective or within less than less than  undiscounted reporting
interest rate 1 year 2 years 5 years cash flows period

BERS 23 REB

T BES kD 2FN L Bemg  REREKR
ERAI% 1ER B BOREE &% ZEHE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FAT TR TR TR

At 31 December 2020 #2020512A318
Trade and other payables B REMERTE - 54,666 - - 54,666 54,666
Amounts due to related companies & BE 1 75E - 4,622 S S 4,622 4,622
Bank borrowings RIEE 2.22 638,693 - - 638,693 638,693
Lease liabilities REEE 2.66 236,893 135,366 63,823 436,082 420,846
934,874 135,366 63,823 1,134,063 1,118,827
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HZE2021F12A31B L FE
28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 28. &@TH &
B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT B. HBEREEEERBX &

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES - continued
LIQUIDITY RISK ~ continued BB £ — A
As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s bank R2021F12A31H AEEEH
borrowings with a repayable on demand clause RERERERODBRITEERD
is classified under “Repayable on demand or Ao BERIBERERER
within 1 year” time band in the maturity analysis. FIFAINRHEERE - KEBARE
Taking into account the Group's financial BNV BERR EERARTH
position, the Directors believe that it is probable BETAgITEHEMNBEEERZANE
that the bank will not exercise its discretionary B MZzEcHERBREERD
right to demand immediate repayment and such EPAENRTEERAREE-
term loan will be repaid in accordance with R ERE RITEXROFER
the scheduled repayment dates set out in the reHEREBLOT:

loan agreement. On this basis, the interest and
principal cash flows for the bank loan would be

as follows:
Carrying
amount
Weighted ~ Repayable ~ Morethan ~ More than at the
average ondemand  1yearbut 2 years but Total  end of the
effective or within less than less than Over undiscounted reporting
interest rate 1 year 2 years 5 years 5years  cash flows period
REEX RER

METH RE3 1E0E AN RERE RESER
BB 150 BHME  BHNSE BB5E 8% 2R
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEx TER TiEn TER TER T

At 31 December 2021 R2021612A31A
Bank borrowings BOEE 114 19,949 19,715 130,124 - 169,788 165,452
Carrying
amount
Weighted ~ Repayable More than More than at the
average  on demand Tyearbut 2 years but Total end of the
effective or within less than less than Over  undiscounted reporting
interest rate 1 year 2 years 5 years 5years  cash flows period

ERER AR

T4 ERS 13 £ FINE ReRE RESHK
BRI 1B BORE BORSF Bilse 28 FEE
% HK§'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL T TEL TR T TEL

At 31 December 2020 #R2020512A31A
Bank borrowings RITHE 2.22 53,901 53,245 443,223 120,613 670,982 638,693
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
HE2021F12A31H L FE

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

C. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF
FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts
of financial assets and financial liabilities
recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated
financial statements approximate to their fair
values.

INTEREST RATE BENCHMARK REFORM

As listed in note 24, several of the Group’s
HIBOR bank borrowings will or may be subject
to the interest rate benchmark reform. The Group
is closely monitoring the market and managing
the transition to new benchmark interest rates,
including announcements made by the relevant
IBOR regulators and acknowledgements from the
banks.

The amendments have had no impact on the
consolidated financial statements as none of
the relevant HIBOR bank borrowings has been
transitioned to the relevant replacement rates
during the year.

HIBOR

While the Hong Kong Dollar Overnight Index
Average ("HONIA”) has been identified as
an alternative to HIBOR, there is no plan to
discontinue HIBOR. The multi-rate approach has
been adopted in Hong Kong, whereby HIBOR
and HONIA will co-exist.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

28. @@ ITH-—#&
C. =RMEEREBBEZAAEBHES

=

EERB REBHEKANEA M
BRRALHEZEBEEL SR
BRECEEEARSEZAAEE
HE -

T 3 58 3 2 o

R FE24R 5 AEB WS ER
BRITEARFERITEER & A
RRAETMNEEERF -KEE
EZYBITELNEERHH
BERMEAENZ BEBERT
FAEFREEERBELIHNIER
RITH B o

EHLEEGRARBRRELY
2 EAAEBESRTRLR
BARTTIE B E 1 E R BIE 518
BRFIR -

EBRIT R R &

BEETRETFHE&E(BTRE
BFHERCHBEERBBR
TRAXFKEMBEATR BXLE
AERLEBEBRITAEZERBE -F
BEBENEXGA FERTRH
EFRERATRRIFOEHLL

ﬁ o
29. CAPITAL COMMITMENT 29. BEARKSE
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHExT FHETT
Capital expenditure in respect of BB EBE I #EX
acquisition of property, plant REFE R EMRBE 2
and equipment contracted M HMBEREBEZ
for but not provided in BARE
the consolidated financial
statements 688 247
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H E2021F12A31H L FE
30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The shareholders of the Company passed an ordinary
resolution at the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 23 May 2018 to approve the adoption
of a share option scheme of the Company (“2018 Share
Option Scheme”).

A summary of the 2018 Share Option Scheme is set out
as follows:

1. PURPOSE

To enable the Group to attract, retain and
motivate talented eligible participants to strive for
future development and expansion of the Group.

2. ELIGIBILITY

Eligible participants include employees (whether
full-time or part time, including any Executive
Director, Non-executive Director or Independent
Non-executive Director) and such other eligible
participants.

3. TOTAL NUMBER OF SHARES AVAILABLE
FOR ISSUE

i No. of Shares: 687,308,812 Shares,
representing 10% of the total number of
issued shares as at 23 May 2018, the date
of passing the resolution for adoption of
the 2018 Share Option Scheme.

ii. Percentage of the issued shares that it
represents as at 23 March 2022 (the date
of this annual report): 10.14%.

4. MAXIMUM ENTITLEMENT OF EACH
ELIGIBLE PARTICIPANT

i in aggregate not to exceed 1% of the
Shares in issue in any 12-month period
unless approved by the Shareholders; and

ii. options granted to eligible participant in
excess of the 1% limit must be approved
by the Shareholders.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
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30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME - continued

5. PERIOD WITHIN WHICH THE SHARES
MUST BE TAKEN UP UNDER AN OPTION

At any time from the date of grant of the option
to such a date determined by the Board of
Directors but in any event no exceeding 10 years
from the date of grant.

6. MINIMUM PERIOD FOR WHICH AN OPTION
MUST BE HELD BEFORE IT CAN BE
EXERCISED

No minimum period unless otherwise determined
by the Board of Directors.

7. (i) Price payable on application or
acceptance of the option: HK$1.00;

(iiy  The period within which payments or calls
must or may be made: Within 28 days from
the date of grant; and

(iii)  Period within which loans for such
purposes of the payments or calls must be
repaid: Not applicable.

8. BASIS FOR DETERMINING THE EXERCISE
PRICE

The exercise price is determined by the Board
of Directors (subject to adjustment) and will not
be less than the highest of (i) the closing price
of the Share as stated in daily quotation sheet of
the Stock Exchange on the offer date; and (ii) the
average closing price of the Shares as stated in
the daily quotation sheets of the Stock Exchange
for the five business days immediately preceding
the offer date.

9. REMAINING LIFE

Approximately 6 years (expiring on 22 May
2028).

During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 31
December 2021, no option was granted, exercised,
cancelled or remained outstanding under the 2018
Share Option Scheme.
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H E2021F12A31H L FE
31. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group participates in both a defined contribution
schemes which are registered under the Hong Kong
Occupational Retirement Scheme Ordinance (the
‘ORSO” Scheme) and a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) established under the
Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Ordinance in
December 2000. The assets of the schemes are held
separately from those of the Group, in funds under
the control of independent trustees. Employees who
were members of the ORSO Scheme prior to the
establishment of the MPF Scheme were offered a
choice of staying within the ORSO Scheme or switching
to the MPF Scheme, whereas all new employees joining
the Group on or after 1 December 2000 are required to
join the MPF Scheme.

The retirement benefit costs charged to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income represents contributions
payable to the funds by the Group at rates specified in
the rules of the schemes. Where there are employees
who leave the ORSO Scheme prior to vesting fully in the
contributions, the contributions payable by the Group
are reduced by the amount of forfeited contributions.

For members of the MPF Scheme, the Group
contributes 5% of relevant payroll costs to the Scheme,
which contribution is matched by the employee. The
maximum amount of contribution is limited to HK$1,500
per each employee.

The ORSO Scheme is funded by monthly contributions
from both employees and the Group at 5% of the
employee’s basic salary.
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HE2021F12A31H L FE
31. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES -

32.

continued

The eligible employees of the Company’s subsidiaries
in the PRC, Macau, Singapore and Malaysia are
members of pension schemes operated by respective
local governments. The subsidiaries in the PRC are
required to contribute a certain percentage ranging
from 38% to 44% of the relevant cost of the payroll
of these employees to the pension schemes to fund
the benefits. The subsidiary in Macau is required to
contribute MOP60 for every employee per month.
The subsidiary in Singapore is required to contribute
16% of the employee’s monthly gross salary while the
subsidiary in Malaysia is required to contribute 12% to
13% of the employee’s monthly gross salary. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement
benefit schemes is to make the required contribution
under the schemes.

The total expense recognised in profit or loss of
HK$23,804,000 (2020: HK$14,534,000) represents
contributions, payable to those plans by the Group at
the rate specified in the rules of the plans.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The terms and balances with related companies at the
end of the reporting periods are set out in consolidated
statements of financial position and note 22.

160 J& 28k ER 2 A I A 5] EMPEROR WATCH & JEWELLERY LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 202 14E #t

31.

32.

SR AR A Gt ) — 4

AT AR B BPT - FnE & SR A E
Al NE] ZAQT&EE\ERMWI&W
B CRREHEKE FEAZHBA
REREBREEFSHENAZETE
D (N F38%E44% ) s Z Rk £ 5t
EH REAERES BMAZHBA
RIEGANEREBEHKCORM T
MEMBAREREE AFBREFEED
16% M M ERAEHE AR AERE
8 A% i@%%ﬁﬂzﬂjm%iw%f oo AR
SBEEBRRKEFGFE 2E—FTETAR
BETEIER FTZAS® R -

}?

EI

WH&H

Rz ER A4 5 223,804,000% 7T
(20204 : 14,534,0005’%7‘5) BAE B
ZEFERAFRA TN ERRERZS:
EIEL A BEFK -

oA 05 %2 5
A TE ¥R B R 2 38 1 R K I A R 7
i o= Eﬁ“iﬂlﬁ(ﬂ#&%&l‘ﬁ&% °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
it 1 B 205 i A B i

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

HZE2021F12A31B L FE
32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS - 32. BEIRG &
continued
During the year, other than the arrangements with and RER - BRITFTOMBENREERAE
compensation to the Directors and key management FTEEBABTUNLTHERRAREEE
personnel of the Group disclosed in note 9, the Group THmEEN AEBEBEF 2S5
had the following transactions with related parties: ™~
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FHET
(1) Sales of goods to Directors, #HEBERTES KEZAR
their close family members K REEE R A (KizTakb)
and related companies
(notes a and b) 6,859 3,745
(2) Electricity and air- EXRENTHREARIZE
conditioning expenses paid BNZHAB LT H (MiFakb)
and payable to related
companies (notes a and b) 277 258
(3) Service charge inrespect BEXNRENTHEERRER
of information system and B ERRITHRIIEZ REE
administrative work paid (Mfstakb)
and payable to related
companies (notes a and b) 7,067 607
(4) Advertising expenses paid EXfRENTEERFZE
and payable to related HRX (MsFakb)
companies (notes a and b) 514 428
(5) Financial advisory fee paid B X MENMF—REEERQ T
and payable to a related ZHBERER (MZakb)
company (notes a and b) 375 285
(6) Interest expenses on MEBAEAREL 2 HEB RN
lease liabilities to related BRAX (KzFa)
companies (note a) 1,464 2,455
(7) Variable lease paymentsto R E QA RIEL M A EHER
related companies (notes a 1A (HfsFakc)
and c¢) 2,427 1,443
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fok B B 285 A% B

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

HE2021F12A31H L FE
32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS -
continued

As at 31 December 2021, deposits paid to related
companies amounting to HK$18,223,000 (2020:
HK$25,661,000) was included in rental deposits under
non-current assets.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had recognised
lease liabilities of approximately HK$31,287,000 (2020:
HK$40,653,000) for the leases with related companies.

Notes:

(a) The related companies are controlled by a Director or
private trusts of which another Director is one of the
eligible beneficiaries.

(b) These transactions are connected transactions exempt
from announcement, reporting and independent
shareholders’ requirements under Rule 14A.33 of the
Listing Rules.

(c) The expenses paid are in relation to the tenancy
agreements entered into with the related companies of
the Company. Some of these transactions are disclosed
continuing connected transactions (as defined under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules) of the Company
which details are disclosed under the section headed
“Continuing Connected Transactions” under “Directors’
Interests in Transactions, Arrangements or Contracts
of Significance and Connected Transactions” of the
Directors’ Report.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
it 1 B 205 i A B i

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

H E2021F12A31H L FE
33. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES 33. @& E A 2 A AR

ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group's TREIAEEREZTHFAEEANER
liabilities arising from financing activities. Liabilities PHFB - RETHMELENEBERB
arising from financing activities are those for which REAEBGeHRERERTOERME
cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified EEMGRERENHEEREBIREKR
in the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows as BME -

cash flows from financing activities.

Lease Bank Dividend
liabilities borrowings payable Total
HESE BITEE EARE M@t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FET TET TET
As at 1 January 2020 120201818 619,207 790,934 - 1,410,231
- Bank borrowings raised —BEBRTEE = 129,515 = 129,515
- Repayments of bank borrowings —EERITEE = (281,949) = (281,949)
- Repayments of lease liabilities —EEHERE (241,687) = = (241,687)
~ Interest paid —ERHE (16,487) (16,652) . (33,139)
Net cash used in financing cash flows REREREMACLRETE (258,174) (169,086) = (427 260)
New leases entered or renewed UK EECHEE 98,619 - - 98,619
Lease modified HEBR (58,736) = = (58,736)
Interest expenses FIBHX 16,487 16,652 - 33,139
Exchange realignment B X AR 3,353 193 = 3,546
As at 31 December 2020 R2020F12A31H 420,846 638,693 - 1,059,539
Financing cash flows: RERERE:
- Bank borrowings raised —BEBIRITEE - 400,000 - 400,000
- Repayments of bank borrowings —BERRTEE - (873,241) - (873,241)
- Repayments of lease liabilities —BEHERRE (271,527) - - (271,527)
~ Interest paid —BRHE (9,972) (6,406) - (16,378)
_ Dividend paid —ERRE - - (47,456) (47,456)
Net cash used in financing cash flows REREREMAZEEFE (281,499) (479,647) (47,456) (808,602)
New leases entered or renewed U EECHEE 102,225 - - 102,225
Lease modified HEBR (2,449) - - (2,449)
Interest expenses FlEHEX 9,972 6,406 - 16,378
Dividend recognised BHERRE - - 47,456 47,456
Exchange realignment fE % 2,359 - - 2,359
As at 31 December 2021 H2021F12831H 251,454 165,452 - 416,906
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Aok 1 B 25 A M R

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

B E2021F12A31B L FE
34. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AR ) 2Z B 8 R O i 3R % fik
AND RESERVE OF THE COMPANY
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FAET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries KRB AR ZIRE 2,714,664 2,295,216
Amount due from a subsidiary  FEUx —REIHI B D 7 B 2,032,547 2,335,330
4,747,211 4,630,546
Current assets RBEE
Deposits and prepayments B RIEFRIE 563 541
Bank balances and cash WITHEBER S 258 1,021
821 1,562
Current liabilities RBAE
Other payables and Hi A RIBREGTER
accrued charges 415 353
Amount due to a subsidiary JE A — I B /B A B) FRIE 87,709 88,537
88,124 88,890
Net current liabilities RBEERE (87,303) (87,328)
Net assets EEFRE 4,659,908 4,543,218
Capital and reserve EXRf#EE
Share capital fi% 7 3,484,152 3,484,152
Reserve w15 1,175,756 1,059,066
Total equity HERE RS 4,659,908 4,543,218

The Company's statement of financial position was
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of

Directors on 23 March 2022 and are signed on its EERKREE:
behalf by:
NG KOON KEUNG, RICKY WONG CHI FAI
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
EF =
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

o o W S R P
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
HZE2021F12A31H L FE
34. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 34, ARARZ MBI K GHEH -2
AND RESERVE OF THE COMPANY -
continued
MOVEMENT IN THE COMPANY’S RESERVE KRR ZREEE
Retained
profits
REEF
HK$'000
FAT
At 1 January 2020 7202041 A 1H 936,114
Profit and total comprehensive FARMNREREEBALE
income for the year 122,952
At 31 December 2020 72020%12H31H 1,059,066
Profit and total comprehensive FARMNEEEBARE
income for the year 164,146
Final dividend paid for 2020 20204F R HI % B, (10,169)
Interim dividend paid for 2021 20215 R HA B (37,287)
At 31 December 2021 M2021%F12831H 1,175,756
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Aok 1 B 25 A M R

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
HE2021F12A31H L FE

35. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as
at 31 December 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

35. EHME A FZ

R20214 K2020%F12A31H - A QX &l x
ZEM B AR ZFBOT

Place of
incorporation/

Issued ordinary
share capital/

Proportion of issued

registration/  registered share capital held
Name of subsidiary operation capital by the Group Principal activities
BB
Ri/EM/ BERRE/ AEEEE
i) PNCIECE EENH it & A ERTRAZLH FEXEH
2021 2020
Direct subsidiaries
EENEAT
Emperor Watch & Jewellery (China) Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100% Investment holding
Holdings Limited (“HK") 18T REZR
REBHRE (PE)ERERAA BiE
Emperor Watch & Jewellery (China) BVI US$1 100% 100% Investment holding
Holdings Limited EBRUEE 1%L REER
REBHFRE (PE)ERERAA
Emperor Watch & Jewellery BVI US$1 100% 100% Investment holding
(HK & Macau) Holdings Limited RERAEE 1ET REER
REBHRE (BR)ERARAA
Emperor Watch & Jewellery Overseas ~ HK HK$1 100% 100% Investment holding
Holdings Limited e 18T REZR
REBEREBIMMRARRA
Indirect subsidiaries
BEMELE
Beauty Royal Limited HK HK$2 100% 100% Provision of group
BRERARA B 28T tenancy agent services
RUSEHERERY
Charter Loyal Limited HK HK$2 100% 100% Provision of group
BCERAR e 28T tenancy agent services
RUSEHERERY
Emperor Watch & Jewellery (HK) HK HK$100 100% 100% Sales of watches &
Company Limited B 100/ 7T jewellery
HREBERE (BB)BERAA HEERIAE
Emperor Watch & Jewellery (Malaysia) ~ Malaysia MYR3,000,000 100% 100% Sales of jewellery
Sdn. Bhd. BRAD 3,000,000 HEKE
SRABELH
Emperor Watch & Jewellery (Singapore) Singapore SGD1,000,000 100% 100% Sales of watches &
Pte. Ltd. IR 1,000,000%7 113 7T jewellery
HEERIAE
EWJ Macau Company Limited Macau MOP25,000 100% 100% Sales of watches &
EWJRFIBRA A R 25,0002 7T jewellery
HEERRKE
Foremost Resources Limited HK HK$1 100% 100% Provision of group
EXERBRAR Bk 18T tenancy agent services
RESERSRERSE
Gold Pleasure Investment Limited HK HK$10,000 100% 100% Property investment
REREARRF BB 10,000/ 7 NERE
Mount Win Limited HK HK$1,000,000 100% 100% Provision of group
ERERRA BB 1,000,000 7T tenancy agent services

Rt EEHERERE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

H E2021F12A31H L FE

35. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

SUBSIDIARIES - continued

Place of
incorporation/

35.

Issued ordinary
share capital/

Aok B T s A A

FEME AR Z TR -

Proportion of issued

registration/  registered share capital held
Name of subsidiary operation capital by the Group Principal activities
2&1T
RY/EM,/ LEREEK/ AEBEE 3
W 2 B & EENH &R ERTRAZELH FEEH
2021 2020
Indirect subsidiaries - continued
HEHBAR -2
Success Wealthy Limited HK HK$1 100% 100% Provision of group
BEERARA B 18T tenancy agent services
RUESEHERERY
Trillion Winner Limited HK HK$1 100% 100% Provision of group
FTTRERRA B 18T tenancy agent services
RESERSERERSE
Up Success Limited HK HK$300,000 100% 100% Provision of group
BHERAT e 300,000/ 7T tenancy agent services
RUSERERERY
Wealthy Able Limited HK HK$1 100% 100% Provision of group
BEERAA a5 18T tenancy agent services
RUSERERERY
eal Team Limited HK HK$1 100% 100% Provision of group
ZRERAR N 18T tenancy agent services
RESEHSRERS
REFFKRE (LX) BRAA PRC HK$280,000,000 100%  100% Sales of watches &
H 280,000,000/ 7T jewellery
HEBRNIKE
REFEHKRE (RI) BRAF PRC HK$100,500,000 100%  100% Sales of watches &
H 100,500,00078 7T jewellery
HEBRNKE
TREREXEREHRR AR PRC HK$73,000,000 100%  100% Sales of watches &
H 73,000,000 7T jewellery
HEBRNKE
# The subsidiaries are wholly foreign owned enterprises. E ZEMBARAIINEBEBERE

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities

at the end of the year.

The Directors are of the opinion that a complete list of
the particulars of all subsidiaries of the Group will be of
excessive length and therefore the list above contains
only the particulars of subsidiaries which principally
affect the results or assets of the Group.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

5 5 Wk 2
For the year ended 31 December
BZ12A31ALEE
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET TET
(note) (note) (note)
(P 3E) (Fsr) (BaE)
RESULT eS|
Revenue WA 4,075,124 4,722,248 4,110,117 2,626,609 3,926,608
Gross Profit E7 1,089,244 1,304,526 1,263,979 840,064 1,229,505
Profit before taxation B 150 B A 173,237 318,253 119,324 34,796 256,269
Taxation B8 (13,546) (53,969) (29,293) (803) (51,574)
Profit for the year ZN/NIE 2SN
attributable to owners FE1E B s F
of the Company 159,691 264,284 90,031 33,993 204,695

As at 31 December
MW12A31H
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
TAT TAT TAT FAT THERT
(note) (note) (note)
(PBIzE) (PR EE) (BtaE)

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES ¥ERE®E
Total assets BEE 4,673,484 5969472 6,086,602 5773431 5,350,255
Total liabilities BaE (306,799) (1,504,452) (1,613,575) (1,224,313)  (629,465)
Net Assets BEFE 4.366,685 4,465,020 4,473,027 4,549,118 4,720,790
Equity attributable to A/NCIE YN

owners of the Company FEfh s

and total equity KA 4,366,685 4,465,020 4,473,027 4,549,118 4,720,790

As at 1 January 2019, the Group had applied HKFRS 16. M2019F1A 180 AEBERABE LT BRESE
Accordingly, certain comparative information for the years Rl &165%  E it - # 220174 &20184F 12831
ended 31 December 2017 and 2018 may not be comparable H IF F & H & T L 8 & 8l K &4 g8 B & £2019
to the year ended 31 December 2019, 2020 and 2021 as 4 20204 K&2021F12A31B L FEME T
such comparative information was prepared under HKAS 17. ®RERMELE  RERZELRERIBES
Accounting policies resulting from application of HKFRS 16 B &t B F17H R -AEBE LT KRS
are disclosed in the “Significant Accounting Policies” Section. 2RIZE165EMEEN TR RN [ERX LK
] —ETHEE
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